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IndepeDn dent Auditor’'s Report
n

the nMembers of Integris Health Private Limited
To

-t on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Repo

Opinion

audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Integris Health Private Limited
We havelding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together
(‘the Hoto as 'the Group'), as listed in Annexure |, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as
referred rch 2024, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive
at 31 Mathe Consolidated Cash Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Income e)\‘;ear then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a material
for ;!';i:‘_lti-ng policy information and other explanatory information.
acc

inion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us the
[h our: ‘?S consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
aforesaltl) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian
(‘the Ac-ng Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian
Accold n:Eng Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the
Accogi?d;ted state of affairs of the Group, as at 31 March 2024, and their consolidated loss (including
cons

comprehensive income), consolidated cash flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the
Ogha?rend ed on that date.
Yy

Basis for Opinion

ducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditin
. We con Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are fu
of the ibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statem
Respc’”%ent of the Group, in accordance with the Code of Ethics i
indep er:(ants of India ('ICAI") together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
Acco uﬂdated financlal statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have
consO|i ur other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics.
fulﬁll':'-‘;igve that the audit evidence we have obtained s sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
gﬁour opinion.
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hdependent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
n the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

nformation other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report thereon

The Holding Company’'s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other
nformation comprises the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the
tonselidated financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance canclusion therean.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to

be materially misstated.

The Directors’ report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor's report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company's
Board of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated
in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated
financial performance including other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and
consolidated cash flows of the Group in accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The Holding Company's Board of Directors are also responsible
for ensuring accuracy of records including financial information considered necessary for the
preparation of consolidated Ind AS financial statements. Further, in terms of the provisions of the Act
the respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group, covered under the Act are
responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the
Act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and for preventing and detecting frauds and other
irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and
estimates that are reascnable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. These
financial statements have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial

statements by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies
included in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process
of the companies included in the Group.

Auditor’'s Responsibillties for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements
as awhole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from-fraud-or error and are considered
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Cont’d)

material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143{10) of the Act
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk
of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from
error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control;

¢  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company and its subsidiary
covered under the act, have adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

« Evaluvate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

» Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the entities or
business activities within the Group, to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of
financial statements of such entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the
independent auditors..

We communicate with board of directors, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Holding Company and its subsidiary Companies incorporated in India whose financial
statements have been audited under the Act since none of such companies is a public company as
defined under section 2(71) of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(18) is not applicable,

As required by clause {xxi} of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’)
issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the
consideration of the Order reports issued by us, of companies included in the consolidated financial
statements and covered under the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks
reported in the respective Order reports of such companies.

Chartered Accountants
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hdependent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

- As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and, we report, to the extent applicable,
that:

3) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of
those books, except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h){vi) below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended)}.;

¢) The consolidated financial staterents dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant
books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial
statements;

d) inour opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act read with the Companies {(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

€) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and
its subsidiaries, and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiaries covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies, are disqualified
as on 31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act.

f) The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
with respect to the consclidated financial statements are as stated in, paragraph 13(b) above on
reporting under section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi} below on reporting under Rule
11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended):

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Holding Company and its subsidiary covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness
of such controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure I’ wherein we have expressed an
unmodified opinion; and

h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11
of the Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best
of our information and according to the explanations given to us

i.  The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the
consolidated financial position of the Group, as detailed in Note 42 to the consolidated
financial statements;

ii. The Holding Company and its subsidiaries did not have any long-term contracts including
derivative contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March
2024,

ji. ~ There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company, and its subsidiaries covered under the Act, during
the year ended 31 March 2024;

iv.a The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in note 48 (vi) to the
consolidated financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either
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Holding Company or its subsidiaries to or in any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign
entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Holding
Company, or any such subsidiaries, (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries incorporated in
India whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us
that, to the best of their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the note 48(vii) to
the accompanying consolidated financial statements, no funds have been received by the
Helding Company or its subsidiaries from any person{s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities
('the Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that
the Holding Company, or any such subsidiaries shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or
invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the
Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’} or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

¢. Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and {b) above contain any materiai
misstatement.

v.  The Holding Company and its subsidiaries have not declared or paid any dividend during the
year ended 31 March 2024

vi.  As stated in note 49 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks, the Holding Company and its subsidiaries which are companies
incorporated in India and audited under the Act, except for the instances mentioned below, the
Holding Company and its subsidiaries, in respect of financial year commencing on 1 April 2023,
have used accounting software for maintaining their books of account which have a feature of
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated throughout the year for
ail relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course of our audit we did
not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than the
consequential impact of the exceptions given below.

I.  The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any
direct data changes, used for maintenance of all accounting records by the Halding Company
and one subsidiary.

i.  Incase of another subsidiary, the accounting software used for maintaining its books of
account did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

AND,

riik Gogia
Partner
Membership No.; 512371
UDIN: 2451237 1BKFEYW4503

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Annexure |

List of entities included in the consolidated financial statements

Translumina Therapeutics LLP, India

Translumina GmbH, Germany

Artic GmbH, Germany

Translumina France, France

Transhealth Private Limited, India

Transvalve Health Private Limited, India

Blue Medical Devices B.V. (with effect from 16 June 2023)
LAMED Vertriebsgesellschaft (with effect from 05 June 2023)

O ND oo
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Annexure Il

Independent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements under Clause (i} of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of Integris Health Private
Limited (‘the Holding Company’) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and its subsidiaries
together referred to as ‘the Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary Company, which are companies covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company which are
companies covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements
criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance
Note’) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI"). These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were
operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of the Company’s business,
including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the
timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to
Financial Statements

The audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of a subsidiary, which is
a company covered under the Act, and reporting under Section 143(3)(i) is exempted vide MCA
notification no. G.S.R. 583(E} dated 13 June 2017 read with corrigendum dated 14 July 2017.
Consequently, our responsibility is to express an apinion on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and a subsidiary Company based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by the ICAl and
prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such controls operated
effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit
of intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an
understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists,
and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary Company, as aforesaid.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed
to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the_greparat[on of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally gepapg&m ccounting
principles. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in those
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records th i reasona%eadetall
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Annexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Integris
Health Private Limited on the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March
2024

accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2)
provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of
financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts
and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets
that could have a material effect on the financial staterments.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods
are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion , the Holding Company and its subsidiary Company which are companies covered
under the Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Mia

Partner
Membership No.: 512371

UDIN: 2451237 1BKFEYW4503

Place: New Dethi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Ingearis Healt#y Private Limited
cgnsalidaled Balance Sheetas at 31 March 2024

cIN: Ug5110> L2008PTC177230

! amounts ire  lakhs except number of shares and per share data, unless olfterwise stated)

Notes As at
31 March 2024 oy et
ASSETS arch 2023
Nepn-current A S .
proparty, 13'3'?[ and equipment
Capital work-in—progress :; ?'252‘;2 7.083.73
R i 4c 1.857.61 255.59
Goodwill iy 1,496,325
owner intangible: assets ) g: 33'934'09 26,728.74
Intz2noible t= under e T.4356.96 1.667.81
Firancial assels 863.23 ;
() Loans A
(ii) Other financial assels gy - 67.00
pefered tax assets (nal) a 741.63 633.60
Nor-cument tax assets (neh IS #0257 2,207.04
ouner non-current asseis 104 35,32 127.28
Total non-current agsets ?: i’?‘g;; 412.08
— e $0,700.12
_—_ 50,700.92
Cufrent assets
Inventories
Financisl assets " 15.667.13 13,627.08
(i) Trade receivables 12
(il) Cash and cash equivalents oy 29,028.10 25,056.03
¢iil) Bank balances other than (i) above % 1.473.41 1.951.46
(iv) Other financial assets 8 gi‘;’ é g; 997 16
ts X k
Othar current ass& . 108 i 74197
Total current asse 55.13 R 1.580.08
Total assaets ; '“;’- Z — 4355488
-=4|=' — g,sg Bg
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES :
Equity _
Equity share capl 15
i 167.01
QOther equity 157.01
Equity attributable to owners of the Company 16 2;;;2: 2 61.465.10
I equit —_— LT [3
" S
LIABILITIES I —
Non-current liabilities
Financial Kabilities
(i) Borrowings
(i) Lasse iabilities o 8,902.40 1,630.11
(iii} Other financial labiliies by 853.58 740.32
Prowisians . oA 891192 262,39
Defemed tax liabilities (ne) e 264.66 22782
Total non-current liabilities __22,% —_ 299828
— 5,858,92
Current liabilities
Financial liabikties
(i} Borrowings
(i) Lease liabifities :;g 12.974.81 11,006.32
(i) Trade payables 20 i 174
- Tolal outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises
- Total outstanding dues of creditors ather Ihan micro snterprises and small ent pri 41.83 5973
(iv) Other financial iabilites B 5,813.25 5419.10
Other current liabilitles e ;-ggg-;? 707 67
Provisions 8 198 10.094‘8‘3 1.0498.01
Current tax liabilifies (net) 23 084 3.645.36
Total current liabilitles 114,36 51.04
Total equity and liabilities : ;;.m. 2718377
; i —— . —— 0465480
Summary of material accounting policies 3

The summary of maternial accounting palicies and other explanalory formation are an integral part of thase consclidgted fnancial statements

This is the Consolidated Balance Sheet referred to in our report of even dats.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accountants
Fim's Regqistration No: 001076NMN500013

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Integris Health Private Limit

s
Indranil Mukherj

Director P
% DIN: 05692398

N

A

e

/] Kewdl/Krishan Jindal-
'/ ChietFinancial Officer

Place: New Deinl
Date: 30 September 2024

-
AT

Place: New Dethi
Date: 30 Seplember 2024
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| tegris Health Private Limited

c+ongolidaled Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024

IN: UBST10DL200BPTCTTZI0

(,An amouints In 2 lakhs except number of shares and per share data, unfess otherwise stated)

For the year ended For tiy
rticulars e year ended

P —— 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[g1cOme
FEavErnueg from cperalions 24 66,222.77 4B.855.12
>ther income 25 1,513.70 1.244.45
7 otalincome 57 736.47 48.199.68
ERpenses
> ost of malerials congumed 26 13,232.62 13.451.78
prurchases of stock-in-lrads 27 14731.77 11.229.65
(>hanges in nveniaries of finished goods, stock-in-irada and work-in-progress 28 5.14 (1,102.75)
£ mployes benefits expenses 29 11,770.44 9,175.69
F inance costs 30 254413 590.76
¥ epreciation and amertisation expenses 31 3,288.66 2,020.64
Crther expenses 32 9.914.95 9,370.14
T otal expenses S5 4TT. T 474491
prrofit bafore exceptional items and tax 2,258.76 3,454.67
Exceplionat tems ek 1.535.23 26433
Prrofit bafore tax 723.43 3,190.34
Tax axpense 34

Cumrent tax 2,529.35 2,205,590

Defemad 1ax (1.252.92) (977.64)

Earller years lax adiustments {nel) 101.86 (8.52)
Total tax expense 1,378.39 1,219,143
profit for the year {654.96) 1.971.1
Other comprehensive income
frerms that will not be reclassifed subsequently fo profit or loss:

Re-meazwements of the defined benefit plans (56.23) {11.13%

income tax relating tc above flem 18.88 429
fteems tha! will be reclassiffied subsaquently fo profft or loss:

Exchange differences on transiation of foreign operations (220 812
Income tax relatng o above item - -
Total other comprehensive income for tha year {39.%4) 1,28
Total comprehensive income for the year {654.80) 1.972.49

Profit attributable to:
Owners of the Company {654.96) 197121
Mon-controlling interesi - -
Other prehensive income attributable to:
Onwners of the Company (39.84) 128
Non-contrailing nterest - -
Total comprehensive income attributable to:
Owyners of the Company (694.80) 1.972.49
Non-controfling interest = =
Eamings per equity share (¥ 10 per shara) 39

Basic (F) 9.40 118.03

Diluted (2) 9.40 116.03
The summary of material accounling policies and othar axplanatory inf: ion are an integral part of Ihese consolidated financial statements.
This is Consclidated Staterent of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date
Far Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Diractars of
Chartered Accountants intearis Health Private Limited
Firm's Registrafion No: 001078M/|

-~
k Gogia Indranil Mukher unita S

riner e Direclor Direct

Membership No.: 51237 \, DIM: 008271812
\ o
Place: New Delhi Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024 Date: 30 September 2024
&
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Intecg”!s Health Privats Limited

Cone#Vlidated Cash Flow Statemant for the year ended 31 March 2024
Cin: V85110DL2008PTC177230
(Al aPOUNLS in T lakhs except humber of shares and per share dala, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars

For the year endad For the year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

A Cash flow from operating activities
Profit before tax but afler exceplional items

Adjustments for:
Deprecialion and amortisation expense
Finance costs
Interast mcome
(ain on foreign exchange fluctuation {net}
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment
Impairment of goodwil
Impairment of properly, plant and equipmant
Obsolete inventory wrillen off
Liabillties no longer required writien back
Allowance for bad and doubtful losans
Bad debts/asset writlen off
Revarsal of expected credit loss on trade receivables

Qperating profit befora working capital changes

M in operating ts and liabilities
Mavernent in trades payables and olher financial liabililies
Movement in provisions
Movement in other current liablities
Mo tin brade receivabl
Movement in inventories
Movemant in alher assals
Cash flows from operating activities post working capltal changes
Income tax paid (nef)
Net cash flows generated from{ {used in) operating activities (A)

B Cash flows from investing activities
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {including capilal work-in-
progress, capital advances, intangible assets and capital creditors)
Consideration paid for acquisition under business combination (nat of
cagh acquired T 467,94 lakhs and contingent consideraion of ¥ 153.92)

Proceeds from disposal of property, plani and equipment
fovement in bank depasits (net)
interest received
Proceads from loans
Net cash used in investing activities {8)

€ Cash flows from financing activities

Proceeds from issue of compulsory convartible preference shares (net of ransaction costs, refer note 2143

Proceeds from non-curren bormowings
Repayment of non-cuiment barrowings
Movement i current borrowings (net)
Payment of ease liabililies
Finance cost paid

Net cash g d from fin

ing activities (C)
Met {decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C)
Cash and cash equivalants at the beginning of ke year

Effect of exchange rate changes in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year

Cash and cash equlvalents include {refer nots 13}
Cash on hand

Balance with banks in current accounts

Dreposils with original malurity of less than three months

Notes:

729.43 3,190.34
3,288.66 2,029.64
2.558.50 601,12

(444.87) {102.36)

33.42 (58.89)
19,05 2

302.37 264.33

15176 -

936,61 -

(3210 (107.38)

30.00 2
7.23 137.42

(633.20) {600.29)
7,020.95 5,353.99

{790.00) 2,307.47
1,096.53 3,403,683
1,428.92 150.20
(2,540.60) {6,500.63)

(281.28) (375111
(3.150.84) {938.13)
2,777.70 15.13
(2.692.20) (2,020.59)

85.50 (1,905.85)
(1.666.97) (2,457.05)
(17.490,16) s

256.78 -
(2.674.71) {1.077.58)

253.02 56.16

397.00 91.93
(21,283.06) (3,444.54)
13.873.94 -
8,326.36 1,108.15
(38.71) (884.98)

{311.73) 6,822.60

(608.73) (248.30)
{1,542.38) (472.52)
20,698.75 6,325.55

1498.81) 975,15

1,951.48 984.60
2076 (8.29)
T,472.41 1,851.48
7.7 10.59
143865 1.916.06
27,00 24.81
1,473.41 1,081.48

{a) Reconciialion between the opening and closing balances in the balanca sheet for liabililies arising from financing activitias, including both changes ansing from cash

flows and non cash changes persuant to IND AS 7.

Changes in liabllities arising from financing activities:
As at 31 March 2024

Intarast
Particulars 1 April 2023 Cash flows expense/adjustmen 31 March 2024
t
Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares - 13,873.94 (5.520.60) 8,353.34
Borrowings {Current and Non current) 12,636.43 8,975.92 264.91 21,877.28
Leaze liabillies 914.95 (608.73) 1,067.10 1,373.32
Interest accrued but not due on borrowings (refer note 21B) 56.88 11,542.38) 1.614.21 128.71
Total liabilities for financing activities 13,608.26 20,698.75 (2,574.38) 31,732.63




Intecf3 Health Private Limited

CongOlidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2024

cly: UB5110DL2008PTC177230

(Al pMounts in ¥ lakhs except number of shares and per share data, unless otherwise stated)

Changes in liabllities arising from financing activities:
As at 31 March 2023

Interest
Particulars Cash flows expenselddjustmen 31 March 2023
t
Barrowings (Current and Nen current) T.046.77 29.73 12.636.43
Lease liabililies [248.30) pea k| 914.95
Interast accrued but not due on barrowings (refer note 218) {472.92) 514.38 56.88
Total liabilities for fi ing activities 6,325.55 815.82 13,608.26

The above Cash Flow Statement has been prepared as per the “indirect method™ set aut In Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow Statements.

This is the Consolidated Cash Flow Statemant referred to in aur report of even date.

Far W/atker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants

Firm'ss Regisiration Now.l.
N m .r\~P.
ra

k Gogia -
Partner .

Memizership No.:

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors o
Integris Health Private Limited

et
Indranil Mukherjee Puni Shm/

Director Director
DIMN Mumber: 0669258¢ DIN: 0021812

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Integris He Alth Private Limited
Summary o T Material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: Ua51100L2008PTC177230

1

Groy P overview

Integ(fs Health Private Limited {‘the Halding Company'), having Corporate ldentification Number (CIN' U85110DL2008PTC177230 is a private company domiciled
in {nd 18 and was incorporated an 25 April 2008. The Holding Coempany and its subsidiaries ('the Group') is engaged in tha businass of manufacturing and trading of
corore @7y stent systems, and related products including balloon catheters, madical devices, vascular access products and accessories, The registered address of
the H<lding Company is located at 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi ~1100&0, India,

Refer note 37 and 38 for details of subsldiaries consalidated in these consalidated financial statements,

Basiss of preparation of consolldated financial statements

(i) Statemant of compliance with Indian Accounting Standards {Ind AS)

(i

Thesez consolidated financial statements (‘financial statements”) of the Holding Company have been prepared in sccordance with the Indian Accounting Standards
{herei nafter referred to as the 'Ind AS') as nofified by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs {'MCA’) under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 ('Act’) read with the
Compranies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees {'Rs." or "INR’) {its functional and presentation currency) and all values are roundad off to the
neare St lakhs or decimals thereof, except where otherwise indicated. Adding the individual figures may therafore not always result in the exact total given.

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and epproved for issue by the Board of Direclors on 30 September 2024,

Principles of consalidation

Subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is expased te, or has rights to, vanable returns from its
involyement with the enlity and has the ability to affect thase returns through its power to direct the relevant activities of the entity. Subsidiary Is fully consolidated
from the date on which control Is transferred to the Group. They are daconsolidated from the date that control ceases. Statement of profit and loss (including other
comprehensive income (‘OCI") of the subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the period are recognised from the effective date of acquisition, or up to the date of
disposal, as applicable,

Consolidated financial stalements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances. If an entity of the
Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances,
appropriate adjustments are made to that group enfity's financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group's accounting policies.

Consolidation procedures

i. Consolidated financial stalements include consalidated balance sheet, consolidated statement of profit and loss, consolidated statement of cash flows,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information that form an integral part thereaf.
The consolidated financial statements are presented, to the extenl possible, in the same format as that adopted by the Holding Company for standalone financial
staternants;

fi. The consolidated financial statements have been combined on a line-by-line basis by adding the book values of like items of assets, liabilities, inceme and
expenses after eliminating intra-group balancesftransactions and resulting efimination of unrealised profits In full. The amounts shown in respect of reserves
comprisa the amaunt of the relevant reserves as per the balance sheet of the Holding Company and its share in the post-acquisition increase in the relevant
reserves of the entities consolidated;

iii. Summary of material accounting policies and ather explanatory information to the consolldated financia) statements, represents notes involving items which are
considered material and are accordingly duly disclosed. Materiality for the purpose is assessed in refation to the information contained in the consolidated financial
staterments. Further, additional statutory information disclosed in separate financial stalaments of the subsidiaries companies and/or a holding company having no
bearing on the rua and fair view of the consolidated financial statements has not been disclosed in the consolidated financial statements.

Foreigh operations

The assets and liabilitiss of foreign operations {subsidiaries) including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on acquisition, are translated into Indian Rupees,
the functional currency of the Group, at the exchange rates at the reporting date. The income and expenses of foreign operations are translated into Indlan Rupees
al the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions or an average rate if the average rate approximates the actual rate at the date of the transaction.

Such exchange differences are recognised in OCI and accumulated in equity (as foreign currency translation reserve), except to the extent that the exchange
differences are allocated to NCI, if any.

When a forelgn operation is dispased of in its entiraty or partially such that control, significant influence or joint control is lost, the cumulative amount of exchange
differences related to that foreign operation recognised in OCI is reclassified to profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on disposal. f the Group disposes of part of
its interest in a subsidiary bul retains control, then the relevant proportion of the cumulative amaount is re-aflocated to NGI, if any.

Business combination

The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business comblnations, The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred measured at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. Far each business combination, the Group
elects whether to measure the nan-contratling interests in the acquiree at fair value of at the proportionate share of the acquiree's idenfifiable net assets.
Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred,

At the acquisition date, ihe identifiable assets acquired and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their acquisition date fair values. For this purpose, the
liabilities assumed include contingent liabilities representing present obligation and they are measured at their acquisition fair values imespective of the fact that
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits Is not probable. Howevar, deferred tax assets or liabilities, and the assets or liabllities related to employee
benefit arrangements are recognised and measured in accordance with Ind AS 12 tncome Tax and (nd AS 19 Employee Benefits respactively. When a liability
assumed s recognised at the acquisition date but the related costs are not deducied in determining taxable profits until 2 later period, a deductible temparary
difference arises which results in a deferred tax assel. A deferred tax asset also arises when the fair value of an identifiable asset acquired Is less than its tax base.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer is recognised at fair valua at the acquisition date. Contingsnit consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the scope of Ind AS 109 'Financial Instrumsnts’ (“Ind AS 108", is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in the Consolidatad Statement of
with the appropriate Ind AS. Contingent col
accounled for within equity,
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Basis of preparation of consolidated financlal statements {cont'd)

{ii} Principles of consolidation (cont'd)

Goodwill Is Initially measured as excess of the aggregate of the conslderation transferred and the amount recognised for non-cantrolling interests, gnd any previous
interest held, over the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in excess of {he aggregate
consideration transferred and where exists clear avidence of underlying reasons of classifying business combinations as bargain purchase, the differance Is
recognised in other comprehensive Income and accurmulated in equity as capital reserve, However, if there is no clear evidence of bargain Purchase, the antity
recognises the gain directly in equity as capital reserva, without routing the same through other comprehensive incoms.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairmant losses. For the purpose of impairment testing, 460dwil acquired in a
business combination is, fram tha acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units thal are expecied to benefit from the combination,
irespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.

A cash generating unit to which goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more frequently when thera is an indication that the unit may be
impaired. If the recoverable: amount of the cash generating unit is less than Its carrying amount, the impairment loss is allocated first 1o reduce the camying amount
of any goodwill allocated to the unit and then ta the other assets of the unit pro rata based on the carrying amount of each asset in tha unil. Any impaiment loss for
goodwilll is recognised in profit or loss. An impairmant loss recagnised for goodwill is not reversed in subsequent periods.

Non-controliing Interest

Nen-gontralling inlerests, presented as part of equity represent the portion of a subsidiary's statement of profit and loss and net assets thal is ot held by the
Group. Statement of profit and loss {including each component of OCI) is attributed to the equity holders of the Holding Company and to the non-controlling interest
basis the respective ownership interests and tha such bafance is attribuled even if this results in the nan-controlling interests have a deficit batance..

Tha Group treats transactions with non-controtling interests that do not result in a loss of control as fransactions with aquity owners of the Group. Such a changs in
ownarship interest results in an adjustment betwsen the carrying amounts of the controlling and non-controlling interests to reflect thelr relative interests in the
subsidiary. Any differance between the amount of the adjustment ta non-controlting interests and any considaration paid or received is recegnised with aquity.

{iii} Historical cost conventlon

{iv)

a}

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going concem basis in accordance with the accounting principles generally acecapled in India.
Further, the financial stalements have been prepared on historical cost basis except for certain financial assets and financlal liabilities which are measured at fafr
value.

Current versus non-current classification

All assets and llabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the group's cperating cycle and other criteria set aut in Division Il of Schedule Il of
the Act. The group has identlfied twelve months as its operating cycle.

Materlal accounting policies
The financial statements have been prapared using the significant accounting policies and measurement bases summarised as below. These policies are applied
consistently for all the periods presented in the financial statements,

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are maasured at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price, borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in ariving at the purchase
price. Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separale asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits assoclated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The cost of improvements to leasshald
premises, if recagnition criteria are met, have been capitalised and disclosed separately under leasehold improvement. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Cost of property, ptant and equipment not ready for use as st the reporting date are disclosed as capital work-in-progress,

Subsequent measurement {depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. Deprsciation on property, plant and
equipment is provided on siraight line method based on estimated useful life of the asset after considering the residual value as set out in Schedule Il 1o the Act
referred above. Depreciation s calculated on pra rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the asset is sold or disposed.

The estimated useful lives of items of propery, plant and aquipment are as follows:

S.Mo  Asset category Useful life of t
1 Buildings 60 Years
2 Plant and aquipments 3-15years
3 Furmiture and fixtures 5- 13 years
4 Vehicles 10 years
5 Office squipments 5 years
6 Computers 3 years

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over the leass period on a straight line basis, commgncing from the date the asset is available to the Group for its use.
Thé residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial vear,

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant compenant initlally recognised is darecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-racognition of the assat (calculated as the difference betwean the nel disposal proceeds and
the carmying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognised.
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b}

<)

d}

Material accounting policies {cont'd}

Intangikle asseats

Recognhition and measuremant

Intangible assets that are acquired are racognised anly if it is probable that the expected future sconomic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flaw to the
Group and the cost of assets can be measured reliably. The intangible assets are recorded at cost of acquisition including incidental costs related to acquisition
and are camied at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment losses, if any. Gain or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible assets are
fmeasured as the differance between the net disposal proceeds and the carrving amount of the intangible asset and are recognised in the staternent of profit and
loss when the asset is deracognised.

Research costs are expensed as incurred. An intangible asset arising form development expenditure that are directly attributable to the design and testing of an
individual project is recognized only where the following criteria are met:

+ it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so that it will be availabls for use

* management intends to complete the intangible assat and use or sell it

« there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset

« it can be demonstrated how the Intangible asset will generate probable future aconomic benefits

+ adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sefl the intangible asset are available, and

* the expendilure attributable to the intangible asset during its development can be rellably measured

Amartisation
Amortisation on intanglble assets is calculated to write off the cost of intangible assets less their estimated residual values over their estimated useful lives using
the straight-ling method, and is included in *depreciation and amortisation' head in the statemant of profit and loss.

Amortisation msthod, useful lives and residual values are reviewed at the end of @ach financiel yesr and adjusted if appropriate. Amortisation has been computed
based on the fallowing useful lives:

5.No _ Asset category Useful life
1 Trademarks 10 years
2 Gustomer relationships 15 vears
a Patents, computar softwares and athers 5 years
4 Distribution Netwarks 25 years

Revenue recognitlon

Revenue Is measured st the fair value of the considaration recelved or receivable. Ravenus is recognized upon transfer of contral of promised goods or senvices ta
customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the Group expects fo raceive in exchange for those services. Revenue is measured net of rebates,
discounts and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recagnitlon criteria to each companent of the revenue transaction as set out befow:

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when goods are ransferred for a price, all sfgnificant risk and rewards of the ownership have basn transferred to the
customer, no effective control is retained with respect to goods transfarred to a degree usually associated with ownership, no significant uncertainty exists
regarding the amount of consideration and collectability of amount is reasonably assured. The Group considers the terms of the cantract and its customary
business praclices to determine the fransaction price. Ravenue is measured at falr value of consideration receivedireceivable, net of discounts, amount collected
on behalf of third parties and applicable taxes.

A recelvable is recognised by the Group when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time recognition where consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required. When either party fo a contract has performed, an entity shall present the confract in tha balance sheet as a contract
asset or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity's perfarmance and the payment.

Income from services

Interast income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and rate applicable. For all financlal assets measurad at amortised
cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interast rate (EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expacted life of
the financial asset to tha net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Export incentives
Revenue in respect of expart incentives is recognised when the right to receive the same is established.

Right of use assets and lease [labilities

The Group as a lessee

For any new contracts entered on or after 1 April 2019, the Group considers whether a contract I, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as 'a contract, or part of a
contract, that conveys the right to use an asset {the undarlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for consideration’,

Classification of laases
The Group enters into leasing amrangements for various assets. The assessmant of the lsass is based on several factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of
ownership of leased assst at and of lease term, lassee’s option te extendfpurchase els,

Right of use assets

Recoagnition and initial measuramant

At lease commencement date, the Group recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost,
which is made up of the initial meas I g lease liability, any initial direct costs incurred by the group, an sstimate of any costs to dismantle and remove
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)

)

Material accounting policias {cont'd)
Right of use assets and lease liabilities {cont'd)

Lease Liabilities

At legse commencament date, the Group measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease payments unpaid at that data, discounted usging the interest
rate irnplicitin the lease if that rate is readily avallable or the Group's incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the leasa lrability
are made Up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments based on an index or rate. Subsequent to injtial Measurement, the
liability will be reduced for payments made and increased for interest, It is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modificaticn, or If there are changes in in-
substance fixed payments, When the lease Babilily is re-measurad, the comesponding adjustment is reflected in the right-of-use asset.

Short-term leases
Tha Group has elected to account for short-term teases using the practical expedients. Instead of recognising a right-of-use asset and lsase liability, the payments
in relation to these are recognised as an expense in staterent of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost fs determined on first in, first out basis, in raspect of raw materials and stores and spares.
Cost includas fraight, taxes and duties and excludes duties and 1axes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities.

In respect of traded goods, costincludas cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition .

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and the estimatsd costs necassary to
make the sale.

Provision for slow moving/non moving inventery is estimated and made by the management, wherever necessary, based on the past experience of the Group.

Income taxes

Tax expense recognized in statement of profit and loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax except to the extent it recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current fax

Current tax comprises the tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or receivable in respact of previous years. Current tax
is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations. The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the bast estimate of the tax amount expsctad to be
paid or recsived after considering uncerainty refated to income taxes, if any. Current tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised oulside
profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assels and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and
settle the liabifity on a net hasis or simultansously,

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised in respact of temporary differences hetween carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financlal reporting purposes and comesponding
amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deduciible temporary differences to the extent it
is probable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based on the Group's forecast of future operating
results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses and specific limits an the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised daferred tax assets are re-
assessed al each reporting date and are recagnised to the extent that It has became probable that future taxable profits will allow tha deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax is not recognised for;

- tamporary differences arising on the inltial recognition of assets or lisbilities in a transaciion that affects neither accounting nor taxable prafit or loss at the time of
the transaction;

- tavahla farmnnran: difarancas atinag An tha initial reraanitinn af asacduill

Deferred tax assets and liabllities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the liability Is settled, based on
tax rates (and lax laws) that have been enacted or substantivaly enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences that
would foltow from the manner in which the Group expects, at the reporting date to recover or settls the carrying amount of its assets and Habilities.

Deferrsd tax assets and liabilities are offset only if thera is a legally enforceabls right to set off the recognised amounts, and it Is intended to realise the asset and
settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred tax relating to items recognised cutside statement of prafit and loss is recognised outside statemsnt of
profit or loss (either in ather comprehensive income or in equity).

In the situations where the Group is enfitled to a tax holiday under the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India or tax laws prevailing in the respeclive tax jurisdictions
where It operates, no deferred tax {asset or liability) is recognized in respect of timing differences which reverse during the tax holiday period, ta the extent the
Group's gross total income is subject to the deduction during the tax holiday peried. Deferred tax in respect of timing differences which ravarse after the tax holiday
period is recognised in the year in which the timing differences originate. However, the Group restricts recognition of deferred tax assets 1o the extent that it has
become reasonably certain or virtually certain, as the case may be, that sufficient future taxable income will be availabls against which such deferred tax assets
can be realized. For recognition of deferred taxes, the iming differences which originate first are considered to revarse first.

Alternate Minimum tax {'AMT'} credit is recognised as an asset only when and to the extent thers is convincing evidence that the Group will pay normal income tax
during the specifled periad. In the year in which AMT credit bacomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by way of a cradit to the
statement of profit and loss and shown as AMT credit entitlement. The Group reviews the sams at each reporting date and writes down the carrying amount of
AMT credit entitlemnent to the extent there is no longer convincing evidence to the effect that the Group will pay normal income tax during the specified periad,

Employee beneflts

Short-term employee benelfits
All employee benefits payable/avallable
wages, bonus, etc, are recognised in

months of rendering the services are classified as short term employee benefits. Benefits such as salarias,
fit and loss in the period in which the employes renders the related sarvice.

d benefits plans and defined contributlon plans as under:

<
Post-employmant benefit plans dre flassiﬁad intod

L
(9
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Material accounting policies (cont'd)
Employee benefits {cont'd)

Defined contribution plan
The Group has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund and pension scheme. The contribution made by the Group in respact of these plans are charged
to the slaterncnt of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Broup has an obligation towards gratuily, a defined benafit refirement ptan covering eligible employees. Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an
amployee will recaive on retirement is definad by reference to the employes’s length of service and last drawn salary. The liability recognised In the statsment of
financial position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation {DBO) at the reporting date. Management €stimates the DBO
annually with the assistance of independent acluaries. Actuarial gainsflosses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are inclyded in other
comprehéensive income.

Other long term benefits

The Group also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its emplayeas which ars in the naturs of long-term employse benefit plan. Liability in respect of
compensated absences becoming due and expected to availed after one year from the balance sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation
perforrmad by an independant actuary using the projected unit credit methad as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and losses arising from past experienca and
changas in actuarial assumplions are charged to statement of profit and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.

Provisions, contingent liabliitles and contingent assets

Provisions are racognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable estimats of the amount of obligation can be made
at the reporting date. These estimates are reviewed at each reporting dste and adjusted to reflect the current bast estimates. Provisions are discounted to their
present values, where the time value of money is material,

Contingent llability is disclosed for:

« Possible obligatlons which will be confirmed only by future events rot whelly within the control of the Group; or

« Present obligations arising from past events whera it is not probable that an outflow of resources will ba required to settle the obligation o a reliabla estimate of
the amount of the obligation cannot be made. '

Contingent assets are nsither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain, related asset is disclosed.

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired. K any such indication exists, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's net selling price and its value in use. If such recaverable amount of tha assat or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than Its carrying amount, the camying amount is reduced to its recaverable
amount. The reduction is treated as an impaiment loss and is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss. I at the reporting date there is an indication that if a
previously assessed impairment loss no longar exists, the recoverable amount Is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the recoverable amount, subjeci to a
maximum of depreciated historical cost.

Impalrment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss {ECL') moda) for measurement and recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL
is provided for when there has been a significant increase in credit risk and then, factors historical irends and forward locking information. An impairment loss is
recagnised either based on the 12 manths™ probability of default or lifetime probability of dafault

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires measurement of loss allowance at an armount equal to
lifetime expacted credit losses. Lifetims expected credit losses are the expected credit losses thal result from all possible default events over the expected life of
such receivables,

Other financial assals

In respect of its cther financial assets, the Group assesses if the credit risk on thoss financial assels has Increased significantly since Initial recognition. If the credit
risk has not increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses, alse at
an amaount aqual to the lifetime expected credit losses.

Foreign currency transactlons and translations

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the consolidated financial statemant of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the antity
operates {'the functional currency’). The consalidated financial statements have besn prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (Rs.' or 'INR"), which is the
Group's functional and presentaiion currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency fransactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on the foreign currency smounts at the date of the
transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at the balance sheat date are converted to functional currency using the closing rale. Non-monetary
items denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on monetary items on setifement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates different from those at which they were initially
recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss In the year in which they arise.

Financlal instruments

Inifial recognition and measureman
Financlal assets and financial lia
initially at fair value adjusted for

en the Group bacomas a party to the contractual provisions of the financial instrument and are measured
uent measurement of financlal assets and financial liabilities is described below.
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Material accounting pollcies (cont'd)
Finaracial instruments {cont'd)

Non-derivative financial assets
SubgegUent measurement

Finapecial assets carrled at amortlsed cost — A 'financial asset' js measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

+ Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely paymants of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After i nitial measurement, such financial assets are subsequantly measured at amortised cost using the effsctive interest rate {EIR) mathod.

De-recognition of financial assels
A financial assat is de-recognised when the contfractual rights to recsive cash flows from the asset have expired or the Group has transferred its rights to receive
cash Flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, afl non-darivativs financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method.

De-recognition of financial Kabilities

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancefled or expires. When an xisting financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchangs or modification is
treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference In the respective camying amounts s recognised In the
statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financlal instruments
Financial assets and financial llabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balancs sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention lo settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and seftle the liabilities simultaneously.

Fair value measurement
Fair value is the price that would ba received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an ordarly transaction batwean market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place sither:

+ In the principal market for the asset or lability; or
* In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market far the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that markst participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that
market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considars a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best
use or by selling It to ancther market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best usa.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair value, maximising the
use of relevant observable inpuls and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabflities for which fair value Is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are catsgorisad within the fair value hisrarchy, described as
follows, based on the fowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whale:

» Lavael 1 — Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
» Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest leval input that is significant to the fair valus measurement is directly or indirectly abservable
* Level 3 — Valuation techniquas for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial stetements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between
levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
each reporting perod.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Group. At each reporting date, the Group analyses the movements in the values of assets and
liabilities which are required to be r fred ar re d as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Group verifies the major inputs applied in the
latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and llabilities on the basis of the nature, charactenistics and risks of the
asset o liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explsined above.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalenis comprises cash at banks and on hand, cheques on hand and shortterm deposits with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changas in value.

Segmeant reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker is considered to be the Board of Directors of the Holding Company who makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. The business activities of the Company pradorninantly fall within a single operating segment.

Earnings per share
Basic eamings per share is calculated
weighted average number of equity s
for events including a bonus issue.

For the purpase of calculating dilutet€
of shares outstanding during the perigd:
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Material accounting policies {cont'd)

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty
The preparation of these consolidated financial statements reqguires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect the reportad
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Signiffcant management judgements
Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based on an assessment of the probability of the Group's
future taxable income against which the defarred 1ax assets can be utilised.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets — The evaluation of applicability of indicators of impairment of assets requires assessment of saveral external
and internal factors which could result in deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases — The Group evaluales if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease requires significant
judgment. The Group usss significant judgement in assessing the lease term {including anticipated renswals) and the applicable discount rate. The Group
determinas the lease term as the non-cancellable pariod of a ease, fogether with both periods covered by an opfion to extend the lease if the Group is reasonably
certain to exercise that option; and periods covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Group is reasonably certain not to exercise that option. In asaessing
whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not lo exsrciss an option to terminats a leass, it considers all relevant facts and
circumstances that create an economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercisa the option to terminate the lease, The
Group revises the lease tanm if there is a change in the non-cancellable period of a lease.

Provigions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal aspects, the Group assesses the requirement of provisions
against the outstanding contingent liabilities, Hawever, the actual future autcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimetes

Impairment of financial assets — Af each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates cbserved over expected life, existing market conditions as well as
forward looking estimates, the management assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, managemant also conslders
the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk associated with industry and country in which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation {(DBO) ~ Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation,
mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future salary increases, Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual defined
benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciablefamortisable assets - Management reviews its estimate of the usaful lves of depraciablefamortisable assets at each reporting date,
based on the expecied utility of the assats. Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic absolescence that may change the utilisation of
assels.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs attrlbutable to the acquisition or construction of a qualifying asset are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. A qualifying assel is one that
necessarily takes substantial period of time to get ready for intended use. Other borrowing costs are recognised as an expense In the perlad in which they are
incurred. Bomowing cost includes exchange diffierences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs, if any.

Mew and amended standards

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies {Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind
A3 which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. As part of the transition to Ind AS , the Company has also considered following
amendments (where relevant) in the preparation of its consolidated financial statements

Ind AS - 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

The amendments aim to help entities pravide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their
'significant’ accounting poficies with a requiremant to disclase their ‘material' accouniing policies and adding guidance on how enfities apply the concept of
materiality in making decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

The amendments have had an impact an the Company's disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the measurament, recognition or presentation of any items
in the Company's financial statements.

Ind AS - 12 Income Taxes

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable
and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments, the Company has recognised a separate deferred
tax asset in relation to its [ease liabilities and @ deferred tax liability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the
requirements of paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. The amendments had no impact on the Company’s consalidated financial
statements.

ind AS - 8 Aceounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments clarffy the distinction betwean changes In accounting estimates and changes in accounting policles and the corraction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inpuis to develop accounting estimates, The amendments had no impact on the Company’s consolidated
financial statements,

Ind AS - 16 Property, Plant end Equipment

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {"MCA"} vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to Ind AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct
from the cast of an item of proparly, plant and equipment any proceeds recelved fram selling items preduced while the enlity is preparing the asset for Its intended
use.

his space has been intentionally left biank}
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Integric Health Private Limited
Summary of significant accounting policles and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
(All amounts in T lakhs except number of shares and per share data, unjess otherwise statad)

4C Right-of-use assets

Particulars Leasehold land Buildings Equipments Vehlcles Totay
Gross carrying amount

Balance as at 1 April 2022 75200 951,36 222,07 2207 194759
Additions during the year - 149.96 - - 149,95
Adjustment for lease terminations - - - {10.85) {10,95)
Exchange differences - 37.51 12,91 8.20 58.62
Balance as at 31 March 2023 75200 1,133,383 234,98 1932  2,45493
Acquisition under business combination (refer note 46} - - 823.74 57646  1,399.20
Additions during the year - 76.24 = 242.00 318.34
Adjustment for lease terminaticns - - {8.65) (181.40) {180.05)
Exchange differences - 4.48 019 7.05 11.72
Balance as at 31 March 2024 752.00  1,219.65 1,050.26 662.43 3,684.34
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2022 15.96 304.50 84.49 844 413.38
Charge for the year 9,40 157.89 24,28 - 191,57
Adjustment for lease terminations - - - 10.88 10.88
Exchanga differences - 26.40 6.55 - 32,95
Balance as at 31 March 2023 2538 488,79 11531 19.32 648.78
Acquisition under business comhination (refer note 48) - - 49245  261.44 753.59
Charge for the year 8.45 144,19 301.45 28,36 482.49
Adjustmant for lease terminations - - (4.65) (71.84) (76.49)
Exchange differaences - 1.23 5.57 11.57 18.37
Balance as at 31 March 2024 3.8 634,21 91016 24855 1,826.73
Net block as at 31 March 2023 T726.54 650.04 119.67 - 1,496.35
Net block as at 31 March 2024 718.19 5685.44 14010 41388 1,857.81

Note:

{i) The Group has not revalued its Right-of-Use assets dudng the ysar,

{il) Refer note 41 for detafis,

{This space has baen intenifonally left biank}
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Al amay A5 1 € fahs except number of sharas and per share dala, unfess otharwise slatad)

A Othel Infangible assets

e

GCusiamer Distribution Computer

Parg#culars Trademarks rolstlanstiss Patents Natwerk software Total
Bair#nce as at 1 April 2022 5816.08 10,876.69 60.06 - 279.16 17,032,00
Befopi ns during the year - - - - 18,17 1617
Exct Hn0e differences = - - - 55.84 69.94
Balgance 23 at 31 March 2023 5,616.09 10,876.59 60.08 - 365.27 17,118.11
fsition under business cambination {rsfer nota 46) 124.95 - 1.959.30 851329 1.79 11,599.25
Aadi tons durng the year - = 62.06 - 10442 167.28
Exci-13nga difarences 10.00 18.00 (51.70) 16.00 (61-05) {68.75)
Balg Moo as at 31 March 2024 5,951.04 10,894.69 2,030.52 9,529.21 410.43 28,815.89
AcceMulated amortisation
Bala Nc& 25 at 1 April 2022 1,686.98 2,414.92 60,06 - 166.55 4,030.51
Char9¢ for the year 581,30 72512 . - 46.44 1,352.86
Exchyge differancas (20,98) = - = 6781 4693
Bals Née as at 31 March 2023 2,249.30 2,840.04 60.06 - 230.80 5,430.30
Agqualsilan under business combinalion {refer nobs 46) - - - - 054 0.94
Charge lor tha year . 5680.70 72594 413.40 17581 13777 2,093.62
Excte2nge diffarences £.00 16.00 (50,69} {16.86) (62.38) {105.93)
Bala rica ag at 31 March 2024 2,838.00 3,581.98 422,77 158,95 357.23 7,358.83
Net kalock as at 31 March 2023 3,566.79 8,036.65 - - 8437 11,687.29
Net tatock as at 31 March 2024 3,113.04 312 1460735 §,370.26 532¢ 21,456.96
Goodwill
Parti culars Total
Gros S carrying amount
Balarxa as at 1 Apeil 2022 27,168.05
Exchange diferancas A63a
Balance as at 31 March 2023 27,204.43
Additions 749580
Exchangs differences 11.92
Baflarca as at 31 March 2024 34,712,145
lmpafrmant
Balarice as at 1 April 2022 241,36
Impairment loss during the year 264,23
Balarsee as at 31 March 2023 47569
Impalment loss during the yoar 30237
Bafaryce as at 31 March 2024 778.06
Glosing balance as at 31 March 2023 26,720.74
Clesing balance as at 31 March 2024 33,934.09

Mote {i]: Impairment testing of gaadwill
For the purpose of impairment lesting, gaodwill is allocated 1o a cash generating unit, representing the lawast level with the Group al which goodwill is mondlared for internal managemenl purposas and
which i3 not higher than the Group's operaling segment,

The carrying amount of goodwill was allacated ta the following Cash Generating Units 'CGUs":

A= at Az at

31 March 2824 31 March 2023

Artic GmbH* - 32403
Transiumina GmbH 163,54 163.09
Translumina Therapautics LLP 28,241.82 26,241,862
Blue Medical Devices B W, 4 2,345.15 -
LAMED VertriebsgesallschaR » 5,181 78 -

3353309  26,728.0%
During the year ended 31 March 2024 and 2023, the managament has reviewed the camying value of its goodwill against the recoverable amaunls of all the GGUs identified above, using inlemal and
axternal information available. Tha recoverable amaunt of gaodwill far impai 1esling i= determined as its valus In use fexcept Arctic GmbH}), which is calculated using discounted prajected cash flows
based an management appraved financial budgets and faraeasts
“The recaverable amount of goodwll is determined al net asset value which was deleminad 16 be lower Ihan The carrying amaunt of goadwlll due Lo the closure of operati rdingly has

recardad an impairment of % 324.03 lakhs in the consolidaled stalsment of profil and loss. Further, during Ihe previous yaar ended 31 March 2023 managamant has recordad an impalrmeni kss ¥ 264,33
lakhs Under excaptionsl dlems (Refer note 33) In the consolidated slalement of profit and loss calculated using value in uss, which is calculaled using discounted projectsd cash flows based an
management approvad financial budgels and forecasls.

*Duiing the cument year, the Company has acquired two CGU entilies during the year, namsly Lamed Vertriehsgeselischaft and Blue Medical Devices B.Y. an which goadwill of € 5137.63 lakhs and
2,358.12 lakhs B genarated respaclively. As at 31 March 2024, The group has restated the amount of goodwdll a5 per the requiramenl of IND A4S 21 “The affect of changes in forelgn axchangs rates™,

Fallowling Kay i were iderad while psrforming | f ¢ testing of goodwill:

Assumptions Approach used to determine tha assumptlon

Revenua growth rate Annual growth rate over the forecast period based on past performance and management's fulure expectalions,
Discount rale Weighled Average Cosl of Capital (WACG) computed as per Capilal Asset Pricing Model (CAPM} model,

Terminal h rate Thia reflzcls the estimated sustainable long-term grawth rale of the respeciive company which is in ne with the long-tenm
ominal growth ra average growth rates of the respective industry and counlry in which the enlity cparates.

The paried of projectian is based on the budgets/ forecasts and cover a maximum perlod of lve yaars Ihal is considerad

MNurnber of years for which cash flows were considared appropriate as par mansgamanl,

Summary of key assumptions used by the management:

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Bius Madical LAMED T I T luml Tr il Ti LT
Assumption Devices B.V. |Varrishsgesellschaft|  GmbH | Th jes LLp|  Artle GmbH GmbH | Th tigs LLP
Revarue growih rate 14.00%-16.00% 525% 4.40%-7.20% 6.00%-15.20% B.00%-10.00%| 8.90%-10.50% 7.00%-16.00%
Discount rata 20.59% 12,34% 22.00% 16.00% 15.00% 12,00% 17 .50%
Terminal growth rate 2.50% 2.50% 2.50% - 4.00% 0.90% 0.90% 4008
|Number of vears for which cash flows were considared ra 1 year 5 yaars £ years| S yuars 5 years| 5 vears|
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5¢ _Intanglble assats under devaloy

Partictlars

As at 1 April 2022
Addiions during tha year
Capitalised during the year

Additions during the year
Capitalised during the year
Exchanga diference

Az at 31 Margh 2024

Notes *

§63.28

(I} intangible assets undar

ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024

Particulars

More than 3
Lesgs than 1 vear 1-2 years 2.3 years Vears

Projects under development

a63.28
863.28

£53,28
863,28

ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

{¥ mtanglbls assets undar d

Particulare

Mora than 3

years Tatal

Leoss than 1 year 12 yaars 2-3 years

Projzcts under development

During the turrent year, the Campany

incurmed and caj d ars glven halow:

has incurred directly attibutsble sxpenditure related 1o Intangible asset under development. Details af

Particulars

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Change In inventary due to lastiing expanses

Employee banafits expensa
Other expansas
Total

29226 =
{200.48)
960.88

5156

Thers are no projects whose

Jed its cost o d 1 its orlginal plan,

orhas

p

[Thiz space has bean intantionaty laf tlank}
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Leansqyon cument

. As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Marcr, 2025
Loan tg cathers 30,00 &7.00
Less: Apawanca for bad and doubtfl faans {30.00) .

8 —E
Cthar firrencial assats - nen current
As at As at
Fationtars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Security dapdsiis 214,02 10234
Fixed deposita wilh baniks with malunity period of mors than 12 manths 52461 53126
743.63 633.60
* Wincludes foed depasils wilh & carrying amount of  89.23 (31 March 2023: ¥ Nij are pledgad far eamest money depasils for various lenders.
Other financial assats-currant
Parti ra Az at Ag at
aficula 31 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Inlzrest accruied bul net dus on deposits 210.48 20.46
Sarurty ceposils 310 6473
Olher recoverable 441.83 160.04
Fixed deposits wilh criginal malurity move than 12 menths but remalning malurity less than 12 months 2,784 82 49574
3,440.23 F4197
Daferrad tay assats (naf]*
As at Ag at

Particulars

31 March 2024 31 March 2022

Defarred tax assets (not)*
Deferred tax asget arising on account af :

f for empHoy 10z 7851
Expecled cradit loss 15125 2rear
Proyision for customar schames 1.239.21 980.37
Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 1.549.74 1,0101
Right of rse aseet and lease liabiiies 20.78 21.76
Allowanca far Impairment on financial assets 2067 10345
Unrealised gain on sale of invantary 156.62 -
Daferrad tax lfabifity arlsing on account of =
Timing difference of depraciation and amorisation 24884 248493
Exchange differences 0.07 -
3,002 57 2.207.04
Deferrad tax Habilities {net)*
Dafarrad tax assat arising on agcount of :
Pravislon for employee benedits 504 1.81
Business losses and unabsarhad depredation - G664
Right of use assel and lsase kabilites. 265 7.80
Deferrad tax Habllity arising on account of :
Timing differencs of deprecialfon and amortisation 166,18 11427
Intangible assals {rademark and cuslomer relationships) acquired under busi bi (refer nols 34) 5.466.58 2.900.28
5,625,086 2,998.28
*Refer note 34,
Non-current tax assats (net}
Agat As at
e 1 Morch 2024 31 March 2023
Prepaid meome taxes (nat of provisions) 4432 127.28
38.32 127,28
Other non=currant assats
Parlicutars LI LI
31 March 2024 31 Margh 2023
Capital advancas 614.60 351.08
Dapasils urder protest (refer nole 42¢b)} 17211 2N
Bakincs with govemment authorities G70.83 -
Prepald expenses = 6.27
Export incentive recelvable - 27492
1,303,414 412.98
Other cutrent assats
As at As ot
Rafticulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advancas 1o supphers 53238 403.99
Advances o employess 20274 8198
Prepaid expenses 34844 88.40
Balancs with govemment aulhoritias 4R8.62 51918
Export incenlive raceivable 14867 000
Others §0.74 177.43

1,831.63 1,580.98
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Sumiary of mastenal accounting policies and olher axplanatory infonnation for the year anded 31 March 2024
(AR aMownts in ¥ kNS axcepl number of shares and per share date, unfess otherwise slaled)

11 Invenigries

. As at As at
Particufars 39 March 2024 51 Mares, 2023
Raw mat2nels and components 5,014,711 4,534 88
Work-in-gfogress 1.935.45 1,384 80
Finished 900ds (refer nols below} 292202 4,758.39
Tradad goods 4,814.95 2,849.20

1568713 13,627.08
Motas:
Includes expecled retums from customars amounting to T 266,96 (31 March 2022; € 267 1)
The cost of Inventories recognlsed as an expense during the year ar discleed In Nale 28, 27, 26 and 33,
12 Trade raceheablas
As at Ag at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Unsacurad, considered goad 2902840 45,056,083
Unsecured, considerad impaired 538.60 117885
29,567.69 26,234,88
Impaimment allowance
U d, congldered impaired {536,558 1,178.85)
29102&10 25,056.03
Trade receivable ageing schedula as at 31 March 2024
Qutistanding for following perlods fram dua date of payment
SHo Particulers Unbllled Not dua LESSINNG g months-t year 32 years 23years  Morathan3years  Total
Undi d brade recelvablk
1 congidared goud = 16,498 .56 10,428.28 1.568.31 470.77 3219 = 29,029.10
2 which have significant Incraase |n credil sk = 2 2 = = - - S
3 craditimpaired = 252 15,05 1058 80.58 41,50 359,35 534.59
Disputad trade receivables:
1 considered pood - = - - - - .
2 which have slgniflcant incraass in cradit sk - - = - - - e -
3 eradit impaired - - - - - - - -
Total - 16,501.08 10,443.33 1,608.40 551.35 73.69 388.35 29 567.69
Trade recaivable agelng schedule as at 31 March 2023
[=] nding for following p is from due date of pay
SMa Particulars Unbilled Not dua Less N6 G months-1yaar 12 yoars 28years  Morethan3years  Total
Undisputed trade bl
1 considered good - 16.059.24 8,336.07 1.650.92 - - - 25,086.03
2 which hava slgnifican] incresse in cradit risk = = . g - - ] -
3 credlt impaired - 018 347 289.22 282,00 30324 29037 1,478.85
Disputed trade recaivables: -
1 considered good - = = B 5 - F
2 which have significant increase in credil risk - - - - - - - -
3 cradit Impairad = - - g = - - -
Total - 15,059.38 B,339.94 1 .94_9.14 292.80 30324 290.37 26,234.88
Note:
(1} No trade racelvablas are due from direclors or ather officers. of the Company either saverally or jaintly with any other parson. Trads receivables are non-Jnterest bearng.
13 Cash and cash I
As at Ag at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash on hand 7.76 1058
Balance with banks In currenl accounls 1,458.65 1.916.06
Depasits with original malurity of kess than three months. 27.00 24.81
1,473.41 1,951.46
14  Other bank balances
Asat Asat
Partlculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed depasits with banks with maturity pasiod of more Than 3 moning Bul jass [han 12 manths® 3.684.97 0245
Fixed daposits with banks wilh matwily peried of mora than 12 months* = 15.33
Margn monay deposita* 580 79.39
3.671.87 89716

* Includes fixed deposits pledged wilh banks a5 margin monay for i

ing to ® 31,11 lakhs (31 March 2023 : T 5 jakhs ) and T 1,980,423 Takhs (31 March 2023 2 §78.44

of bank g

lakhes) pledged agalnst bank guarantas issued Lo custom authorities for the pupose of EPCG llcense

“* Margtn monay depasits with a carrying amount of € 6.90 (39 March 2023:  36.98) are pledged far samest maney deposils for varous tenders.
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15 _Eﬂmghala capita

As at 31 March 2024 As 2131 March 2023
P s
- articuj HNumber Amount Number Amaynt
i Authorjgeed
Equity sF13res of £ 10 each with voting rnighls 2,600,000 200.00 2,000,000 200,00
2,000,000 200.00 2,000,000 200,00
il Jssued, subscribed and fully paid up
Equity shiafe capital of face value of T 10 each 1LG70.078 167.01 1,670,078 16701
1,670,078 167.01 1,670,078 167.01
il Reconci Niallen of number of aquity shares ding at tha bayginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 Marsh 2024 As 3t 31 March 2023
] —
Particute Number Amount Number Amaunt
Balanca &l be baginning of the year 1,670.078 167.01 1,670,078 167.01
Balance Atthe and of the yaar 1,670,078 167.01 1,670,078 167.01
iv  Rights, praf: and restricti hed to equity sharas
The Hakting Company has anly one class of equity shares having Ihe par value of T 10/ per share. Each halar of equity share is entilled to one vote per share, The Campany declares and pays
dividend in Indian rupees, Al sharaholders are equally entilied to dividends,
As par the Artickes of Associalion {the "AOAY of the Holding Company, In the avent of b L issolution or admission of winding up procesdings by an appropriabe court or tibunal, eilher voluntary
or inygluritary, the Evercurs Holding Pte Limlled {the ‘Investor') shall have the right in preferenoe 1o any other shareholders of the Holding Company to require the Holding Company, and Mr. Gunmi
Singh Chugh and Ms, Punita Sharma {the "Foundars') {on a reasonable sfforls basis) to ensure thal the liquidator is appointed o liquidate the Holding Company in order Lo distribule the procaeds fram
the Equldation of the Holding Company, which lns afler discharging the [ al the Holding Company to the kwvestar, such thal the | L ives the Liguidation Price (a5 definad in the
ADA) subject ks applicatlke laws, In priority over any amounts received by any other axlsling sharshalders of the Halding Company.
Except with L prior wrilen consent of the Investor, the Feunders shall not lransfer any of the securilies of tha Holding Company held by them to any parsan, meluding ipelito? H. . lhe shares
hald by the Investor shall, subyect 10 the ransferes executing a Deed of Ad . be fraaly ferable withaul any ions of any naturs whatsoever.
v Detalls of shareholder holding more than 5% share capltal®
Mame of the equity shareholders As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Numb % Numbar %
Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh 334,016 20% 334,018 20%
Ms. Punita Sharma 3016 20% J34,M6 20%
Evercurs Holding Fle Limitzd (Ullimala Holding Company} 1,002,046 60% 1,002,046 60%
*As per records of tha Holding Company, including its reglsier of shareholders/members and other d inns ived from sharehalders ragarding benelicial inlerast, the above sharehalding
represants bath lagal and baneficlal ownerships of sharas.
Hate:
1. Thera is na changs in the promaters sharehokding in the year sndad 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
2P ters' for tha purpose of this diack means p a9 deflned under section 2(63) of Companies Az1, 2013,
vi  Aggragate numbar and clags of sharas zllotted as fully paid up pursuant to {s] without t being ivad in cash, by way af honus shares and sharas bought back far the
parad of 5 yaars [ diately pr iing the bal: shaat date
Particutars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity shave allotted 23 fully paid banug shares by capitalisatian of securitizs premium {refer nole {i) below) 642 647
Equily share allotied as fully paid up p to conlract far |deration olher lhan cash:
- for loan agsignment {refer note (i} balow) 3407 307
- for purchase ofinterest in Translumina Therapeautics LLP {refer note (lil} below) 6.84 684
16.33 16,33
Notes:
(i} On 23 April 2018, the Holding Company had kssued §41,268 bonus equity shares. of face value 10 2ach bo e shareholders whose names appeared in the register of membersibeneficial owners
posliion as on the record date, i<, 22 April 2019 In proportion of 0.84 equity share for every 1 equity share of the Holding Company held,
{il) The Holding Company had enlered into a Share Subscriplion and Loan Assignment Agreament {LAA') on 13 December 2018 with Translumina Therapsutics LLP {'TTLLF), Mr. Gurmil Singh Chugh
and ks. Punila Sharma {'Assignors’). Pursuant to the sald agreement and a further addendum ko the agreemant datad 17 Apl 2019, the Holding Gompany has issued 307,112 equity sharss of face
value T 10 each at a premium of £ 5,558 per equity share amounting to & 17,100.0¢ lakhs on 17 Aprlt 2019 la the Assignors against assignment of all the rights, interest and obligation of the Assignars in
connaclion with the loan amaunt advanced by tha Asslgnors Lo the TTLLP. The assignad kan was led inlo i in TTLLP a5 mulually agread bety the pariies, p Lo tarms of the
LAA,
(i) The Haling Company had entered into a Share Subscriplion and Parnership ntsrest Purchase Agreement (PIPAT on 13 D har 2018 with Tr ina Therapautics LLP CTTLP), Mr. Gurmil
Singh Chugh and Ms. Punita Shama (erstwhile Fariners of TTLLF), Fursuant 1o the seid agraement and a furlher addendum ta the agresment dated 17 Apeil 2019, he Company has issusd 684,158
equily shares of face value ¥ 10 each ata premium of ¥ 5,554 par equily share amaunling to % 38,093.92 lekhs on 18 Aprl 201% 1o the amtwhile parners of TTLLF against purchase of 99% inlarest In
TTLLR.
{iv) Purzuanl to 2 Share Purct Aqg it {"SPA’) beh the Halding Company, Promoters of the Holding Company {Mr. Gurmeet Singh Chugh and Ms. Punila Shanna) and Evercure Halding Pre,
Lirnilad {Invasia), Ine Promaters have sold 80% their aquity sharernldmg o the Invastar on 10 May 2019,
(v} With respact to disc relaled to Isory oo p shares, refer nole 214
16 _Other ayuity
. As al As at
fagicras 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sacuriies premium 56,527 .92 56,527,082
Ratained eamings 4.073.96 4,726.92
Olher comprahensive income {28.46) a0
Foreign cumency lrans|ation reserva 195,98 19325
7% Compuisory Comvertible Prelerence Shares (Equity Component) (Refer note 214) 6,346.52 -
67,116.82 £1,465.10

Natura and purpose of other reserves

Sacurilies premium
Securilies premlum rep ts premium recelved on issue of shares, The amount ks ulilised In accord: with tha provigions of the Companies Act 2013,

Retainad esmings
Relained eamings are used lo racord the profitiloss) earned by the Company. The reserve is ulflised in accardance wilh the provistons of the Act.
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16

174

17{a)

17{b}
i

178

Other eeaity (cont'd)

Forsign <Ufrency translation reserve

Exchangl® diffsrences arising an translation of Ihe foreign operalions are recognised in ather comprehensive Income as daseribed in [ng pokicy and act laled In 3 separate reserva within
equity, TTe cumulstive amount is reclassified to profit or loss when the Group dispoze or partially dispase off its inlerest in 8 foreign operation through sale, liquidation, repayment af share capital o
abandaruMENt of 2ll, or part of. that entiy,

7% Comwpulzory Convartible Preference Shares [Equity Componenl)
Compylsary Convertible Praference Shares (Equity Gomponent) represents the fak value of financlal Nability on account of nel praceeds recelved from Ihe Issue of Compulsary Canvertible Prefarance
Shares, Refer nate 214 for more detalls

Barrowi Ngs-nan gurrant
Ax at As at
eI 3 March2024 31 March 2023
Secured
Wahicla le2an from banks (Refer nede 17 () and 17 {bifiiy) 74,38 106 86
Term koa N from banks {Refer note 17 (2) and 17 (b)(i) below) 11,609.24 2022146
Amoynt cisclosed under the head *Borrawings - curenl” (rfer note 178) (2781.22) (50081
5,802.40 1,620.11
Tetms and gonditlons of term loans are as fallows
Name of lander Rate of Temms of repayment Data of maturity As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
interagt per Ron Currant Hon-surment Currant
Citi Bank 7A5% 36 equal monihly inslaimenls 30-Mar-27 120,00 60,00 150.00 5000
Citi Bank 8.60% 32 aqual monthly instalments 26-0cl-26 353.44 22322 - -
Cli Bank 8.50%  [43 equal monlhly instakments 26-Sap-27 282 62 1301 - .
CIi Bank 6.50% 48 aqual manthly nstalments 26-Fab-28 240.4¢ 8247 = -
. |60 equal monthly instaiments of 2
ICIC| Bark 10.35% 18,41 Jakh lakhs sach®® 10-Mov-26 = - 589.01 220 92
. G0 squal manthly instalments of |
1CICI Bank 2.6% 6.96 fokh lakhs aach* A0-Sap-27 - - 26833 FEM
N 80 equal monthly instalmants of ¥
ICICI Bank 9.6% 4.05 |skh lakhs aach™ 04-Feb-22 - - 22368 6775
G0 egual monthly instaiments of T
HDFC Bank 8400 5,40 fakh lakhs each™ 07-Fab-28 H742 1572 83.0¢ 18,78
60 aqual monthly inatalments of 3
Hotak Bank B.40% 1,24 lakh Iakhs each®* 01-Juk26 17.86 13.04 3oz 13.04
Credil Burtual 0.47% ELIR. 19,140 a1 0.97% p.a rapayabl 10-Jun-25 - - 79 568
Cradit Mutual 10.80% EUR 23,770 a1 10.80% pa 10-How-25 - < 10.22 504
Credit Mustual 257% EUR 24,400 at 2.57% repayable in 10-Haw-25 - - 1232 715
Sparkasse Zollemal 1.60% 43 equal quarterly Inslaimants of 30-3ap-31 - - 225.2¢ 2613
HDFG Bank i R e 24-hp28) 645140 1,994.98 z g
HDFC Bank 3M21E:r;:2r + |10 Half ysary instaiment 21-Sep-28 1,128.30 28971
Tatal B, 302 40 278122 1,830,141 500,91
Sacurity of loans
The Lemm l9ans are secured by the way of follswmng :
Hame of lendar Tams of Security
Cli Bank 1) First pari passu charga on present and fulure trade recelvables of Transheakth Private Limited. {Group company)

1) First pari passu charge an curahl asset and exclusive charge on movable fixed assets and fixed deposil of T Milin 31 March 2024 (F 459.5 lacs

ICICt Bank in 31 March 2023} of the Translumina Therapeulicis LLP.
HOFC Bark 1} Cash collateral 15% of sanctianed Kmit, inventory and trade raceivables of Ihe Translumina Therapaulics LLP,
2] Equily shares undar Ren of the Translumita Therapeutics LEP.
Kotak Bank Pari pagsy charge on vehicles financed fram Kotak bank by Group Company- T lurmina Ther ics LLP.
Gradit Mutual Pan passu charga on vehiclas financed from Credit Mutual by Group Company- Transluming France.,
Sparkassa Zollamalb ﬁ;ﬂgrrnl;iﬂg charge In favour o{ Spaﬂcasse a talal of T 296 47 lakhs (Euros 3.3 lakhs) on Ihe object Lotzenacker/Linseed Flat.f 240, Hechingen by
Mota : The Group has satisfied all Ihe o p ibed In terms of bomowings as on 31 March 2024,
() _The wehicls loans are secured by first charge by way of hypothecation aver vehicles financed by various banks far vehiclas :
Prncinal Amaunt Amaount Ramaining Remaimr!u
Particulars e ]’.‘l1 ding Data of laan Instal Iments Rate of interest
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
HOFG Bank 50,00 505 1648 7 August 2019 17 8.90%
Kotak Mahindra Bank 31.45 1545 22,03 13 Augusl 2021 2? ¥ T.35%
Kolak Mahlndra Bank 3145 1545 2203 13 August 2021 27 3 T.35%
HOFC Bank 7.97 475 6.25 4 Decambar 2021 kx 45 T50%
HOFC Bank 7.47 475 625 4 Dacembar 2021 33 45 T.50%
HODFC Bank 16.06 10.83 1376 ¢ July 2022 an 50 7.30%
HOFC Bank 23.00 18.09 2206 5 January 2023 45 57 7.50%
Total 167,30 74.38 108.86
Borrowings- current
% Al As at

AL 31 Warch 2024 31 March 2023
Sacurad

Buyers credit frefer note (a) below) 2.077.26 291303

Foreign currency working capilal loan (refer nota (b) and {d) betaw) 251832 1,720.76

Cash Cradit Limit from bank {refar note (a} Lo {f) balgw) 559911 4,020.36

Curmant malurity of kang term borowings 2.761.22 500.91
Unsecured
Loan from direclars {refar note {g) and (h} balow) - 1,851.26

12,874.91 11.006.32
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{Al amounts in 7 takhs except number of shares and par shars date, unless otherwise stafod)

(a)

{8l

()

{d}

o]
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LI}
18A

188

194

Bomawings {contd)

Hates;

Qna of tie subsidiary (Transiumina Therapeutics LLP} has avalled working caplia| Tacifity from HDFG Bank Limited with a sanctionad limit of ¥8,172.78 lakhs with Cash Cradil Facility having SUb, gt of
T2,000 |gi%is for buyer credit facilly al Ihe rate of interas] of 6.61% p.a. and 10.23% p.a. respeclively, repayable on demand

The gutstanding balance of Cash Credit and buyer cradit as on 31 March 2024 is € 1,333.14 lakhs {21 March 2023; ¥ 1,867.65 lakhs) and ¥ 2,077.28 lakhs (31 March 2023: 2,913 03 lakhs)
Primary Security : Fixed Daposits, Inventory and trade recelvables of group pany Translumina Therepeutics LLP,

Colateral Securlty : Equitable Mortgage over balow propeny siluated al F-34 , Selaqui, ndusirial Area, Dehradun 2480040 mwned by Transhealth Private Limiled

Ons uf Ihe subsidiary (Translumina Therapeutics LLP) has availed working capital faclity from Gl bank Limiled with sanclioned (il of ¥ 5,000.00 |akhs along with having sub-imit facility of tarsign
currenct working capital foan In foreign currancy of 2 4,000 lekhs at the rate of intares! of 9.50% p.a. and 6 48% p.a. respeclively, repayable on demand

The outstanding balance of Cash Credil and fareign currency working capital lan a5 on 31 March 2024 is ® 2,050,561 lakhe ang ¥ 1,978.68 lakhs (31 March 2022 T 1,423.98 lakhs and ¥ 1,72076
lakhs),
Primary Sacurity : Firsl pani passu ¢harge on Lhe follawing ©

1} Pragent and fulwe Irade ivables of the Ty Therapaulics LLP.
2} Prasepl and fulure Invenlory of tha Tranalumine Tharapeulics LLP,
3} Pragenl and future movable property, plant and equi ts of Ihe Translumlng Therapeutics LLP.

Collateral Security:

Exchugive charge on Indusiral property located at Plol no -12, Pharma Cily, Selaqul Industrial Area, Dehradun, 248011 guned hy Transhealth Pyt Lid.
One of the subsidiary (Transhumina Therapeutics LLP) has avalled Cash Cradit facility from ICIC] bank Limiled with sanctioned kmit of #1,000,00 Iakhs along wilh having sub-Emit taciity of warking
caphlal demand loan (WCOL) of € 1.000.00 lakhs al the interest rale of 9.80% each.

The oulstanding balance of Cash Credit as on 31 March 2024 is ¥ 112.64 lakhs {31 March 2023: #284,92 [akhs) and T Nill respectivety.
Primary Securlty: Fixed Deposits, Currenl assets and movable prapeny, plant and equipments of group company Tranzsluming Therapeutics LLP

One of the subsidiary {Transheakth Privata Limlted) is having Cash credit imil Sanction of ¥ 1,500 Lakhs, Fareign currancy working capital llmil sanclion of ¥ 536.40 lakhs (Euro & lakhs) and 8 term |aan
Sanction of £ 2,119 Lakhs fram CITI bank, cut of which Company has oulstanding balance of T 883.00 Lakhs for cash credil, T 532.64 lakhs For forsign currancy working capital limit and ¥ 1.475.11
Lakhs for Term Loan (31 March 2023 Company is having working capital imit sanction of 2 502 lakhs oul of which balance aulstanding is % 381.22 lakhs and term koan sanctisn of ¥ 2,918 lakhs out of
which balance outstanding is T 1,651.58 Jakhs is autstanding)

Primary Security :

Cill Bank

1) Exchusive charge on movable property. planl and squlp of the Trangheallh Privale Limited by term [oan procseds,
2)Fwrsl pari passu ¢harge on present and fulurs lrade i of Iha Transheallh Private Limited.

KHC) Bank

1} First pari passu charge on currenl assel of the Transhealth Private Limiled, exclusive charge on ble property, plant and equipment and fixed doposits.

Halding Company had availed working capkal facility from HOFC Bank of ¥ 200 [akhs (31 March 2023; Ml at the rate of interest af 10,20% p.a. and Term loan sanclion of € 1,120 fakhs {31 March 2023
NIl at the rate of inlerest of 6.50% p.a.

Tha outstanding halance of Cash Credil as on 31 March 2024 is ® 53,56 lakhs {31 March 2023: Nill) and lerm laans as on 31 March 2024 is % Mil (31 March 2023: Nil)
Primary Security : Cash collateral 15% of limir, nvantary and Irade receivables of the Holding Company.

Guarantaas:
Equily Shares under llen are charged to bank undar Een

The Company had avallable working capltal facility fram Kotak Mahindra Bank ® 200 Lakhs (Previous Year 31 March 2023 ® 200 lakhs] at the rate of interest of 3.50% p.a,
The cutstanding balanca of Cash Credil as an 31 March 2024 is ¥ 164.76 |akhs (31 March 2023: 62.52 lakhs)
Primary Security ; Fixed Dapasits are lisn marksd &f the Holding Company “Intergis Health Piivals Limited).

In the previous year FY 2022-23 Ona of the ifiary (T) lumina Therapeutics LLP] has taken loan amounling to ¥ 400 kakhs from Ms, Punlla Sharma (destgnated partner] for a peniod of 3 maniths al
an interes! rate of 8% p.a. The closing balance of such loan as on 31 March 2024 is M {as on 31 March 2023 P401.26 lakhs)

During he: currant year, Company has repaid tha unsecurad laan from related party (Ms. Punits Shanma), previous year oulztanding as on 21 March 2022 ® 1,851.26 |akhs,

Leasa liabilitles-non current
As at As at
Gamiculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Lease liabiilties (rafer note 41) 853.63 74032
853.93 F40.32
Lease Nabilities - current
i Asz at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
“Laase liabiites (feler note 41) 51938 174.63
519,38 174.63
Provizions - nan-currant
. As at As ot
Raricilars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Employeas hanefits SeTac
Graluity” 260,27 20741
Compansalad absences 4.39 2041
264 .66 22782

* Refer note 40 for details




Integris Haalty, Private Limited
S ting policies and other axplanatory information For the year ended 31 March 2034

¥ of material

AN amonnig iy & ks axcepl number of shares and per share data, oniss othenvise stajad]

ne -
198 _ifﬂ@_? current

20

A

- As at
Partjcy1 ars 31 March 2024 31 M:.-:: tzm
Emplayees banefits
Grapslty* 22,02 645
Gomprensaled sbsences 21292 196,23
Other prov'lslons
Provision for aales relum 809.24 81187
Proyission for royallyeommission 6746 =
Proyizston for discount 2,770.97 7,63091
Olhers* 211.32 .
10,094.83 8.645.36
* Refer pole 40 lor delalks
*ncludes Provision for pay T 14459 lakhs {refer nole 33}
Movement in others provisions during the year
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 Margh 2023
Praovision far sales retum
Opaning balance 311467 Bi1.43
Addilionss during the year 40924 811567
Amount vilised during the year 81167 11,43
Cloging balance 809.24 811.67
Pravislon far discount
Opaning balance 76209 4,351.22
Amount Lililsed durng tha year {5,438.48) {2,15079)
Addilions during the year 6,638:44 S5,439.48
Closing balance 8 77087 7,63091
Trade payables
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Due to Micra and small enterprises 4183 an6.73
Due 1o others 581325 541810
585508 5,518,831
Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
Qutstanding for followlng pertods from due date of payment
Particulars Unbilted Not due Lo o ©  Gmonths-t year 12 years 23years  Morethan3yeors  Total
Undisputed trade payables:
a) Micro enterprises and small enlerprises - 38.58 270 0.38 0A7 = = 41.83
b} athers 204,45 387058 50092 114301 - 8526 581325
Disputad trada payables:
a) Micro enlerprises and small snterphises - - - = = -
b1} others - - - - - = =
Total 204.48 3,809.16 512.62 1,143.38 047 85.26 - 5,855,08
Trade payables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023
Qutstanding for 1g perlods from due data of payment
Particulars Unbilled Not due LersanS  gmonthatyear 12 years 23years  Morethandyears  Total
urdispuled trade payablas: —_————
a} Micro enterprizes and smallenterprises = 70.62 2893 UNE] - - = 9973
b} athers 42470 276101 221437 1428 14.74 - . 5,419.10
Disputed trada payables:
a) Micra and ] i - - - = - =
b)Y cthars - - - - - - -
Total 424.70 2,821,63 2,243.30 14.46 14.74 - = 5,518 83
Note: The Group does not have any dispuled Irade payables as on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023,
©Other financial liabilitias-non current
Asat As at
Ganticulars 31 March 2024 31 Margh 2023
Ratantion manay 2037 4.40
Employes related payablas 17538 5799
Contigent conglderalon (Refer nota 46) 18392 -
7% Compulsory G Prafe Shares (CCPS) of 78,800 each /- fully paid-up{Refer nota 1 bakaw) 835334 -
Stalutery dues payable 208.91 -
881182 262.39




Integris Hoakp fPrivate Lim|ted
Summary of matenial ti Neies and other expl, Infe ion for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AN amounts i & kkhs except number of sharas and per share dara. Liless otharwise sialed)

21A  Other friancial abilitiés-non current {cont'd}

il

Note 1:

As at As o
Convartible Prefarance Shares 31 March 2024 31 Maren 2023
7% campulsary convertible praferanca shares (COPS) of 8,600 aach k- fully paid-up" 13,880.84 =
Tranzaction costs (126.00} -
Net prog @eds from jssue of CCPS 13,673.94 -
Uahiflty gomponent al dale of issue {nat of Iransaction costa) 7.52742 .
Amount ¢lassifiad as aquily 5,346.52 N
Libikty ompanent at date of issus {net of Iransaction costs) 7.527 42 -
Inleres| sharged (using sffective Interest rate) 52592 -
Carrying amount of liabTlity component 835534 =
* On 03 May 2023 Company has issued 1,62.7%0 7.00% fully and comp it f h ) {("GCPS™) al an issus price of Rs. A,600 per share amounting lo Rs. 13,998.94 for cash

at par, on a flghts basis Lo the eliglble 2quity shareholdars of The Cornpany GCPS ara comerll:le Into aquity shares after a peried of 10 years at a fair market value ot the time of convarsion.
Altemalively, 2l the opion of tha Company CCPS can be converted prior to expiny of 10 years at the air markeal value of equily shaves prevadling as on the date of conversion. The shares were lssued
on a rights basis lo the Efigible Equity Sharsholden(s) an the basis of their propartion of the equily shareholding, The net proceeds received from the lssue of the GCPS have been epilt between the
financial ligbility element and an aquily companent, representing tha fair value of he fnancial liabAity.

The equity companenl of Rs, §,346,52 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. Nil) has been credited to he other equity,

The Interest is calculaled by applying an effective interest rale of of 12.17% to tha liablity componsnt for Ihe 10 years period sinca Ihe preference shares were issuad. The Bability companent is
megsured al amonised cost, The difference between the carmying amount of the liabllly componant on Ihe date of issue and the amount raported ss al 31 March 2024, represants the affective inlerest
rate legs interest paid to that dats amounting lo Rs. A25.92 lakhs.

Authorisad

T Compulsary Converlible Prefarence Sharas of 78,600 each 162,780 13.999.94 - -
162,790 13,999.84 - =

fssued, subscribed and fully paid up

% Compulsory Convertible Praference Shares of 28,600 each 162,790 13.999.94 - -
162,790 13,969.34 = =

22 (liatton of bar of pref. shares ding at the baginning and at the and of the year

Balange al tha bagmning of the year - - - -

Add: Fraference shares issued during the year 162,780 13,999.84 - =

Batance at tha end of the year 182,790 13,390 84 - -

Rights, preferances and restrictions attached to pulsory rtible prafi shares

G Isarily ¢ {0 kati rence shares ware issued at par in May 2023 and each share is convariible into aquity shares after a period of 10 years and can be comvarted at any fime prior |
years at Ina optisn of Ihe Company, converuble at the Falr Market Value of aquily sharas prevailing as on Ihe date of conversion. The holders of thess shares ars entllled to fixed cumwlative dividend at |
on the capital for the time being paid-up theraon and shall be payabla, as and when declarad by the Board. In the evant of winding up, prefarsnce sharsholders have a preferentlal fight aver aquity share
repaid to the extent of caplial paid-up and dividend in amrears on such shares,

Excepl with the prior writen consent of the nvestor, the Founders shall not ransfer any of Ihe securilies of Ihe Company held by them Lo any person, ingluding compstilor Howsver, the shares hekd b

shal, subject to lhe transfaras execuling a Deed of Adh , be frealy ferable without any ictions of any nature whatsoever,
v Datails of sharsholdar holding more than 5% preference share capital. Datails of praference shares held by the p tar as definad in the Companies Act, 2013 ;
Hame of th& aquity sharsholders As al 31 March 2024 Az at M March 2023
Number % % of Holding % Change Numbrer % of Holding
Mr. Gurmiit Singh Shugh 32,558 20.00% 20.00% 100% 3 =
Ms. Punila Shamma 32,559 20.00% 2000% 100% - -
Evercure Holding Ple, Limlled {Holding Company) 97,674 60.00% 60.00% 100% - -
“As per records of the Company, inchuding s regisler of fmembars and olher d ions raceivard from shareholdars regarding beneficial mterasy, the above shareholding rapresanis £
bensiicial ownerships of sharas.
Hote:
1. ‘Promoters' for the purpasa of Ihis disclasure means promoters as defined under section 2(60) of Companies Acl, 2013,
B _OQthar financial liabilities
As at As at
faeuers 31 March 2024 31 Merch 2023
Inlerest acsrued bul nok dus on Dorrowings 104.26 5688
Employae ralaled payables* 116623 S893.42
Credilors for capital goods G0.57 2570
Aher payables 572 57
1,336.75 707.67
“Refar note 44 on relaled paries
22 Qther current liabjlitias
As at As at
FEnicuirs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advancas fram custamers 294574 77043
Statutory dues payatie 563.23 27858
3,508.97 1,049.01
23 Current lax liabilities {net)
As at Ag at
Ry are 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Praviston far noome tax fnet of prapsid taxes) 114.38 51.84

114.36 61.94




Integrig (4ealth Private Limited
Summapy of material accounting policias and other sxplanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
{AN s mouts in ¥ laichs except number of shares and per share dais, unless otherwise stated)

24 Revenue from operations

pa rticilars For tha year ended Far tha year ended
2 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Sale of praducts {refer nets (g) and (b balow)

-Finighed goads A4, 27745 3177580

-Traded goads 21,708.25 14,880.80

55,945.70 46,656.60

Sale of services - 91.02

Royally incoms 2707 207.50

56,222.77 48,355.12

a) The: Group affers rebatesidiscount 1o itz customers on the basis of cenain agreed terms and sonditions. Since, such rebatesfdiscount is nat atiributable to any specific product

sold, for the purpase of disclosure above, rebatasfdiscounl has baen atirlbuled lo sak: of manufactured and traded goods

sale value of sUch products, and accordingly adjusted to amive at the reported sales, net of discount,

pectively, on an

in the ralio of gross

by In cenain cases, the Group sells same of Ihe products in which (L trades, by bundiing them alang with the sale of manufactured products. However, Tor prasentalion in the

25

27

28

financial slalements, sale of manufactured gaads and sale of raded goods have been disclosed separalely above

Disaggregation of revenua
Details of sale of products

wWiresicalheters 13,828.11 10,577.09
Coronary stants 30.401.24 2010143
Olher accessories 11,756,335 6.578.08
559885.70 46,656.60
*Reafer nole 43 for revenue relatad disclaaure
25 QOtherincome
For the year ended For the year ended
Parteee 1 March 2024 1 March 2023
Inierest ingome
~from bariks 443.03 7011
~from income tax refund 177 27.94
-Others 0.07 432
Gain on forgign exchanga fluctualions {nel) 1394 232.52
Income on |ease terminalion 1257 .70
Markeling subsidy 15.06 -
Expart incentive 73.86 8370
Rewersal of expecled cradit loas on trade recsivables 3320 600,29
Liabililies no longer required wrilten back 32.10 107.3a
Miscellangols incoms 288.08 137.50
1,543.70 1,244.46
Cost of material d
For the year ended For the year ended
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Raw malerlals at the beginning of the year 453469 1.983.45
Add: Purchase during the year 13,883.¥2 16,118.13
Less: Raw materials al the end of the yaar (5,014.71) 4,534.69)
13,403.70 13,566.89
Add: Inventary acquired under business combination 541.48 =
Less: Amounts capltalised under intangible assets under development (292.26) -
Less: Amounts capitalised on accaunt of trizl run productian transfemed ko CWIP {115.00} {101.68)
Less: Obaolete invantary written off {205.25)
Exchange difference (10.08) (13.43)
13,222.62 13,451.78
Purch of stack-in-trade
A For the yaar endad For the year ended
Part e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Purchase of raded goods 14,731.77 11,228.65
A4,731.77 1 1.229A
Ch in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stack in trade
Particulars For the yaar amdad For the yaar ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Inventories at tha end of the year:
Finizhed gacds 3.922.02 4,758,323
Wark-in-progress 1,93545 1,384,480
Traded goads 4,614.95 294320
Inventories al the beginning of the year:
Finished goods 4,758,389 4,703.42
Work-in-progress 1,384,80 -LLF:X]
Traded goods 2,949.20 2,299.82
Less: Inventory acquired through business combination 2,173.91 -
63311
Exchange diffsrancas 44.37 101.57
514 (1,102.75)




Integris pdealth Private Limlted
Summany of material policies and other explanatory informatlon for the year ended 39 March 2024

{All apounts in ¥ lakhs except number of shares and per share data, unlass ofherwise stated)

29 gpaployee benaflts exy

For the year endad For the year ended
Pasticulars 31 Manch 2024 31 March 2023
Saflaries, wages and bonus 10,680.96 8,179.65
Coniibutions to previdant and othar funds 1,026 41 849 96
Siafl welfare axpenses 263,55 203.85
Sutatal 11,870.92 5,233.46
Lesss: Amounts capialised in Intangible assat under develapment in current year and in capital worksin-
prordfess in previous year yes a (200.49) {87.77)
11,770.44 8,175.69
*Reafer nota 44 far remungration to KMP,
30 Fipance casts
Far the year anded For the yaar anded
P 1 March 2024 31 March 2029
Intexrest expeansa an;
- Lease liabillties {refer nate 413 12287 8217
- Termn loan 696.20 11396
- Vahicle loan 718 813
= Cash credit and others 885,87 384.33
- Delayed payment of statutory dues a14 457
- Loan from directors 789 323
- Others 17.07 473
- Inlerest on MSME 244
- Inleresl on CCPS g2542 -
Less: amounls capliallsed towards capital work-in-prograss {24 45} (10.36)
2,544.13 590.76
31 Depreciation and amartisatian
Far the year anded For the yeaar ended
Particulars 31 uaﬁn 2024 31 March 2023
Daprecialion on property, plant and equipment {refer nale 44) 772,56 485.21
Deprecialion on right of use assats {refer nate 4C) 48248 191.57
Amartisatlon of Intanglble assels {refar note 54) 2,033.62 1,352,686
3,288,686 2,029.64
32 Other expenses
Far the year ended For the year ended
i 1 March 2024 31 March 2023
Rent (refer note 41) 23381 23995
Power and fuel 353.20 22657
Forwarding sxpense 335,59 322497
Rates and taxes 22573 6.74
Commission on sales 157.08 47.16
Forelgn axchangs koss (net) 12.05 -
Travelling and conveyance 1,725.37 1,741.46
Legal and professional expenses® 2,128.79 2,130.50
Exchange rale fluciuation (net) 35.32 407.81
Bank charges 26430 7287
Donation §3.90 -
Insurance charges 201 66 9820
Security charges 12.07 947
Repair and malntsnance 523,21 25572
Ragistralion (a2 45.36
Advertising and sales promotion 1,571.54 1.259.54
Inlemel and olher related expanse 190,93 17517
Sponsorship and conference expanses 515.80 42).66
Telephana and intemel expansae 41 64 kIR )
Job wark - 1493
Subscription expense 49.65 75.26
Printing and stationeny 5657 56.74
Festival and celebration 3.27 18,78
Testing fea* 399.62 70009
Laes an sale of property, plant and equipment 19.05 -
Allowanca for bad and doublbiul loans 30.00 o
Bad debtsfasset writtan aff 7723 137,42
Packaging expenseas 5741 30,78
Charlty and donation - 1.00
Miscelaneous axpenses” 566.78 438,16
9,914, 95 9,370.14

*Legal and professional expenses ¥ 259,56 lakhs, Testing for % 108.53 lakhs and miscellanesus expensgas for T 1,79 lakhs are capitalised under inlanglhle assels under
developmenl during the year (31 March 2023: ® Nil} towards intengibel asset under development, Also, Legal and professional expenses & 22.79 lakhs (31 March 2023: 2
13.14 lakhs), electricity expenses of T 0.83 Jakhs {31 March 2023:; € 5.07 lakhs) and miscellaneous expenses for ¥ 0.93 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 0.66 lakhs) are capltalised

urder capilal work in progress.

313 Exceptional item

Particulars.

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

Impalrment of goadwill (also refer nate 58)*
Impadrtent of Property, plant and equipment®
Obsolete invantory writien off*

Severance pay to amployees®

30237 264.33
151.76 ]
236.61 -
144,59 -
1,535.33 33

* Impairment indicators were identlfiad in relation to Invesiment_ made In equity shares of 4 foreign subsidiary of the Campany, Artic GrnhH The recavarable amaount of

Investmen is determined at nel assat value which was de
has recorded an impairment of Rs. 302,37 lakhs in t

recordad an impalrment loss Rs. 264.33 lakhs in n—py
cash flows based on management approved financia

A During the year, the Group has restructured its of
impaited some of the property, plant and equipmerts

pwer Hhan the carmying amount of i
ant of profil and loss. Further, durdng the previous year ssnded kLl Maﬂ:h 2023 managemenl has
profil and loss caleulated using value nuse, which is

{ of .

accordingly mar

d using dis d projacted




Intagriz Health Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

(AR amaynits in T lakhs except number of shares and par share dals, untess otherwise stated)
4. Tax expenss

{8} Amounts recognisad in tha it of profit and loss

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Curranl tax 2,529.35 2,205.59
Deferred tax (1.252.92) (977.94)
Earljer years tax adjustments {net) 101.96 {8.52)
Tax gxpense for the year 1,378.38 1,219.13

{b} Amounts recognised in other camprehensiva income

Particulars

31 March 2024

21 March 2023

Re-measurement of defined banefit obligations

{c

Reconciliation of effective tax rate

18.88

429

18.88

4.29

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Accounting profit befare income tax
Tayx using the Company's domestic tax rata

Expected lax expense at India's slatutory income tax rale 27 82% (31 March 2023: 27.82%)
ing taxable income:

Llat

} in eal

Tax effect of amounts which ara not ded
Non-deduclible expenses

Impact of earller year tax

Impact of change in tax rate

Subgidiaries taxed at different tax rates
Deferred tax not crealed*

Others

Incoms tax axpanse

tible (k

723.43 3,190,343
27.82% 27.82%
201.26 887.55
267.87 -
101.95 {8.52)

- 4887
300,99 334.55
479.81 73.54

27.51 {116.86)
1,378.40 1,219.13

‘Nl includes unused tax losses and unabsarbad depreciation of 8 subsidiary of the Group amounting to 2 176.93 lakhs, for which no deferred tax asset has been recognised in the

books of accounts which can be camied forward indefintely,

{d} (i) Changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities from 01 April 2023 to 31 March 2024:

Balance as

Agquired through

Recognised in other

Particulars on business 2 . rgt':'sel:s': comprehensive ;ar':n;;a;:l;;

1 April 2023 combination profi incoma 4
Proviglon for amployae benefits 80,32 - 4583 {18.58) 107.27
Expected credit koss 279.87 {128.62) . 151,25
Provision for customer schemes 960.37 278,84 - 1,239.21
Busingss losses and unabsorbed depraciallan 1,016.65 - 533.09 - 1,549.74
Right of use asset and lease liabilities 29.56 (6.13) . 2543
Allowanca far impairment on financial assats 103.45 - {73.78) - 29,67
Unraalised gain on sale of Inventory = - 158.62 - 158.62
Timing differance of depraciation and amortisation {361.19) - (53.84) - 415.08)
E.It:r:]gel:;e ‘asssw (At_ra;tltlemark and custamer relationships) recagrised on (2.800.26) {3.065.30) 408,98 = {5.465.58)

Total (791.23) {3,065.20) 1,252.99 {18.88) (2,622.43)

{ii} Changes in deferred tax ts and fiabilities from 01 April 2022 to 31 March 2023:

Balance as  Acquired through Recognised in Recognised in Pther Balance as at
Particulars on buslnass T comprehensive 31 March 2023

1April2022  comblnation B income
Pravision for employee benefits 52,76 - 31.85 (4.29) 80.32
Expected cradil loss 52288 - (243.01) - 279.87
Provision for cuslomer schemeas 754.66 - 205.71 - 960.37
Business losses and unabsorbed depreciation 233.04 - 78271 - 1,016,685
Righl of use asset and lease liabilities 33.06 - (3500 - 29.56
Allowance for impairment on financial assets 80.70 - 4275 - 10345
Unraalised gain on sale of invenlony 2245 - (22.45) - -
Timing difference of depreciafion and amortisation (242.39) - {118.00) - (361.19)
Intangible asseis (irademark and customer relationships) recagnised on
business carmbination {3,202.94) R 302.68 B {2.900.26)

Total {1,764.88) - 977.94 (4.29) {791.23)

Discl  in Fir ial Statements: 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferrad tax assets (net} 3.002.57 220704
Deafermed tax labilities (net) 5,625.06 2,990.29

(This space has been intenfionally feff blank}
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35 Fimancial instruments risk

(i

Thez Group is exposed 1o various risks in refation 1o Anancial instruments. The main types of financial risks are market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk.

Thez Fespective managemant of the Holding Company and olher subsidiary companies comprising the Group monitors and managas the financial risks ralating 10 the

apezrations of Ihe respective Companles on a cantinuous basis,

Thez Company does nat engage in the trading of financial assets for speculative purposes. The most significant financlal 13ks to which the Company is exposed are describad
Ma rket risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a fAinancial Instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Tha Campany is exposed to markel

sk I‘J’l‘rough its use of financial instruments and specifically to Inlerest rale risk, foreign currency risk and commodity prica risk which rasult from [ls operating, fnvasting and
finzneing activilies.

(a) Interest rate risk
Intezrest rale risk is the risk that the Jair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument Wit fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The group is expased o
cha nges in market interest rates as some bomowings are al varabla interest rates,

The following tabls illusirates the sensitivity of profit and equity to a reasonably passible change in interest rates of +/- 1%. These changes are cansidered to be reasonably
pos sible based on gement's nenl. The calculations are based on a change in the average market interest rate for each period, and the financial instruments held
at e-ach raporting dale thal are sensitive to changes in interest rateg, All olher varables are held conslanl,

Particulars Profit/{loss) for the year Equity
+1% 1% +1% A%
M March 2024 {218.77) 1877 (218.77) 218.77
3 March 2023 {126.386) 126,36 (126.38) 126,36

(b} Foreign currency risk

Foraign curreney risk is the risk that the fair value or fulure cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of shanges in fareign axchanga rates. The functional currency of
tha Holding Company s Indian Rupees ('), Mast of the transactions of the Holding Company and other companies are carried out in the raspecliva local currency, Exposures
to cumency exchange rates mainly arise from the overseas operations, which are primarily denominated in US Dollar {"USD") and Euro (EUR").

The Company has limited exposure ta foraign currency risk and outstanding foreign currency exposuras are not being hadgad against adverse currency fluctuation,
Forelgn currency risk exposure:

Particulars Currency Amount In foreign currency Amountin ¥
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Receivables
UsD 1.38 0.20 113,45 16.17
Trade
e b EUR 21.45 5.96 1.928,75 533.12
: ELIR 3.15 - 28292 -
Other raceivabl
L uso 1.83 1.3 161,00 159.05
Payables
uso = 6.27 - 515.80
Trade payables JPY - 105.11 c 65.66
EUR .80 19.65 34145 1,758.27
SGD 0.1 - 5.78 -
EUR 47,12 5112 4,238,116 4,569.62
Bl Gl 'R sD — 428 078 A57.35 84.22

Sensgitivity

The foreign currency sensitivity of profit and equity in regards to the Group's fnanclal assats and financisl liabillias considering ‘all other things baing equal’ and ignoring 1he
impact of taxation. It assumes a +/- 1% change of the respective countries exchange rates {i.e. local currency to forelgn currency) for the year ended at 31 March 2024 {31
March 2023: +/-1%). The sensitivity analysis includes only aulstanding foreign currency denominated mongkary items at end of each period reported upon. A positive number
indicates an increase in profit or equity and vice-versa,

If the ¥ had sirengthened against the USD by 1% (31 March 2023: 1%}, Euro by 1% (31 March 2023: 1%), JPY by il {31 March 2023; 1%), 360 by 1% (31 March 2023 1%),
Ihe fallowing would have been the impact;

Profit/(loss) for the year Equity
Currency 31 March zfoza, : 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 __ 31 Warch 2023
UE0 0.83 4.05 083 4.05
EUR {23.69) (57.93) {23.58) (57.99)
JPY - 0.68 - 066
SGO 0.07 = a.07 .
() Commodity price risk

The Graup can be affected by the price volatility of certain commadities. Its operating activitias require the angolng purchase of Cobalt Chromium, Stainless Steel and
hypotube and therefore require a continious supply.

Commodity price sensitivity
The following tables shows the affect of price ¢change In raw material Cobalt Chromium,Stainless Steel and hypatube,

Particulars Change in yearly average price Effect on profit before tax Effect on aquity

31 March 2024

Cobalt Chromium +1% A% {36.18) 35.19 (36.18) 36.18
Staintess Steel H% 1% {4.35) 435 (4.35) 4,35
Hypolube +H% 1% {17.98) 17.98 (17.98) 17,98
Particulars Change in yearly average Effect on profit before tax Effect on equity

31 March 2023

Cobalt Chromium +1% (50.65) 60,65 {6065} 60.65
Stainless Stes| +1% (6.83) 6.3 (6.83) 6.83
Hypolube: +1% (1.13) 1.13 {1.13) 143
{d) Other price sensitivity

The group is not exposed lo any lisled aquity or listec
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35 Financial Instruments (cont'd)

(i) Creditrisk
Cre ditisk s the risk that a counterparty falls 16 discharge an obligation lo the graup. The group is operating trough a network of distributors and other distibution partners
bag e al different lacations. The group is exposed to this risk for various finarcial instruments, for example receivables from customers, depasits placed ele. The graup's
maximum expasure to credi fisk is limiled to the carrying amount of financial assels recognised at end of each reporling period, as summarised belaw:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
‘Classes of inancial assets carrying amounts
Lo ns - 67.00
Trade raceivables 29,028.10 25,066,023
Cash and cash equivalents 1.473.41 1,951.48
Other bank balances 3871.87 997.16
Other financlal assets 4,183,858 1,375.57
38,357.24 29,447.22

The aroup continuously manitors receivables and defaulls of custormers and other counterparties, and incorporates this information into its credit risk controls.

The credil risk for cash and cash equivalents, other bank balanca Is considered negligible, since the counterparlies are reputable banks.

Trade recefvables

The Group closely monitars the credit-worthinass of customers, thereby, limiling the credit risk. The Group uses a simplified approach (lifetime expected credit loss medel) for
the pupose of computation of expecled credit loss for trade receivables,

Cash and cash equivalents and other bank balances
Cradit risk related to cash and cash equivalents and bank depasits is managed by only diversifying bank deposils and accounts in different banks. Credit risk is considered low
because the Group deals with reputed banks.

Loans and other financial assets

Loans and other financial assets measured at amortized cosl Includes securily deposits and other receivables. Credit risk related to these financial assets is managed by
monitaring the racoverability of such amounts continuously. Credit risk is considered low because the Group is in possession of the underlying assel. Further, the Group
creates pravision by assessing Individual financial asset for expactalion of any credit loss basis expected credit foss madel.

b) Cradit risk exposure

As at 31 March 2024

Particulars Gross canrylng Expected credit Met carrylng
amaount losses amount

Cash and cash equivalants 147341 - 147341

Other bank balances 3.671.57 - A671.87

Trade raceivables 29,567 .69 539,59 29,028,110

Other financial assels 4,183,86 = 4,183.86

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Estimated grass Expected credit  Carrying amount net of impairment

carrylng amaunt at default losses provision

Cash and cash equivalents 1,951.46 - 1,951.46

Other bank balances 997,16 - 997.186

Trade receivables 26,234.88 1,178.85 25,056.03

Loans 87.00 - 67.00

Other financial agsets 1,3575.57 - 1,375.57

xcted credit loss

Recancillation of ex
Recancillation of loss all

Trade receivables

c

Expected credit loss as on 31 March 2022 1,779.14
Expeclad credit loss revarsed during the year (600,29)
Amounts writtan off -
Expected credit loss as on 31 March 2023 1,178.85
Expacted credit loss reversed during the year (639.28)
Amounts written off -
Expected credit loss a3 on 31 March 2024 539.59
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the group will encounter difficully in maeting the obligations assaciated with its financial kiabilities that are setled by delivering cash or another
financial asset. The group ‘s approach to managing liquidity is te ensure as far as possible, that it will hava sufficient liquidity ta meet its liabilities when they ara due.

Maturities of financial liabilities
The tables below analyse the Group linancial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on their undiscountad conlractual maturities,

31 March 2024 Legs than 1 year 1 -5 years Maore than 5 years Total

Borrowings 12,974.91 9,902.40 - 21,8771
Trade payable 5.855.09 = - 5,855.09
Lease fiabililies 669.15 911,53 - 1,560,698
Other financial liabilities 1,336.78 8,911.93 ~ 10,248.71
Total 20,335.93 18,725.86 - 39,561.79
31 March 2023 Less than 1 year 1 -5 years More than 5 years Total

Borrowings 11,006.32 163011 = 12,636.43
Trade payable 5,518.83 - - 5,519.83
Lease liabiliies 25411 892.17 = 1,146.88
Other financial liabilities ———— 707.67 262.40 = 970.07
Total o GO 17,487.53 2,784.68 - 20,272.21

T
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35 ca‘:!ilal Management

Ther Broup’s objectiva when managing capital is o maintain pasitiva cash flow posiion. The Company's siralegy is to maintaln a reasonabla cumant ratic, The current ratio is

Particulars As at Ag at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Lored térm borrowings B.902.40 1,630.11
Shert lerm bomowings 12,974,91 11,006,32
Leawse Nabilities 1,373.32 914.95
Inteprest acoruad and dus on borrowings 104.26 56,88
Lees: Cash and cash equivalents {1,473.41) (1,851,486}
Less: Other bank balances {3,671.87) {097.16}
Net dabt 18,209.62 10,650.65
Tatel caphtal 67,283,863 &1,632.11
Capital and net debt 85,493.45 72,201.76

21.30% 14.75%

In order to achiave ovarall objective, the company's capital management, amongst ather things, aims to ansura that is mests financlal coveants attached to interest-bearing

kiar1s and herrowings that define capital structure raquirements,

No change were made in the objeclives, policies or process for managing capital during the years ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, There's no breaches ir the

finamdials convenans of the borrowing ihat would permit the banks to immediately call loans and barowings in the reporting periods,
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37 Adcdilional Information as required by paragraph 2 of tha g 1 L for preparation of lidated i jal its to schedula lNto the Companias

Act, 2013
Share in profit or loss Share in other comprehensive  Shara in total comprehensjyg
Net assots for the yaar ended incoms for tha year anded income for the year endag
3 March 2024 3 March 2024 31 March 2024
Nayse of Entity As a % of As a % of
As a % of Asa%of consolidated consolidated
lidatad A consolidated  Amount other Amount total Amount
net assats® profit or logs* comprehensive comprehensive
income* i .

A Hiolding Company
Intagd™s Health Private Limited 108.25 72,037.96 {464 05) 303035 0.01) oM {437.44) 3,039, 28
B. 5 ubsidiaries
Indian
Traryshumina Therapsulics LLP 29,58 19,899.49 505.23) 3,308.08 94,55 {332.68) {471.42) 3,275 40
Trarvshealth Private Limited am 1,354.79 {B7.31) 571.82 9,52 3.79) {81.75) 568.03
Transvalve Health Private Limited 0.26 175.99 1.35 {8.82) - - 127 {8.82)
Forelgn
Trarrslumina GmbH 10.68 7.186.21 399.94 {2,619.47) - - 37701 (2819.47)
Artic GmbH 0.35 234,68 445 (29.12) - - 4.19 (29.12)
Trapsumina France Q.07 50.40 (2.200 14,40 - - 20N 14.40
Biue Medical Devices BY i1 749.82 2715 {17780} - - 25.59 (177 .80y
LAMED Verlriebsgasellschaft 2.83 1,905.66 {238.02) 1,558.97 - - {224 38) 1,558.87
Efiminations
Inter-company glminabions and (55.18) (37,111.15) 963.93 (6,313.37) 598 (2.38) 904.00 {6,315.75}
cansclidation adjustments
Total 100.00 67,283.83 100.00 (654.98) 100.03 (39.84) 100.00 (694.80)

* The abave amounts! percenlage of net assets and net profit or loss in respact of Inlegris Heallh Private Limited and its subsidiaries are determined based on the amourits of
the respecliive entilies included in the ¢ lidated financial stat 1t before nler-company eliminationsiconsolidations adjustments

Share in profit or loss Share in athar comprehensive  Share in total comprehansive

Net assets for the year ended income for the yaar anded income for the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Hame of Entlty As g % of As a %ol
Asa%af Asa%of consolidated consolldated
consofidated A t lidated A t other Amount total Amount
net agsels® profit or loss* comprehensive comprahensive
income* incomea*
A, Halding Company
Integris Health Private Limited 102.95 63,452.10 101.57 2002141 440.10 565 101,79 2,007.76
B. Subsidiarles
Indian
Translumina Therapsutics LLP 32,28 19,0894.40 191.81 3,780.88 {936.91) {12.03) 191.07 3,760,084
Transhealth Privale Limiled 1.28 786.46 31.06 61229 (35.03) (0.45) .02 611.84
Transvalve Heallth Private Limited 0.30 1865.31 {041} {8.02) - - {0.41) (8.02)
Forelgn
Translurnina GmbH (1.5%) {945.17) (7a.73) (1,551.88) = = {72.68) 11,551.88)
Arlic GmbH 0.42 260.55 1.00 19.72 - - 1.00 19.72
Translumira France 006 3706 208 407 - 208 41,07
ElimInations
Intercompany eliminations and {35.78) (22.038.80) (149.38) (2,924.96) 631.05 a1 {147.57) (2,916.83)
cansalidation adjustments
Total 100.00 61,632,111 100.00 1,971.21 99.22 1.28 100.00 1.972.50

“ The abave amounts! percentage of nel assets and nat profit or (033 in respect of Integris Heallh Privale Limited and Its subsndlanes arg determinad basad an the amounts of
the respectiva entitfes included in the « lidated financial stat t befare inler-x Il

- i
¥ nsfoonsolidation: J

Group Information

The Holding Company's subsidisries at 31 March 2024 are set out below. Unless otherwise stated, they have share capital consisting solely of equity shares that arg held
directly by the Halding Company, and the proportion of ownership Interssls held equals the voting rights held by the Holding Campany. The country of insorporation or
reglstration is also their principsl place of business.

Owmership intarast held by tha Ownership interest hald by Non-

Country of Group controlling Interest

HName of tha entity Principal activities N
incorporation 31 March 2024 31 March 31 March 2024 31 March
2023 2023
N Manufacluring and trading of coronary stent ) _

Transuming Therapsutics LLP systems, and relaled products India 100% 100% -

hd- 5. A ek
. - g and g of caronary gtents .
Teanshealth Private Limiled and related products India 100% 100% - -
. - Manufacturing and marketing of coronary stents .

Transvatve Health Private Limited and related products India 100% 100% - =
Manufzcturing and marketing of coronary stenits

Transumina GmbH and related products Germany 100% 100% = -

Adic GmbH Generating royalty income from patents Gemany 100°% 100% = -

Translumina France* Trading of coronary stents and related products France 100% 100% = -
Manufacturing  innavalive  high-quality  drug

Blue Madical Davices BY elting solulions, PTCA balloon catheters and  Nethedands 100% 0% - -
coronary stent systems
Trading of
endavascular

LAMED Vertrebsgesellschaft cathelers, sugi Gemnary 100% 0% - =
seam sealing! =

*As a1 30 November 2023, Company has scmmenr.a:l',ﬂ't dissolution of its sdﬁg ry company "Translumina France”. The declsion was made due 1o reason that the subsidiary

company has dosed its operations in Franca. The Ilq\

or process is complatefl on 31 July 2024,

has been infentionally left blank)
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¥ Eamings per share

40
]

Forthe yearended  For the year ended

Particusars 31 March 2024
Caleylation of Basic EPS
Nel profit for the year [654.96)
Interast on ¥ converible p shares {CCPS) 82592
Adjusted net profits for the year (A} 170.9%
Hominal walus of equity shares (T) 10.00
Weighted averags numbear of aguity shares 1.670.078
Add; Weighled average number of polential equity share to be issued on account of convarsion of Compulsary 148112
Convertible Praference Shares at the end of year* '
Total welghled average number of equity shares (2} 1,818,190
Basle eaming par share {A/B) 9.40
Caleylation of Diluted EPS
Adjusted net profits for tha year (C} 170.98
Weightad average number of equily shares 1.670.078
Add; Weighted average number of polential equily share bo be issuad on account of conversion of Compulsory 146,112
Converlils Preference Shares at the end of year* '
Total weighted average number of aquity shares (D) 1,518,180
.40

Diluted eamings par share {C/D)

* Calculated on the basis of fair value on the dale of issue of Compulsory Converlible Preference Sharas

31 March 2023

137,21

19711
10.00

1,670,078

1,670,073
118,03

19721

1,670,078.00

1,670,078
118,03

will also increase Ihe kabllity

1 refurn on assets lower Ihan the discount rate assumed at the last valsalion dals can impact

Employes benefit plans
Dufined banefit plan:
Gratuity
The Group has & defined benefil gratuity plan. Every employae is enlitiad to graluity as per the provislons of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The lisbility of Gratuity is racognized on the basls of acluarial
valualion.
Salary increases: Actual salary increases will increase the plan's llability. Increass in salary increase rate
. If plan | funded then asssts kabilies mismatch and actual i
Imvrastment risk the liability
Discount rate: Reduction In discount rata in subsequent valuations can increase the plan's lability.
Mortality & disability; Aclual deaths and disability cases proving lower or highar than assumed in the valuation can mpact the Nabilitles.
Withdrawals: Actual withdrawals proving higher or lower Ihan assumed withdrawals and change of wilbd

<an impact plan's liabikity,

A is recognised In the baf; sheat;
Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current liasliity 23.02 .45
on-current liability 26027 20741
Total 283.29 213,86
. _Expenses recognised in the of profit and loss
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Current service cost B7.50 5954
Inlerest cosl 16.04 10.27
Cost recognised during the year 83.54 69.81
Gain gnised In other comp Ive i
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actiugrial gain for e year on pro afil ohligalicn | 2 1023
Recognised In other pret ve | 1442 10.23
Movarnant in the liabfllty Ised in tha bal sheet is a5 under:
Particulars 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Present value of defined benafil ohiigation at the beginning of the year 213865 141.90
Current service cost &7.50 59.54
Inlerest cost 1604 10.27
Bensfils paid (26.23) (2.0
Achuarial gain (net) 1412 10.23
Fresant value of defined benefit obligation at the end of the yoar 283.29 213.86
For determination of the liability of the Group the following actuarial assumptions weee used:
Particul 21 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rate T.A0%-7.25% 7.50%
Salary escalation rate 8% lo 10% 5% 10 8%
Retirament age {years) &0 Years 60 Years
D ted ining adpustedlite {Years) 7 Years 0.00%
Mortalily Lable 1ALM {2012-14} 1ALM {2012-143
Withdrawal rate 10%-15% P&, 5% PA
Welghted average duration of defined banafit obligatian A0 years 12-20 years
Maturity profile of di ited defined benefit oblig
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 year 2302 645
2 year 7.70 244
3 year a7e 275
4 year 1287 295
5 year 1584 747
6 year onwards 21398 1891.79
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40 Empigyea benefit plans (cont'd)

U]

a.

#

iy

Defingd bensfit plan:
Gratuity {cont'd)

Sensilivity analysis for gratutty Dability:

1] f{d ]on ¢ value of defined banefits obligation ak tha end of the year®

Particylars 31 March 2024 37 March 2023
a) Impact of the changa in discount rate -
Impact que 12 increase of 1.00 % (1.88) {21.31
Impact gue to dacreass of 1.00 % 225 27 96
b} Impact of the change in salary increase

impact due to norease of .00 % 217 3213
Impact due (0 decrease of 1.00 % {1.84) (16.95}
©} Impact of tha changa in withdrawal rate

Impact dus b increase of 1.00 % (5.38) (865
Impact due to decreass of 1.00 % 586 570
The sangitivity analyses above have besn determined based on a msthod That extrapol the impact on defined benefit obligation 25 a result of reasonable changes in key assumplions occurrng at the
end of the reparting period.

* To the extentinformalion avallable

Qther lang-term amployes benefits {Comensatad absences):
During the year endsd 31 March 2024, the Company has incurred an expense on compensated absences amounting to T 57,31 (31 March 2022: ¥ 49.21).

Princip p for P A b
Finangial assumptions
Parti As at Asat

culars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discounl rate {per annum} 7.10% - 7.25% 7.50%
Salary growth rate (per annum) 8.00% - 10.00% 5.00% - B%
Demographle Assumptions

As at As at

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Mortakty rale IALM 2012-14 TALM 201214
Momal Retiramenl aga 60 Years €0 Years
Altrilion / Withdrawal rate 10.00% - 15.00% 5.009%

Lease related disclosures

The Group has exacuted lease amangements for office and busingss premises. Wilh the exceplion of short-lerm leases and lsasas wilh varable leass payments, each lsass is reflectad on the balance
sheel as & Aghl-of-use asset and 2 lease liability. Variable lsase payments which do nol depend on an index or a rale are excluded from Ihe initial measurament of the laase liability and right of use assets
The Group dlassifizs Hs right-of-use assels in a consislent manner to its property, planl and equipmet

Each lease generally impases & restrichion hat, unless there is a contractual fight for the Group 1o sublet e asset 1 another party, the right-okuse asset can only be used by the Group. Leases are elther
non-cancellable or may only be cancelled by incurring & substanlive termination fee. Sume keases contaln an option 1o extend the lease for a further lerm. The Group is prohiblted from selling or pledging
the underlying leased assets as security agalnsl the Group's clher debts and Rabilitles. For leases over office buildings and factory premises the Group must keep those properties in a good state of repalr
and return the properties in their orlginal condilion at the end of the: lease. Further, the Group is required 1o Insure bems of propeny, plant and equipment and incur maintenanze foes on such items in
accordance wilh Ihe lease conlracts.

The Group has constd altomalic exlension option available for the properly lsases in iease period assassment singe tha Group can enforce ils dght lo extend the lzass bayond Lhe Inilisl lease period
as the Group is likely to be benefited by exercising the axlensicn oplion.

Set out below are the camving amounts of Jase lfabilities and the movaments during the vear:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opening Balance 914.95 6923
Agquisiion under business combinalion 74919
Addilions 31834 142,95
Agcretion of inleresl 12267 8217
Payments (60673} 246.20)
Leass tarmination {131.80) (0.77)
Exchange differances 6.30 39.50
{:loging balance 1,272.32 914.95
- Currenl 519.3% 174,63
- Mon Currant a53.93 740,42
Lease liabilities
Lease llabllitles are d in tha balance sheet as follows:
Particulars # March 2024 31 March 2023
Currant 519.39 174.63
Non-current 853.83 74032
Total 1,373.32 214.85
The following are amounts recognised in the statement of profit and loss:
Particul 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Dapreciation on right-of-usa asseta 482 48 191.57
Inlgrest expense on leass liabilties 12287 -
Rent expense related to short-term leases 233.81 228,95
Taotal 83916 502.69

The Group has electad not fo recognise a leass liablilty for short term leases (laases wilh an expeacted term of 12 months or iess) or for leases of kow value assets. Payments mads under such leases ams
axpenssd on a strafghl-lne basis. The expense relaling to payments nat included in the measuremant of the lease liabllity for short term leases is 2 233,81 (31 March 2023: 2 220.95).
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Lease related disclosures |cont'd}

Maturity of lease liabilities

Minimum leage payments due

3 March 2024
oh Within 1 year  1-2 years 2-3 years Mora than 3 years Tatal
Leage payments 560,15 477.52 284 80 148,21 150068
Intgres| expense 149.76 11.62 21.84 2383 207.35
Net present valuss 518.39 465.60 262.96 125,38 1,373.33
Minimum lease payments due
31 March 2023
f Within { year  1-2 ypars 2-3 yoars More than 3 yaars Total
Lease payments 25471 24803 24801 9514 1.146.89
Interest axpense 80.08 62.72 4223 45.91 23104
Net present values 174.63 18631 20578 348.23 814.85
Total cash outflow of leases
Partlcufars 31 March 2024 21 March 2023
Total cash eutflow of leases = B42 54 477.25
Contingent liabilities and commitmanis
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Commitments
Estimated amounl of contracts remaining Lo be executed on capital account and rot provided far (net of capilal advances) 152.58 66078
Export abligation on account of concessional rale of custom duty avallad under EPCG license under scheme on impan of 4,749.60 6,211.40
capltal goods
Contingant liabilities

(2) The Hon'ble Supreéme Court (SC) has, vide its decision dated 28 February 2049 {'SC decision’), ruled thal various allowances like conveyance allowance, special allowance, education allowarice,
medlcal allowancs elz., patd uniformily and unwersaly by an ernployer torits employses would form part of basic wages for computing the provident fund ('PF or ‘the: fund') centribution and thereby, hasz lald
dowm principles to exclude {or Include} a particul y from ‘basic wage' for the purposs of computing PF contribution. While the above SC dedcision is applicable retrospectively, there
is uncertainly wilh respect to the manner in which il needs tr.1 Da applied for the earlier perisd, Accardingly, no provision has been recognised in the financial slatements in respect of pariod pricr ks the
judgament,

(b} One ol' the group company has recaived 2 demand for WAT involving an amount of INR 172 37 lakhs, refating to the assessment years 2012-14 and 2014-15, as per the arder from the Deputy
C. T8r {A tg}, Dehradun. The LLP iniially deposiled IMR 10.00 lakhs and filad 2n appeal against his arder on 13 October 2021, On 34 March 2024, tha company paid the: final demand of
INR 88.78 lakhs atter adjusting the inilial deposit. The LLP has since received Ihe final ordsr under the amnesty scheme, and the case has been officlally closed with a dropping order dated 20 April 2024

{€) During Ihe year 2020-21, one of the group company had received a demand imder seclion 74 of the Ceniral Goods and Services Tax Acl, 2017 amaunting to INR 31424 lakhs (Including interest and
penalty) vide order of Assislant Commissioner, daled 13 February 2021, regarding mismatch in respect of inpUt bax cradit availed as per GSTR-38 and amount reflecled in GSTR-2A for the fnancial year
201820 The LLP has pre-daposited an amount of INR 14.51 iakhs and filed an appeal against the order on 29 June 2021. Subsequently, Ihe department has allowed the sald input tax cradit, accrodingly
the case has besn closed in favour vide order daled 16th July, 2024,

(d) The Group companies has centain ongoing lifigalions for which amounis are nol quantifizble, Based on the assessment of these Digalions, the I it bali thal no ial liability wil devolve
on Ihe Group
R from tracts with t

The Group supplias drug eluling stents and ather coronary products. The ravanue is respect of the these recognised on paint in tims basis when the conlrol of goods is lransfsmed ts the customar.

Assets relatad to contracts with

customer

[ T 3 March 2024 31-Mar-23
Trade receivables 28,028.10 25,056.03
3 ilialion of gnisad in st of Prefit and loss with contract price:

D ption 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contrast prce 83,424.55 &7.031.80
Less: discounts, rebiates, credils slc (27.201.78) (20,076.68)
Total 56,222.77 48,95512
The about contrace liablMtles from contract with customers:

Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Contract Liabliities

Advance from cuslomers 2984574 Tr0.43
Revenue recognised in the reporting period included in contract llability:

Particulars = 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cpening balance TT043 611.59
Addition during the year 294574 71043
Revenue recegnised during the year (¥70.43) (611.58)
Closing balance 2,945.74 770,43
The Company has nol incurred any cost for obtaining contracts except adminisirative cosl and the same is charged bo statement of prafit and loss

Mo singte extemal customer amaunts to 10% or move of the group's revenus from cperations.
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t to Ind AS 24 - Related Party Disclosures

In accordance with the requirements of Ind AS 24, 'Related Party Disclosures’, tha names of tha relaled parly where control exisls/able 1o exerclse significant influsnce along with the ransactions and year-

& balances with them as dentlified and certified by the management ars given below:

A Mames of related parties and related party relationship
Mario of the related party

(W Ultimate Holding Company
ECP Il Pre. Ltd

{li} Holding Company
Evercure Holding Pte Limited
{1ii) Kay g t p {and thair rel
Mrs, Punita Sharma, Direclor

Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh, Director

Mr, Vishal Sharma, Director

Mr, Avrigh Mahra, Director

Mr. Arjun Oberoi, Director

Mr. Kawal Jindal, Ghief Finanaial Officer

Mr. Ingranil Mukhesjee, Direator fw e f, 10 Oclober 2022}

sactions were carried out with mlated parties in the ordinary course of b

B. Tha foliowing t

Particulars

31 March 2024

Iy Key management personnel

Mrs, Pupita Shama

31 March 2023

Rent axpense 11.08 1311
Loan taken 100.00 2,300.00
Loan repaid 1,953.07 450,00
Interes| accrued on laan 7.80 307
Employes benefits expenss® E 99,99
Mrs. Gurmit Singh Chugh
Rant expense 983 1311
Emplayse banefits expense® = 9999
Mr. Indranil Mukherjee
Employes bensfits expensa® (w.af. 10 Oclaber 2022) 24683 116.56
Mr. Kewal Jindal
Employes benefits expanse* 6271 51.68
* The above remuneralion excludes provision for gratuity and comp d ab as employee-wise delalled In actuarial valualions are not available,
Braakup of employee expense is given balow:
Comp tion of key q ._ | of the Company:
Employss bansfit 30837 175.52
Contibulion te Provident Funds R 274
¢ The following bal were outstanding as at with related parties in the ordinary course of busi
q As at As at
Eamouars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1) Key management personnel
Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh
Olher payable Q73 712
Emplayes related payables = 1.00
M2 Punita Sharmma
QOther payable - 142 532
Employee relaled payables - 1.00
Loan payabls - 1.853.07

48 Segment Information

In fina with the provisions of Ind AS 108 - "Oparaling Segments”, the Group |3 engaged in Ihe husiness of manufacturing and \rading of cardiac slents and cardiovascular medical devices which constilute

single raf He
The Group has operations in India and Ewope and has idantiied two Geographical Ssgments namely, 'Within Indis’ and "Oulside India".

Segment assets include all operaling assets that are employad by 3 segmenl in its operating activitles, ncluding goodwill and that either are directly aliibutabds to 1he ssgment or can be allacated 0 the

sagment on a reasonable basis. Segment assats do nat includa income tax asasts
A. Segment mvenue:

_Financial information about geog | segmients for the year anded 31 March 2024 |s presented below:

i Lol Vithin India Oulside India Fotal

Sale of products and rendering of

servicas

31 March 2024 40,723.24 15,499.76 56,223 00
31 March 2023 36,460.32 B,474.80 4695512
B. Other Informatlon:

Financial information about geographical sagments for the year ended 31 March 2024 Is presented balow:

Particulars Within India OQutside India Total
Non-current assets {other than financial instruments and deferred tax asset)

21 March 2024 9,742.20 5762535 87,367 55
31 March 2023 45,206 43 250607 47,702.50

46 Businass Comblnation
©On 5 June 2023, Transluming GmBH (a2 subsidiary ¥} acqui
endovascular products, patches, hemostasis, catheters, surgleal tools, meshess and staple seam sealng

©On 18 June 2023, the 17 GmBH (a subsidiary comp
drug eluting solulions, PTCA balloon calheters and cofgnary stent systems, stc..

d 100% of the |asued share capital of Lamed Vertriebsgessllschalt, engaged in the buying and selling of msdical devices including

¥} acquired 1004 of the issusd share capital of Blus Medial Devices BY., engaged in the business of manufaciuring Innovalive high-quality
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Businggs Combination {cont'd)
Betallg of the purchase tion, tha nat assets acquired and dwill are as foll
LAMED Blue Medical
Purchase Consideration \artrict slischaft Drenui BY Total
Cash paig 1368743 285385 16,541.28
Loans repayments . 1,446,864 1,446.84
Contingant copsidsration = 153,92 153,92
Tatal purchase consideration 13,887.43 4,454,681 18,142.04
The aszets and liabilities recognised as a resull of the acq are as foll
f i LAMED Blue Medical
B e s e Vertriebsgesellschatt Devicos BY Total
Falr Value Fair Value Falr Vatua
Property, plant and equipments B1.35 18349 244 84
Mtangibles 085 = 085
Distribulion nebwork 851321 = 8513
Trademark . 124.95 124,95
Fatent 3 1,859.30 1,959.30
Other fnancial assels 312 . 3.12
Inventary 184852 765 88 271540
Trade receivables 66456 2019 566 40
Cash and cash equivalents 481,84 16.30 457,84
Ofther curent assats 50016 10322 61135
Bo ings (264.92) = (26492
Trads paysbles (660.31) (293.35) {961.66)
Other financial iiabllties - {4.52) [4.53)
Cther liabilties (585.46) (477.68) (1.063.14)
Provisions (285 16) (45.27) {330.42)
Currenl tax liabdilias (201.27} = {201.27)
Net identifiable assats acquired 11,196.31 2,515.22 13,711.53
LAMED Blue Medical
Goodwill Vertriak lischaFft Dovices BY Tatal
Considaration transfermad (4) 13,687.43 4,454 61 1814204
Less: Met [dentiflable assels acquired (B) 11,196.31 251522 12,711.53
Goodwill {C) 249112 1,938.38 443051
Cetarred tax Kability on fair value adjusiments and newly idenified assets (D) 264657 410.73 3,085.30
Goorwill (C+D} 5,137.69 2,358.12 7,495.81

Agquisition of the business is accountad for using Ihe acquisition methad of accounting as per Ind AS 103 "Business Combinalions'. Further, the Campany has accounted for such acquisition based on fair
values of assets and labilities acquired o ined by the registered valuer, resulling into racognition of goodwil of ¥ 513769 lakhs and 2 2,350.12 lakhs in LAMED Vertisbsgesellschart and Blue
Medical Devices B.V. respectively.

The Company allacated purchase price in accordance wilk Ind AS 103 on business combinations, The fair value of net assets acquired was determined basad on an appraisal of such net assels
determingd by an sxternal expert on behalf of the management

The acquired busi tributed and prafits to the group for the period 31 March 2024 as follows:

(a} LAMED Veririebsgesellachafl: From Ihe date of acquisition, Lamed conltributed revenue of # 7,161,186 lakhs and profil of € 1,558 57 lakhs for the period 5 June 2023 to 31 March 2024, Sinee the details
for the period from beginning of acquisition year to 31 March 2024 is not availabls, such informalion has not been disclosed

(b) Blue Medical Devices B.V.: From Lhe date of acquisition, Blue medical conlribulad revenue of € 1,276.08 and loas of 2 177.80 for the periad 18 June 2023 to 31 March 2024, Sincs the detalls for the
pediod from beginning of acquisition year to 31 March 2024 is not svailable, such information has not been disclosed

i} The goadwill is altributable to the operational synergiss and expansion on markel share
i} Further, through the acquisition the Group Inlends fo sxpand in other g hics arsas like G . Metherlands which ta a part of its expansion strategy.
if) There wers ne anquisitions in the year ended 31 March 2023

Per Iransfer pricing legisiation under ssclion 92-92F of the Income Tax Act 1961, the Group 1s required o use certain specific methads in compuling arm's length price of intarnalional transaclions with
associaled enlerprises and mamtalns adaquale doc han I this respect. The legislations require thal such information and documentation ko ba contemporansous in nature. The Group has sppointed
indspandent consullants for condudting the Transfer Pricing Study o dehermine whether the ransactions with associated enterprises undertake during the financial year are on an "am's langlh basis". The
Group is n the process of conducting a transfer pricing study for the current financial year and expects such records 10 be in existence latest by the due dale as required by law. However, In the opinion of
the management the update would not have a material impact on these financial slatements, Acsordingly, thess financial slatements do not include any adjusiments for the transfer pricing fmplications. if
any.

Other statutory information :
The Group doss nol have arry Banami property, where any proceeding has besn initlated or pending against the Graup for holding any Benami property.
The Group has not traded orinvested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.

Tha Group has not been daclared a wilful defaulter by any bank or financial instilulion or ofher lender (as defined under the Companies Act, 20H3) or congortium thersof, in I wilh the guideli
on wilful defaullers issued by the Resarve Bank of India

The Group does nol have any transactians with struck olf companiss under Ssclion 248 of the Companies Agl, 2013 or Seclion 560 of Companios Act, 1956

The Group doss nol have any charges or satisfaction which is yat o be registered with Regi of Companies [ROC) beyond (he slalutory period

Excepl balw, the Company has not advanced of loaned or invesled funds to any other person or enlity, including forsign entities (Int laries) with the und ding that the Intermediary shall.

(a} direclly or Indiractly lend or Investin other persons or enlitles identifisd in any manner whalsoaver by or on behalf of the Company (Ulimate Beneliciaries); o
{b} provide any guarantes, security or the ke to or on behalf of Ihe Ulimate Beneficiariss.

Data of investment of funds! Amount of funds | Date of investment
| Intermeediary Amount of funds invested/ funds given as loan funds given as loan Beneficlary Invested oF funds
Transluming GmbH (Funds Investad) 517221 1 June 2023 Blue Medical Devices BLY.
607271 05 Jung 2022 and 20
Transhimina GmbH (Funds gi Lamed Vertrighsgeselischaft ' June 2023
h’::]‘ gdsdverias 900.50 29 August 2023 mbH
Naote: Gompany has complied with the relevant provisions of the Forsign Exchange Management Acl, 1988 (Paragraph 42 of 1999) and Companies Act for 1 lions disclosed and the transactions are

not violative of the Prevention of Monsy-Laundering act, 2002 (Parzgraph 15 of 2003).
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Other statutory information {cont'd)

(vill Excapt tielow, Ihe Company has ol received any fund from any person ar entity, including farsign entllies {Funding Fary) wilh the und I shedh rded in wiiling or olherwise) that (e
Caompany shall;
(2} directly of nidireclly lend or ivvest In olhar persons of enlities identified in amy mannar whalsoever by or on Dahalf of Iha Fundirg Parly (Uimale Bansflcianes); or
{b) provide any guaranlea, secunty o the lika to or on Behall of ihe Ultimate Benaflciaries.

_ 3 Amount of funds Date of invesimeng
Funding party Amcunt of fund recelved Date of receipt of funds  |Beneficiary vestad of funds
Mr. Gurmil Singh Chugh 279958 23 May 2023 Bhue Medical Davicas BV,
Ms Pynia Shama 2799.98 23 May 2023 and 05 June 2023 ang 2g
= o Frokding Pie. Limied (Holding - 1 Y Lamed Verinebsgessilschaft B.O7ZTH June 2023
verture Holding Ple. Limi 8,398.97 | 2023 mbH
Cumnar‘!’) L ' 22 May
" Company nas recaived amnunl al 5. 13,295,54 lakns and lrweslad amount of 5. 5,072,717 lakhs n T huming GmSH (| lary}, furhac | diary has | Led the same in Blue Medical
Devices BV, ond La gesell {Ukimate bansficiar
Mote; Company has compled with the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Manag Act, 1999 (Paragraph 42 of 1309) and Compirties Act for lons disclosad and the i
ara ol violative of the Py ian af Money-. daring act, 2002 { graph 15 of 2003).

{villt The Group does not have any such transaction which s not recorded in Ihe books of accounts that has been sumendered or disclosed a3 incame during the yeax in the tax as5essments under the
Incoma Tax Acl, 1981 (such az, smarch or survay or any oiher relevant provisions of the Income Tax Acl, 1981

4% The Ministry of Corpordle Affairs (MCA) has p ribad a new requi for- pani um:ler the proviso Lo Rule 3{1) of the Companies {Accouns) Rules, 2014 insented by the Companles [AcCounty)
Amandment Rules, 2021 requiring which uses i for mail g s books of account, shall use only such aceounting saftware which has a feature of recording audil trajl
of each and every transaction. crealing an dit fog of each change: made I Ihe baoks af aocount along wilh the dats whan such changes were made and ensuring lhat the audll irall cannol be disabled
Tive new requirement is applicable with effact from tha financial year baginning on 1 Apeil 2023,

During the curmenl ysar, the audit trail (adit log) festure for any direc| changes made al the dalabase level was nal snabked {or ane accauntl.ng sofwars usad by the Holding Company and its subsidiary

Company(Transhealth Private Limiled), However, tha audit Iraif {adil 1og) at the applicathon l&vel were op g for all relevant in the
Furlher, ons ithary Company {T Heakh Privele Limitad) uses an i frwara for malnlatning s baoks of account, which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (adit log)
Tacility.

50 Pravigus year figures have been p d far the purp of parigon and have baen regroup ified wh

Thiz 15 1he summary of maienial accounting palicias and olher &xplanatory information refemed Lo in our report of even date,
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independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Integris Health Private Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Integris Health Private Limited
(he Company"), which comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the Statement of Profit and
Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Cash Flow and the Statement of
Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and notes to the standalone financial statements, including
material accounting policy information and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the
aforesaid standalone financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013
(‘the Act) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in confarmity with the Indian
Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 and other accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2024, and its profit (including other comprehensive
income), its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

Ve conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10)
of the Act. Qur responsibiliies under those standards are further described in the Auditors
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAF) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Company's Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. Other information does
not include the standalone financial statements and our auditor's report thereon.

{hawsered Accountants ; /o Walker Chandiok & Co LLP is registered
I with brnited fisbility with identification
(fficesin Ahmedabad, Bergalury, Chandigam, Channai, Dabwadun, Go3, Curugram, mﬂmxw Kelata, ks, namber ARC-2085 and has its registered
Hevwy Colhi, Mowda and Pune —— S office af L-41, Connsught Circus, Outer
; s Circle, New Delhi, 110001, Indis
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Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Gur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materialiy
misstated.

The Director's Report is not made available to us at the date of this auditor’s report. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management for the Standalone Financial Statements

The accompanying standalone financial statements have been approved by the Company’s Board of
Directors. The Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these standalone financial statements
that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance including other
comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the Ind
AS specified under section 133 of the Act and other accounting principles generally accepted in India.
This responsibility also includes maintenance of adeguate accounting records in accordance with the
provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting
frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the
accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of
the financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends
to liguidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but {6 do so.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, specified under section 143(10) of the
Act we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We
also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due fo
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional cmissions, misrepresentations, or the override
of internal control;

Chartered Accountants
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

+  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such
controls;

» Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

+ Conciude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may
cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are
not applicable to the Company since the Company is not a public company as defined under section
2(71} of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 ('the Order’) issued by the Central
Government of India in terms of section 143{11) of the Act we give in the Annexure | a statement on
the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

Further to our comments in Annexure |, as required by section 143(3) of the Act based on our audit,
we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our
knowledge and belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the accompanying standalone
financial statements:

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far
as it appears from our examination of those books except for the matters stated in paragraph
12{h){vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014
(as amended),

¢) The standalone financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
account;

d} In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under
section 133 of the Act,

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as.on 34 March 2024 from being appointed
as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the ACt; Ne\
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Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 {Cont'd)

fy  The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith
are as stated in, paragraph 12(b) above on reporting under section 143(3){(b} of the Act and
paragraph 12{(h}vi} below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (as amended);

g) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
of the Company as on 31 March 2024 and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to
our separate report in Annexure Il wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion; and

h} With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule
11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the
best of our information and according to the explanations given to us;

i. the Company does not have any pending litigation(s) which would impact its financial position
as at 31 March 2024 ;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which
there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024.

iii.  There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2024; and

iv. a. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in note 48(vi) to the standalone financial statements, no funds have
been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or securities
premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any person or
entity, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether, directly or
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Company (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behaif the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

b. The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, other
than as disclosed in note 48(vii} to the standalone financial statements, no funds have
been received by the Company from any person or entity, including foreign entities
(the Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding
Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries’) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf
of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

C. Based on such audit procedures performed as considered reasonable and appropriate
in the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe
that the management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any
material misstatement.

V. The Company has not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2024, — \
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Walker Chandiok & CoLLP

Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private Limited,
on the standalone financial statement for the year ended 31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

vi. As stated in note 49 to the standalone financial statements and based on our examination
which included test checks, the Company, in respect of financial year commencing on
01 Aprit 2023, has used an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which
has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software except that, the
audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any
direct data changes. Further, during the course of our audit, we did not come across any
instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, where such feature is enabled.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Kartik Gogia

Partner

Membership No.: 512371
UDIN: 2451237 1BKFEYX4070

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Annez “re | referred to in paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Integ ® " Health Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

In ters” THof the information and explanations sought by us and given by the Company and the books of account and
recor<ASexamined by us in the normai course of audit, and to the best of our knowledge and belief, we report that;

(i) (& ) (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details
and situation of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets.

{B) The Company does not have any intangible assets and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(iMa)(B) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b ) The property, plant and equipment, and relevant details of right-of-use assets have been physically
verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, the frequency of physical verification programme adopted by the Company,
is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.

(c) The Company does not own any immovable property (other than properties where the Company is the
lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the less=e). Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(i)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company has adopted cost model for its Property, Plant and Equipment (including right-of-use
assets). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(i)(d) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(@) No proceedings have been initiated or are pending against the Company for holding any benami
property under the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 (as amended) and rules
made thereunder.

(i) (a) The management has conducted physical verification of inventory at reasonable intervals during the
year, except for inventory lying with third parties. In our opinion, the coverage and procedure of such
verification by the management is appropriate and no discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate
for each class of inventory were noticed as compared to book records. In respect of inventory lying
with third parties, these have substantially not been confirmed by the third parties.

b) As disclosed in Note 24 to the standalone financial statements, the Company has been sanctioned a working
capital limit in excess of Rs. 5 crores by banks based on the security of current assets during the year. The
statements, in respect of the working capital limits have been filed by the Company with such banks and such
statements are in agreement with the books of account of the Company for the respective periods which were
not subject to audit.

(iii) The Company has not provided any security to companies, firms, limited liability partnerships during
the year. Further, the Company has made investments in, provided guarantee and granted (unsecured)
loans to companies or any other party during the year, in respect of which:
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Anne¥ire | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Integs 'S Health Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)(a)

Chartered Accountants

{a) The Company has provided loans and guarantee to subsidiaries during the year as per details

given below:

- o - (in Rs. Lakhs)
Particulars - Guarantees Loans
Aggregate amount provided/granted during the year to
subsidiaries:
- Translumina Therapeutics LLP 11,000.00 -
- Translumina GmbH 11,500.00 2,270.00
- Transhealth Private Limited 3,419.00 3,695.00
- Transvalve Health Private Limited 1,850.00 158.00 |
Balance outstanding as at balance sheet date in respect
of above cases:
- Translumina Therapeutics LLP 11,000.00 -
- Translumina GmbH 11,500,00 -
- Transhealth Private Limited 3,419.00 3,695.00
- Transvalve Health Private Limited 1,850.00 158.00

(b) In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the investments
made, guarantees provided and terms and conditions of the grant of all loans are, prima facie, not
prejudicial to the interest of the Company.

{c) Inrespect of loans granted by the Company, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment
of interest has been stipulated and the repayments/receipts of principal and interest are regular.

(d) There is no overdue amount in respect of loans or advances in the nature of loans granted to such
companies, firms, LLPs or other parties.

(e) The Company has not granted any loan or advance in the nature of loans which has fallen due
during the year. Further, no fresh loans were granted to any party to settle the overdue
loans/advances in nature of loan that existed as at the beginning of the year.

(H The Company has not granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, which are repayable on
demand or without specifying any terms or period of repayment,

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of section 186 of the Act in respect of investments made, loans granted
and guarantees provided by it, as applicable. Further, the Company has not entered into any
transaction covered under section 185 in respect of loans and section 186 of the Act in respect of
security provided by it.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
accepted any deposits or there are no amounts which have been deemed to be deposits within the
meaning of sections 73 to 76 of the Act and the Companies (Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014 (as
amended). Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

The Central Government has specified maintenance of cost records under sub-section (1} of section
148 of the Act in respect of the products of the Company. We have broadly reviewed the books of
account maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules made by the Central Government for the
maintenance of cost records and are of the opinion that, prima facie, the prescribed accounts and
records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination of the
cost records with a view to determine whether they are accurate or complete.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is regular
in depositing undisputed statutory dues including goods and services tax, provident fund, employees’




Wal ker Chandiok & Co LLP

Anng¥ire | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Integd ™8 Health Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Further, no
undisputed amounts payable in respect thereof were outstanding at the year-end for a period of more
than six months from the date they became payable.

(B} According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no statutory dues referred to in
subclause (a) above that have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute.

(viii)  According to the information and explanations given to us, no transactions were surrendered or
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (43 of
1961) which have not been previously recorded in the books of accounts.

(ix) (alAccording to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not defaulted in
repayment of its loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including confirmatiens received from banks
and representation received from the management of the Company, and on the basis of our audit
procedures, we report that the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or
financial institution or government or any government authority.

(¢} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
raised any money by way of term loans during the year and did not have any term loans outstanding
at the beginning of the current year. Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(ix)(c) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

{d) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, and on an overall
examination of the financial statements of the Company, funds raised by the Company on short term
basis have, prima facie, not been utilised for long term purposes.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on
account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries.

() According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not raised any loans during the
year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer or further public offer {(including debt
instruments), during the vear, Accordingly, reporting under clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

{b) During the year, the Company has made preferential allotment of fully convertible preference shares. In our
opinion and according to the infarmation and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the
requirements of section 42 and section 62 of the Act and the rules framed thereunder with respect to the
same. Further, the amounts so raised have been utilised by the Company for the purposes for which these
funds were raised.

(xi} (@) To the best of our knowledge and according to the information and explanations given to us, no fraud by the
Company or no fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during the period covered by our audit.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the
management of the Company, no report under sub-section 12 of section 143 of the Act has been filed by the
auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 of Companies {Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, with the
Central Government for the period covered by our audit.

(¢) According to the information and explanations given to us including the representation made to us by the

management of the Company, there are no whistle-blower complaints received by the Company during the
year.
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Annez *lre | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
Integg ® Health Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

(xi)

(xiii)

(xiv)

{xv)

{xvi)

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xii} of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, all transactions entered into by
the Company, with the related parties are in compliance with section 188 of the Act. The details of such
related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements etc., as required under
Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24, Related Party Disclosures specified in Companies {Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 as prescribed under section 133 of the Act. Further, according to the
information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to constitute an audit committee under
section 177 of the Act.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to and consequently,
does not have an internal audit system as per the provisions of section 138 of the Act. Accordingly, reporting
under clause 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has not entered into any non-cash
transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xv) of the Order with respect to compliance with the provisions of section 192 of the Act are not applicable
to the Company.

The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934,
Accordingly, reporting under clauses 3(xvi)(a}, (b) and (c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d)Based on the information and explanations given to us and as represented by the management of the

(xvii)

{xviil)

(xix)

Company, the Group (as defined in Core Investment Companies (Reserve Bank) Directions, 2018) does not
have any Core Investment Company {CIC).

The Company has not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year as well as the immediately
preceding financial year.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditers during the year. Accordingly, reporting under clause
3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and
expected dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information in the
standalone financial statements, our knowledge of the plans of the Board of Directors and management and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention,
which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report indicating
that Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an
assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling
due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as and when
they fall due.

(xx) (a} According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has transferred unspent amounts

towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) in respect of other than ongoing projects to a Fund specified
in Schedule VIl to the Act within a period of six months of the expiry of the financial year in compliance with
second proviso to sub-section (5) of section 135 of the said Act.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts towards Corporate
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Social Responsibility pertaining to any ongoing project as at end of the current financial year. Accordingly,
reporting under clause 3(xx}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
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Anne?XUre | referred to in Paragraph 11 of the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of
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(xxiy  The reporting under clause 3({xxi} of the Order is not applicable in respect of audit of standalone financial
statements of the Company. Accordingly, no comment has been included in respect of said clause under this
report.

For v#/alker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charteéred Accountants
Firm'ss Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

Kartilk Gogia
Partn er &y
Membership No.: 512371

UDIN: 24512371BKFEYX4070

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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Arfyre Il to the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to the members of Integris Health Private
Li "ikd on the financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024

Ar®eyre I

Ind €lendent Auditor’s Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the standalone
flr‘la'}'t:ial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the
Act’

In COjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of Integris Health Private Limited (‘the
CoMPany’) as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
referénce to financial statements of the Company as at that date.

ReShonsibilities of Management for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls
bas€don the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accolntants of India ('ICAI'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
ad equate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of theCompany's business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor's Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference to
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of india (1CAI') prescribed under Section 143(10) of the Act,
to the extent appiicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, and the
Guidance Note issued by the ICAl. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and maintained and if such
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as
necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial st
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Arfexure Il to the Independent Auditor's Report of even date to the members of
In#8Ytis Health Private Limited on the standalone financial statements for the year ended
31 March 2024

Infhérent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

BezCause of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the2 Possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or
fraaud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with
refeence to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with
ref€ence to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
de-gree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to
financtal statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
es Sential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Charered Accountants
Firm's Registration No.: 001076N/N500013

ik Gogia

Partner ‘al\ o
Membership No.: 512371 \‘-;:\_"f'x. __,;f;é/

UDIN: 24512371BKFEYX4070 N

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024



In#t “€is Health Private Limited

st =Malone Balance Sheet as at 21 March 2024
cir® %5110DL2008PTC177230

Lﬂi};ﬁ"\%nm in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise staled)

Asg at As at
NS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
R
No ¥ * Ylirent assets
Pre? Py, plant and equipment 4 0.95 1.38
R‘U‘ l""lf-’t!l.use assels 4 40.84 36.77
Fire =M% assels
(i7  Mestments 5 67,820.50 £7,429.13
(i} “ans 6 9,224.96 8.433.81
(i Iher financial assets 7 738.80 268.15
DefeS™ tax assels (net) 8 24.28 98.17
Nor*SUrant tax assels (net) 14 4.08 34.52
To£2! ln-current assets 77,854.50 66,301.93
CufFel assets
|nveﬂhies 9 68.63 190.90
Fin&a Nt assets
i Thde receivables 10 1,065.27 2,087.17
@ity Cish and cash equivalents 1 4.80 874.04
(i) Olher bank balances 12 2,733.27 207.25
{iv) Cher financial assets 13 2.017.10 1.83
Other turent assets 15 12.12 13.72
Total turrant assets 550119 3,354.91
Total 2zets §3,755.69 §9.656.84
Equityand llabilities
Equity
Equity share capital 16 167.01 167.01
Othver equity 17 72.670.96 63.285.09
Total oquity 72,837.97 53,452.10
Liabilities
Non~cWrent liabilitles
Financhl liabilitles
{i) Lease liabilities 13 40,57 43.69
{iy Ot_her financial liabilities 19 8,353.34 -
Provisions 20 0.39 0.23
Total non-current llabilities 8,394.30 48.92
Current liabilities
Finandial liabilities
{i} Bomowings 24 218.72 1,512.59
{ii) Lease liabifities 21 14.76 6.90
{iii} Trade payables 22
~Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises; and 0.23 0.30
-Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises 1.786.81 442507
{iv) Other financisl liabilities 23 308.50 51.63
Provistns 26 0.10 0.05
Other current liabilities 25 194.30 163.18
Total current liabilites 2,523.42 §,155.92
Total equity and liabilities 83.755.69 69,656.84
Surnmary of material accounting policies 3

The summary of material accounting policies and other expianatory information are an integrai part of these standalone financial statements.

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred ta in our report of even date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP

Chartered Accoimtants

Firm Registration No: 001076N/MNS00013
v

k Gogia
Partner
Membership No: 512371

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024

Company Secretary

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Integris Health Private Limited
(
f
/ MVV"{ }

For Integris Health Pvt. Ltd.

Indranil Mukherjee- arma
Director Director
DIN Number: 06692898 DIN: 00821812

-——
- -
- .

Kewdl Krishan Jindal 2250 ProXy

ChigiFinancial Officar (,é J';.$ %\
Place: New Delhi ol
4| New Delni) 3 ji

Date: 30 September 2024




In#*%ris Heaith Private Limited

St”~Ndalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the yoaar anded 31 March 2024

civ U85110DL2008PTC177230

(A 2nounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

Not For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Ines “Me
Re*~™ue from operations 27 5,830.99 6,269.93
Ot 1% income 28 4,580.15 2,363.34
To# 4 Income 10,411.14 8,633.27
Exp-""Nes
Pur hases of traded goods 29 5,346.19 5,708.32
ChZ2"es in inventories of traded goods 30 12227 67.25
Erme Phyee benefits expense 31 21.66 43.84
FinAe costs 32 §78.37 16.76
Deg?'eclation and amorlisation expense 33 10.31 10.18
Ol et expanses 34 335.72 360.55
Tot:2 expensas 6,714.52 6,206.90
Prerfitbafore exceptional itern and tax 3,696.62 2,426.37
Exc=€plional itern 47 302.37 264.33
Proofit before tax 3,394.26 2,162.04
Tax EXpense 35
CurTent tax 278.49 156.29
Def@red tax 73.89 (34.24}
Earlier years tax adjustments {net) 1.53 37.89
Totaltax expense 35491 159.94
Profitfor the year 3.039.34 2,002.10
Cthzer comprehensive income
Iterm1s that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re~Imeasurements of the defined benefit plans ()] 7.83
Inceme tax relating to above item (0.00) (2.18)
Total other comprehensive income for the yaar 0.01 5.6%
Total comprehiensive income for the year 3,038.35 2.007.75
Earnings per equity share (Rs. 10 per share) 358
Basic(Rs.) 212.59 120.22
Diluted (Rs.) 21259 120.22
Surmmary of material accounting policies 3

The summary of materiai accounting policies and other explanatory information are an integral part of these standalone financial statements.

This s Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date

For Walker Chandick & Co LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/MNS500013

Place: New Delhj
Date: 30 September 2024

For

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of

Integris Health Private Limited

.nif:ffi‘;ff;’:;‘l‘ M/

Director
DIN Number:; 066925808

Place: Mew Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024

8 Health Pvt, Ltq,

Company Secretary

Director
DIN: 00821812

L
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dalone Statement of Cash flows for the year ended 31 March 2024

&M ugs110DL2008PTC17T230

gﬁ..—_.—*ﬂ“hnunrs in Rs. }akhs! unless otherwise stated)

For the year ended
31 March 2024

For the year ended
31 March 2023

/A lish flow from operating activities

Frofit before tax but after exceptional Items 3,384.25 2182.04
justments for:

Bpreciation and amortisation expensa 10.71 10.18
“nance costs 878.37 16.76
bigrest income (1,058.51} {356.53)
Wpairment of invesiment 302.57 264.33
Bisre af proft fram Investment In Limited Liability Farinershup {'LLF} 13,255.00} 11.867.00)
Urrealised gain on exchange rate fluctuation (net) {27.31) {129.30)
Eipacted {reversal) / credit loss on trade recelvables (265.20) 130.64
Bad debts - 54.44
Operating profiti{loss) before working capital {20.82) 286.5¢
] tin working |
ecrease)increase in trade payables {2,634.59) 1,557.37
Insrease/ (Decrease) in provisions 0.21 {7.37}
forease in other ljabilities 285.58 191.30
scraase/{Increasa) in irade receivables 1,267.10 {1,280.08)
Uscrease In inventories 122.27 67.25
Decrease In lans and advances and other cument assets 1.80 30.44
herease In other financial assets {149.93) <
Cagh flow {used injgeneratad from oparations {1,127.58) 845.47
Icome tax paid (net) {248.81) {177.67)
Hot cash flow {used In}generated from operating activities A {1,376.40) 867.80

E* Cash flows from inveating activities
Share of profit from Investment in LLP 3,255.00 1,857.00
wvesiment made during the year (10,693.74)
Wovament in bank deposits {net) (4,261.88) (193.50)
loans given {6,122.44) {3,653.31)
Loans repayments received 5,358.99 -
hlerast racetved 456.60 232.90
Hat cash used in investing activities B {12,005.47) {1,748.91}
Cash flows from financing activities
Proceads from issue of compulsory convertible preference shares 13.873.94 -
Payment of lease liabikities (Including interest of Rs 2.97 lakhs{31 March 2023:Rs 5.23 lakhs)} {17.18} (4.56}
Proceeds from short term bomowings 156.13 -
Repaymenrds of shorl term borrowings (1,450.00} 1,512.59
Finance cost paid {50271 {B.45)
Hst cash flows from financing activities c 12,512.62 1,499.57
Net Increase in cash and cash equivalents {A+B+C) (869.24) 420.46
Cash and cash equivalents at the baginning of the year 874.04 453.50
Cash and cash sgquivalents at the and of the year 4.80 a74.04
Hotes:
Components of cash and cash equivalents
Cagh on hand 0.22 0.44
Baiances with banks in curant accounts 4.58 573.60
4.80 B74.04
Changas in liabilities arislng from financing activities:
As at 31 March 2024
Interast
Particulars 1 Aprit 2023 Cash flows axpenss/Adjustment 31 March 2024
Borrawings (current) (refer note 23) 1,51289  (1.283.87T) - 218.72
Leass liabilities 58.50 (17.18) 16.92 55.33
Interest accrued but not due on barrowirigs (refer note 24) 1.50 (50.27) 47.59 1.18
Total liabilities for financing activities 1,569.68 (1,361.32) 64.51 275.23

As at 31 March 2023

1 April 2022 Cash flows

Interest expense

31 March 2023

Borrowings (non-current and current) (refer note 23) - 1,612,508 - 1,512.59
Lease Yiahilites 54.92 {4.56) 5.23 55.59
Interest accrued but not due on borrowinas {refer note 24) - (8.48) 0.98 1.50
Total liabilities for financing activities 54.92 1,489.57 15.19 1,569.68
The abova Cash Flow Stalement has been prepared as per the “indirect method® set out in Ind AS 7 - Cash Flow Statements,
This is the Standalone Stalement of Cash Flows rafamed to in cur report of even date.
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and cn behalf of the Board, of Directors of
Chartersd Accountants Intggris Health Private Limi
Firmn Ragistration Mo: 00107T6N/NSO0013 f
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Gogia Indranil Mukherjee Punita Sharma
ner Direictor Directar

DIN Mumber: 066928

DIN: 00821512

Membarship Mo: 512371

Chief Financial Officer

Place: New Delhi
Data: 30 Saptembar 2024

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30 Septembar 2024




in#lis Health Private Limited
St alone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
cir¥:Ug5110DL2008PTC177230

{Af/,:_-i’hounts in Rs. lakhs, unless otherwise stated)

A k% share capital*
P Balance as at Issued during Balance as at
GutE 31 March 2023 the year 31 March 2024
_—ity share capital 167.01 - 167.01
B Jomar equity™
Miculars Other aquity Total
T Equity component of L
compulsory convartible Secun!.les W““’
aeh " premium earnings
Bilnce as at 1 April 2022 - 56,527.92 4,749.42 61,277.34
Pt for the: yaar - - 2,002.10 2.002.10
Oher comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 5.65 5.65
Bilnce as at 31 March 2023 - 56,527.92 6,757.17 63,285.09
P 1okt for the year = - 3.029.34 3.039.34
7% Compulscry Convertible Preference Shares (Equity Component) 6,346.52 - 6,346.52
Othsr comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - S 0.01 0.01
Bzhnce as at 31 March 2024 6,346.52 56,527.92 9,796.52 72,670.96

*Fefor note 16 for details
**Refer note 17 for detaits

This %lhe Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of aven date.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Chartered Accountants Intagris Health Private Limited

Firrn Registration No: 0041076N/NS00013
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K Gogia Indranil Mukher, nita Sharma
Partner Director ; irecgg///—
DIN Number: OBE92898 DiiN: 21812

Membership No: 512371\ -

ishan Jindal
ancial Officer

Kewal
Chief

Place: New Delhi Placa: New Delhi
Date: 30 September 2024 my Date: 30 September 2024




a)

Integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024

Lompany overview

Integris Health Private Limited (the 'Company’), having Corporate Identification Number ('CIN')
LB5110DL2008PTC177230 is a private company domiciled in India and was incorporated on 25 April 2008,
“The Cormpany Is engaged In the buslness of trading of coronary stent systems, and related products including
Falloon catheters, vascular access products and accessories. The registered address of the Company is
Fecated at 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi -110060, India.

Basis of preparation
(i} Statement of compliance with Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)

“These standalone financial statements (financial statements’) of the Company have been prepared in
gtcordance with the Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS') as notified by the
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA") under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) read with the
Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rs.’ or ‘INR") (its functional and presentation
currency} and all values are rounded off to the nearest lakhs or decimals thereof, except where otherwise
indicated. Adding the individual figures may therefore not always result in the exact total given.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 March 2024 were authorized and approved for issue by the
Board of Directors on 30 September 2024.

(11} Historical cost convention

The financial statements have been prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at fair value.

(iii) Current versus non-current classification

All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s operating cycle
and other criteria set out in Division [l of Schedule HI of the Act. The Company has identified twelve months as
its operating cycle.

Summary of material accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared using the material accounting policies and measurement bases
summarised as below. These policies are applied consistently for all the periods presented in the financial
statements, except where the Company has applied certain accounting policies and exemptions upon transition
to Ind AS.

Property, plant and equipment

Recognition and initial measurement

Property, plant and equipment are stated at their cost of acquisition. The cost comprises purchase price,
borrowing cost if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working
condition for the intended use. Any trade discount and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.
Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the
Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are
recognised in statement of profit and loss.

Subsequent measurement (depreciation method, useful lives and residual value)

Property, plant and equipment are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and

impairment losses. Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method based on

estimated useful life of the asset after cansidering the residual value as set out in Schedule Il to the Act referred

above, ATND
//__'\’,‘.'-" “-'Jl'.'.'.x.‘
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b)

c)

integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Asset class Useful life
Office equipments 5 years

Depreclation is calculated on pro rata basis from the date on which the asset is ready for use or till the date the
Asset is sold or disposed.

“The residual values, useful lives and method of depreciation are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant component initially recognised is derecognised
vipon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arnsing on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is recognized in the statement of profit and loss, when the asset is de-recognised.

Revenue recoghnition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Revenue is recognized upon
transfer of control of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration the
Company expects to receive in exchange for those services. Revenue is measured net of rebates, discounts
and taxes. The Company applies the revenue recognition criteria to each component of the revenue transaction
as set ouf below.

Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized when goods are transferred for a price, all significant risk and rewards
of the ownership have been transferred to the customer, no effective control is retained with respect to goods
transferred to a degree usually associated with ownership, no significant uncertainty exists regarding the
amount of consideration and collectability of amount is reasonably assured. The Company considers the terms
of the contract and its customary business practices to determine the transaction price. The transaction price
is the amount of consideration to which the Company expects to be entitled in exchange for the goods excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third parties (for example, indirect taxes).

A receivable is recognised by the Company when the control is transferred as this is the case of point in time
recognition where consideration is unconditional because only the passage of time is required When either
party to a contract has performed, an entity shall present the contract in the balance sheet as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship between the entity’s performance and the payment.

Income from services

Qther operating revenue
Revenue from other allied activities is recognised once there is certainty regarding the amount of consideration
and collectability of amount is reasonably assured.

Other Income

interest income

Interest income is recognised on time proportion basis considering the amount outstanding and rate applicable.
For all financial assets measured at amortised cost, interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate
(EIR) i.e. the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to the net carrying amount of the financial assets.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets comprise softwares including accounting software, related licences and implementation cost
of accounting software. Intangible assets are stated at cost of acquisition less impairment (if any) and include
all attributable costs of bringing intangible assets to its working condition for its indented use. Intangible assets
are amortised over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis, commencing from the date the asset is
available to the Company for its use. Useful life of computer software and other intangible assets is taken as 3
years by the management.




Integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

d) Right of use assets and lease liabilities

e)

f)

“The Company considers whether a contract is, or contains a lease. A lease is defined as ‘a contract, or part of
4 contract, that conveys the right to use an asset (the underlying asset) for a period of time in exchange for
£onsideration’.

Classification of leases

“The Company enters into leasing arrangements for various assets. The assessment of the lease is based on
geveral factors, including, but not limited to, transfer of ownership of leased asset at end of lease term, lessee’s
option to extend/purchase ete.

i} Right of use assets

Recognition and initial measurement
Atlease commencement date, the Company recognises a right-of-use asset and a lease liability on the balance
sheet. The right-of-use asset is measured at cost, which is made up of the initial measurement of the lease
[ability, any initial direct costs incurred by the Company, an estimate of any costs to dismantle and remove the
asset at the end of the lease (if any), and any lease payments made in advance of the lease commencement
date (net of any incentives received).

Subsequent measurement

The Company depreciates the right-of-use assets on a straight-line basis from the lease commencement date
to the earlier of the end of the useful life of the right-of-use asset or the end of the lease term. The Company
also assesses the right-of-use asset for impairment when such indicators exist.

if) Lease liabilities

At lease commencement date, the Company measures the lease liability at the present value of the lease
payments unpaid at that date, discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease if that rate is readily
available or the Company’s incremental borrowing rate. Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability are made up of fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) and variable payments
based on an index or rate. Subsequent to initial measurement, the liability will be reduced for payments made
and increased for interest. it is re-measured to reflect any reassessment or modification, or if there are changes
in in-substance fixed payments. When the lease liability is re-measured, the corresponding adjustment is
reflected in the right-of-use asset.

iii} Short-term leases

The Company has elected to account for short-term leases using the practical expedients. Instead of
recognising a right-of-use asset and lease liabilify, the payments in relation to these are recognised as an
expense in statement of profit and loss on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined on first in, first out basis,
in respect of raw materials and stores and spares. Cost includes freight, taxes and duties and excludes duties
and taxes that are recoverable subsequently from tax authorities.

In respect of traded goods, cost includes cost of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories
to their present location and condition.

Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Provision for slow moving/non moving inventory is estimated and made by the management, wherever
necessary, based on the past experience of the Company.

Taxation

Tax expense recognized in statementﬁfﬂfﬁiﬁt‘@qd loss comprises the sum of deferred tax and current tax

o

except to the extent it recognized 1n;_(;t}'rér compréhensive income or directly in equity.
ot
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a)

Mitegris Health Private Limited
Ummary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
21 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Lurrent tax comprises the tax payable on taxable income for the year and any adjustment to the tax payable or
Feeivable in respect of previous years. Current tax is computed in accordance with relevant tax regulations.
“The amount of current tax payable or receivable is the best estimate of the tax amount expected to be paid or
¥ ceived after considering uncertainty related to income taxes, if any Citrrent tax relating tn items recognised
“ltside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Current tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
#mounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously.

[Deferred tax is recognised in respect of temporary differences between carrying amount of assets and liabilities
far financial reporting purposes and corresponding amount used for taxation purposes. Deferred tax assets are
recognised on unused tax loss, unused tax credits and deductible temporary differences to the extent it is
plobable that the future taxable profits will be available against which they can be used. This is assessed based
onthe Company's forecast of future operating results, adjusted for significant non-taxable income and expenses
and specific limits on the use of any unused tax loss. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-assessed at
ezach reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the
asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted at the reporting date. The measurement of deferred tax reflects the tax consequences
that would follow from the manner in which the Company expects, at the reporting date to recover or settle the
carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset only if there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts, and it is intended to realise the asset and settle the liability on a net basis or simultaneously. Deferred
tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised outside statement of profit or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity).

Employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits

All employee benefits payable/available within twelve months of rendering the services are classified as short-
term employee benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, bonus, etc. are recognised in the statement of profit
and loss in the period in which the employee renders the related service.

Post-employment benefit plans are classified into defined benefits plans and defined contribution plans
as under:

Defined confribution plan
The Company has a defined contribution plans namely provident fund and pension scheme. The contribution
made by the Company in respect of these plans are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan

The Company has an obligation towards gratuity, a defined benefit retirement plan covering eligible employees.
Under the defined benefit plans, the amount that an employee will receive on retirement is defined by reference
to the employee’s length of service and last drawn salary. The liability recognised in the statement of financial
position for defined benefit plans is the present value of the Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO) at the reporting
date. Management estimates the DBO annually with the assistance of independent actuaries. Actuarial
gains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability/asset are included in other comprehensive income.

Other long-term employee benefits

The Company also provides the benefit of compensated absences to its employees which are in the nature of
long-term employee benefit plan. Liability in respect of compensated absences becoming due and expected to
availed after one year from the balance sheet date is estimated in the basis of an actuarial valuation performed
by an independent actuary using the projected unit credit method as on the reporting date. Actuarial gains and
losses arising from past experience and changes in actuarial assumptions are charged to statement of profit
and loss in the year in which such gains or losses are determined.




h)

i)

k)

Integris Health Private Limited
Aummary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
21 March 2024 (Cont’d)

Frovisions, contingent liabilities and contingent assets

Frovisions are recognized only when there is a present obligation, as a result of past events, and when a reliable
estimate of the amount of abligation can be made at the reporting date, These estimates are reviewed at earh
réporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimates. Provisions are discounted to their present
walues, where the time value of money is material.

Contingent liability is disclosed for;

» Possible obligations which will be confirmed only by future events not wholly within the control of the
Company or

« Present obligations arising from past events where it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation or a reliable estimate of the amount of the obligation cannot be made.

Contingent assets are neither recognised nor disclosed except when realisation of income is virtually certain,
related asset is disclosed.

[ mpairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether there is any indication that an asset may be impaired.
Ifany such indication exists, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. Recoverable amount
is higher of an asset’s net selling price and its value in use. If such recoverable amount of the asset or the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the asset belongs is less than its carrying amount, the
cafrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss. If at the reporting date there is an indication that if a previously
assessed impairment loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at
the recoverable amount, subject to a maximum of depreciated historical cost.

Foreign currency

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statement of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The financial statements have
been prepared and presented in Indian Rupees (%), which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency, by applying the exchange rates on
the foreign currency amounts at the date of the transaction. Foreign currency monetary items outstanding at
the balance sheet date are converted to functional currency using the closing rate. Non-monetary items
denominated in a foreign currency which are carried at historical cost are reported using the exchange rate at
the date of the transaction.

Exchange differences

Exchange differences arising on monetary items on settlement, or restatement as at reporting date, at rates
different from those at which they were initially recorded, are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in
the year in which they arise.

Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or
equity instrument of another entity.

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the Company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the financial instrument and are measured initially at fair value adjusted for transaction costs.
Subsequent measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities is described below.




Integgris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Non-derivative financial assets

Suhsequent measurement
Financial assets carried at amortised cost ~ A ‘financial asset’ is measured at the amartised cost if both the
following conditions are met:

# The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash
flows, and

« Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate (EIR) method.

De-recognition of financial assets

Afinancial asset is de-recognised when the contractual rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired
or the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

Non-derivative financial llabilities

Subsequent measurement
Subsequent to initial recognition, all non-derivative financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

De-recognition of financial liabilities

Afinancial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there
is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle cn a
net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Investments in equity instruments of subsidiaries
These are measured at cost in accordance with Ind AS 27 ‘Separate Financial Statements'.
Fair value measurement

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset of transfer the liability takes place either:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability; or
* Inthe absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset considers a market participant's ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient
data are available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising
the use of unobservable inputs. CARNDIGN
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P)

Integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
1 March 2024 (Cont'd)

Al assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are
Categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is
Shnificant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

# |Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

# Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

« |level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company
cletermines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of
ezach reporting period.

Involvement of external valuers is decided upon annually by the Company. At each reporting date, the
Company analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be remeasured
Ofre-assessed as per the accounting policies. For this analysis, the Company verifies the major inputs applied
inthe latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on
the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy
as explained above.

Impairment of financial assets

Inaccordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss ('ECL') model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss for financial assets. ECL is provided for when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk and then, factors historical trends and forward looking information. An impairment loss is
recognised either based on the 12 months’ probability of default or lifetime probability of default.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach of Ind AS 109, which requires
measurement of loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime expected credit losses. Lifetime expected credit
losses are the expected credit losses that result from all possible default events over the expected life of such
receivables.

Other financial assets

In respect of its other financial assets, the Company assesses if the credit risk on those financial assets has
increased significantly since initial recognition. If the credit risk has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses,
else at an amount equal to the lifetime expected credit losses.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in hand and short-term bank deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision maker is considered to be the Board of Directors who
makes strategic decisions and is responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the
operating segments. :

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculategﬁ_@?gigi\ng the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders (after deducting attrib 1‘% 1€ taxes)By the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the period. The weighted average numbeh@f equity shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for
events including a bonus issue. \ o




q)

Integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont'd)

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to
equity shareholders and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period are adjusted for
the effects of all dilutive potential equity shares.

Significant management judgement in applying accounting policies and estimation uncertainty

“The preparation of the Company’s financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimates
2nd assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the related
disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

a)

b}

c)

d)

a)

b)

c}

Significant management judgements

Recognition of deferred tax assets — The extent to which deferred tax assets can be recognized is based
on an assessment of the probability of the Company's future taxable income against which the deferred tax
assets can be utilized.

Evaluation of indicators for impairment of assets ~ The evaluation of applicability of indicators of
impairment of assets requires assessment of several external and internal factors which could result in
deterioration of recoverable amount of the assets.

Leases — The Company evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of
Ind AS 116. identification of a lease requires significant judgment. The Company uses significant judgement
in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Company
determines the lease term as the non-cancellable period of a lease, together with both periods covered by
an option to extend the lease if the Company is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and periods
covered by an option to terminate the lease if the Company is reasonably certain not to exercise that option.
In assessing whether the Company is reasonably certain to exercise an option to extend a lease, or not to
exercise an option to terminate a lease, it considers all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Company to exercise the option to extend the lease, or not to exercise the option
to terminate the lease. The Company revises the lease term if there is a change in the non-canceliable
period of a lease.

Provisions — At each balance sheet date basis the management judgment, changes in facts and legal
aspects, the Company assesses the requirement of provisions against the outstanding contingent liabilities.
However, the actual future outcome may be different from this judgement.

Significant estimates

Impairment of financial assets — At each balance sheet date, based on historical default rates observed
over expected life, existing market conditions as well as forward looking estimates, the management
assesses the expected credit losses on outstanding receivables and advances. Further, management also
considers the factors that may influence the credit risk of its customer base, including the default risk
associated with industry and country in which the customer operates.

Defined benefit obligation (DBO} - Management's estimate of the DBO is based on a number of
underlying assumptions such as standard rates of inflation, mortality, discount rate and anticipation of future
salary increases. Variation in these assumptions may significantly impact the DBO amount and the annual
defined benefit expenses.

Useful lives of depreciable/amortisable assets — Management reviews its estimate of the useful lives of
depreciable/amortisable assets at each reporting date, based on the expected utility of the assets.
Uncertainties in these estimates relate to technical and economic obsolescence that may change the
utilisation of assets.




Integris Health Private Limited
Summary to the material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended
31 March 2024 (Cont’d)

r) “The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules,
2023 dated 31 March 2023 to amend the following Ind AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on
©rafter 1 April 2023. As part of the transition to Ind AS, the Company has also considered following amendments
{where relevant) in the preparation of its standalone financial statements.

#nd AS - 1 Presentation of Financial Statements

“The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing
the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their
“material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.

“The amendments have had an impact on the Company’s disclosures of accounting policies, but not on the
rheasurement, recognition or presentation of any items in the Company's financial statements.

Ind AS - 12 Income Taxes

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so that it no longer
applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences such as leases.

The Company previously recognised for deferred tax on leases on a net basis. As a result of these amendments,
the Company has recognised a separate deferred tax asset in relation to its lease liabilities and a deferred tax
Ifability in relation to its right-of-use assets. Since, these balances qualify for offset as per the requirements of
paragraph 74 of Ind AS 12, there is no impact in the balance sheet. The amendments had no impact on the
Company’s standalone financial statements.

Ind AS - 8 Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how entities use measurement techniques and
inputs to develop accounting estimates. The amendments had no impact on the Company's standalone
financial statements.

Ind AS - 16 Property, Plant and Equipment
The Ministry of Corparate Affairs ("MCA”) vide notification dated March 23, 2022, has issued an amendment to

fnd AS 16 which specifies that an entity shall deduct from the cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
any proceeds received from selling items produced while the entity is preparing the asset for its intended use.




Integrig® lisalth Private Limited

SummaA" of material accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024
CIN: ugs# TIDL2008PTC177230

{All amoi 2% in Rs. lakhs, unless othenwise stated)

4. 7 T%erty, plant and equipment (PPE)

P Sticulars Office equipment Total
e
7 "s block
B 2ince as at 1 April 2022 262 262
p~diions during the year - -
cYidosale - -
E53ince as at 31 March 2023 2.62 2.62
litions during the year - -
?isosals - -
EFalinge as at 31 March 2024 2,62 2.62
MmCtymulated depreclation
ESalince as at 1 April 2022 0.81 0.81
[>Emeciation charge for the year 0.43 0.43
R2e'ersal on disposal - -
Bsaknce as at 31 March 2023 1.24 1.24
Dereciation charge for the year 0.43 0.43
Reersal on disposal - -
Bahnce as at 31 March 2024 1.87 1.67
Metblock as at 31 March 2023 1.38 1.38
Metblock as at 31 March 2024 0.95 0.95
Mot

1. The Company has not revalued property, piant and equipments during the year.
2. Mo PPE have been taken on lease.

4A. Right of use assets

Particulars Buildings Total
@ross block

Bahince as at 1 April 2022 68.97 68.97
Additions during the year = -
Drisposals = -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 68.97 88.97
Addilions during the year 13.95 13.95
Disposals - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 §2.92 82.92
Accumulated depreciation

Balance as at 1 April 2022 22.45 22.45
Depreciation charge for the year 9.75 9.75
Reversal on disposal - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 32.20 32.20
Depreciation charge for the year 9.88 9.88
Reversal on disposal - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 42.08 42.08
Net block as at 31 March 2023 36.77 36.77
Net block as at 31 March 2024 40.84 40.84

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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Summary of map <l Accounting policies and other explanatory information for the vear ended 31 March 2024
CIN: UB5110DL 2008 #F 8177230

(Al amilinta in Rs jz l"“:;q- Uniass atharwise staied)

5. i )

——=2men
Particutarg

Ag at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Tencurrar® ! esiments (carried at cost):
{IHovastme™™ In equity sharas of wholly owned subsidisries: (Unquated)

Maasureq #3Most:
{Ungquotea
25,000 (31 FV¥eh 2023: 25,000) fully paid-up equity shares of Face value Eura-1 sach in Arle GmbH, Manich, Germany 77008 7ra s
Less; Impal #7500 I vafue af Investment in Artle GmbH, Munich, Germany (refer note 47) [778.08) 475 69)
805,000 (39 'I\‘a_!ch 2023: 5,00,000) fully paid-up equity shares of face value Eura 1 each jn Transluming GmbH, Gemmany® 1212659 143285
3,000,000 (= March 2073: 3,000 000 Nilly paKt-up Aty shaews of fara valiz Bs 10 each in Transhealin Bruate |miad, tndis 300,00 AN,00
2,000,000 [5' Waren 2023: 2,000,000) fully pald-up equily shares af face valie Rs. 10 each in Transvalve Health Private Limiled, India 200,00 20000
12,626.59 223522
1} Interegt #MLLP
Partnership  Mtttest in Transiumina Therapeulics LLP (TTLLP). india (rafer nole {li} balow) 5519381 5519291
55,193.91 55.192.91
67,820.50 57.429.13
99 vz afung 66,690 66 57.904.62
Agaregale s Munt of impaimment in value of invasimanls 77005 47569
* During Ihe Y0, Company has made addilional invesimenl of 305,000 equity shares in Transluming GmbH amownding 1o Rx 10,692.74 lakhs at face vaus of Eurs 1 par shars
{1 Invastme # i subsidiaries are slated st cost using princlples of Ind AS 27 'Separste Financial Stalements
(i} A% ped thn€ Parinership deed, the Company has subscribed to 9% interest In TILF, however, its shar in prafils/loss of TTLP is 100%
% Loans
Partleulars Lol As i
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Loan lo relat @4 parties* 9,224 95 843381
9.224.98 2,433.81
*Parilculars 2 fulish are displaved below as required by Section 186(4) af G Aict, 2013, Loan to redated parties are given for warking copital
Name of Lo aaPe As at As at
Maturity Date Rate of Interest Term of loan 34 March 2024 31 March 2023
Transluming Gmbh* 31-Mar-25 TE0% 3 years - 2.451.41%
Translumina Gabh 31-Mar-25 7.50% 2 yaars 445185 1.873.40
Transheah Frvats Limiled 03-0cl-27 3 % 4 years 4,550.01 2.384.00
Transvalve Feallh Privals Limiled 03-0cl-27 B0I% A years 183.00 25.00
* Loan given 16T Gmbh @4% lo Rs 2,451 41 a5 on 21 Mareh 2023 has been revised Lo 7.50% from 1 April 2023
7 Other financial assets- non current
As at As at
'articulars
Ran 31 March 2024 3 March 2023
Securnily dep osis 521 542
Inleres! acerired but not dus on lean 1o refated party frefer note 43} FIIE6 247 B8
Bank deposits wilh malurly for more than 12 months - 14,97
738.89 268,15
# Delerred tax asseis {net)

; As at As at
Eamiculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Deferred tax asset arising on account of @

Provision for emplayee banahils 014 008
Property, plantand equipment 254 G112
Alowance for expecled cradil loss 2967 103,45
Right of use assal and 1#ass ligbikties 8.07) {5.24)
24.28 99.17
Mavement ir deferred tax assets (nedl
igrised!
Recognised! o ognised in other
Particulars As at raversed Snmncahensive As at
1Apei 2029 through profit P eamy 31 March 2024
and loss
Liabilitles
Assels
Provigion for employsa benaflls oog 0.08 {000y 014
Property, plant and squipment Q.12) 266 - 254
ANawanca far expactsd cradll loss 10345 Farm . 2867
_Righl of use 2ssel and fzase labililles (5.24) (2.63) - (8.07)
Total 58.17 {73.88) [0.00] 24.28
i
Reaognized) Recognised in other
Farticulars hEat veversed T prehensive As at
1 April 2022 through profit Thconme 31 March 2023
and lgss
Linbilities
Assets
Provisian for employes baneflls 193 033 218 008
Propery, ptanl and equipment 01y e.11) - .12
losses and unab preciali 137 (1.an = +
Allowance for Bxpected cradil lss €0.71 4274 = 10345
Righl of use asset and lease iabililjss 211 (7.35) - (5.24)
Total 6611 34.24 [218) 88,17
9 Inventories
As at A at
ganicuars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
[valued at lower of cost or nat realisable value)
Traded goods BR53 15050
63.63 190.90
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Summary £~ Naterial accounting pollcies and other explanatory informatlon for the year ended 31 March 2024
v ¥

CIN: Las11o I EPTC177230
(Al amoungs /2= Jtirs, Unless ofherwise stated)
9 In/=""es
Pz iy, Asgat As at
T 31 March 2024 M March 2023
! : at lowar of cost of net rmalisabla valua)
T =" t00ds 68.63 190.890
BH.63 188.30
0 T2 Hncajvables
Pa ey Az al At al
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Urs = “"fed, Considered good 106527 205717
Urp = =%d, Considered doubtiull 106.71 371.85
. 1,171.98 2,439.02
Le#5 £ Nlawance for sxpecled cradit loss {10571} {37T1.65)
1,065.27 2,067.17
Tre2 S icsivables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2024
R Outstanding for following periods from due date of paymeant
P, Particul Less than & & months- p
= culars Not due months 1 year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables:
1 considered good 20774 74644 4883 5893 233 G.00 1,065.27
2 which have sigrificant incregse in credil rigk 251 1432 B.54 A26 1497 761 106.71
3 credit inpaired - - = - =
Disputad trada
1 consldered guod - - - - - - -
2  which have significant increase in credit risk - - - - - - -
3 credit impaired ~ - - = - - -
Total 210.25 760.76 57.37 63,19 4.30 76.11 1,171.98

Note

{iy M IRy receivables are due from directors or ather officers of the Company silher severally of Jaintly with any othar psrson. Trade receivables are non-nterest bearing.

Trade Boejvables ageing schedule as at 31 March 2023

Qutstanding for following periods from due date of paymant
. Less tham 6 6 months-
MNo. Partlcula ot d - .
s artlculars Mot dus HaRtHs 4 yaar 1-Zyears 2-3years More than 3 years Total
Undisputed trade receivables:
1 considered good 1.339.92 882.00 423 2253 2225 10264 241265
2 which have signlficant increase in credir risk - - - - - 2837 26.37
3 craditimpairad - - . . < = .
Disputsd trade fua bl
1 considered good - - - - - - -
2 which have significant Incraase in cradit risk = = = = 3 = -
3 credit impaired - = = = - - 2
Total 1,339.92 BEZ.00 42.31 22,53 2225 130.01 2,439.02

Note =

{i} o trade raceivables are due from directors or other officers of the Company elther severally or juintly wilh any other psrson. Trade racelvables are non-interest bearing

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Az at As at
ulars
Bartid a1 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash onthand 022 044
Ralances with banks
-current accounts 4 56 67360
4.80 a74.04
12 Other bank balances
As at Asat
ulars
Partig 21 March 2024 31 March 2023
Fixed depasita with origmal maturity of more than three months but kess than lwelve months * 273327 207.25
2,73.37 207.25
“Inchudes fixed deposils pledged with banks as margin monsy for issuance of bank guarantee amounting to ? 15 30 lzkhs {31 March 2022: 5 lakhs)
13 Other financial assets-current
jculars As at Asat
Partice 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
interest accrued but not dus on fixed deposils 116.23 1.83
Interssl accrued but riot dus on loan to relaled party (refer note 43) 7IiGe 247.06
Fixed doposits with original malwrity more than 12 months but remaining maturity less than 12 months* 1,750.83 -
Oilher receivables 150.04 -
. 2,750.78 245.69
“Includes fixed deposils pledged wilth Kotal bank for sanclion of Cash cradit imit. {Rafer nota 24},
44 MNon-gurrert tax assets [net)
Az at As at
fars
Parlicu_ 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Prapaid Ncome taxes (net of provisions) 408 34.52
4.08 34.52
15 Other current assets
As at As at
lars
Particu 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Advances to suppliers 0.04 0.32
Balanze with governmanl authorilies 11.45 1258
Advance to employee - 018
Prepa] eXpanses 063 086
1242 13.72
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Summary of mat:#/13l accounting policies and other explanatory information far the year ended 31 March 2024
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(Al amouits in R, oA . Ik Unless othenwise statad)

16 Equity she "*copkal

wii

A

1

7

_—

Partioulars? As at 31 March 2024 As al 31 March 2023

ea——— Nirmber Amount dumib Amount

Authorizec?

Eqully shar#™ 5l Rs, 10 sach wilh voling righls 2,000,000 200.00 2,000,000 200.00
2,000,000 200 2,000,000 00

Issuad, sy ®ibed and fully paid up

Equity shar# ‘apital of race valus of Rs. 10 sash fully pald up 1,670,078 1B7:01 1,670,078 167.01
1,670,078 16701 1,670,078 167.01

Reconcilia#0 of numpber of squity shares outsianding at the baginning and at the end of the year

Equity sha £
Balance at £/ beginning of the year 1,670,078 167.01 1,670,078 187.01
Balance gt ™™ end of 1he year 1,670,078 167.01 1,670,078 167.01

Rights, presfetences and restrictions atached to equity shares

The Compeat T has only one ¢lass of equily shares having e par value of Rs. 10/ per share. Each holder of equity share 1s entitied lo one vole par share. The Com and pays n
Indian rupe#* All shareholders are equally enlitled Lo dividends.

As per Ihe Avlicles of Associalion (the "AOA] of the Company, In The evenl of liquidalion, di lon or admisslon of winding up p dings by an approprate courl or iAbunal, either vokmlary or
involurdary, e Evercure Hobding Pla. Limited {he Irvestor) shall have the righl in prafarence |o any ather sharehokders of the Company lo requlre the Company, and Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh and Me
Puriita Shas™™ {Ihe 'Founders'_l {cn a reasonable efforts basis) (o ensure thal ihe liguidaler is appok Io Nquidale he C in order to di 1he p ds from the i af Ine Comp
which rema T% aftar disch g the llabilities of tha Company to ihe Investor, such that the Inveslor receives Ihe Liquidation Price {as dehined in the ADA) sub]ecl to applicable laws, 0 prorly cver any
amounts ree=¢ived by any olher ex[stlng shareholden of the Compeny.

Esxtepl with the prior written consent of the Inveslor, the Founders shall nal lranster any of the securliss of the Company hatd by therm ta any person, including compstiler However, Ihe shares held by the

Inyesior sheall subjact 1o the iranst ting a Desd of Adh , b freaty wilhoul ary restrictions of anmy nalure whalsosver,
Details of s Mareholder holding maore than 5% share capltal®. Detalls of equity shares held by the promoter s defined in the © jes-Act, 2013 :
Name of th < ¢quity shareholders As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Numher b ] Number %
M. Gurmit ingh Shigh 334,016 20.00% 334,018 20:00%
hds. Punila Shama 334,016 20.00% 334,018 20 00%
Evarcura Holdng Pte, Limited (Halding Company) 1,002,046 60.00% 1,062,046 60.00%
A3 per regatds of lhe Company. inchuding its register of J bers and other declarat| lvad from sharzhold b il inleras], he above shareholding represents both
legal and be Micial ownerships of shares,
Mote:
1. Thers is rochange In the p S ing in Ihe year anded 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
2. ‘Promulers far llle T ol this disc means lars as defined under section 2069} of Companies Acl, 2013
Agorenats number and class of shares allotted 35 Fully pald up p 1o {5} without | balng ivad in cash, by way of banus shares and shares bought back for the period
Partlculars Az at As at
3 March 2024 H March 2023
Equily share JMottad as fully paid bonus shares by capitalisalion ol' securilies pramium (refer nole {i) below) G542 642
Equily shore slottad as fully paid up | I condrac for olher than cash:
- for loan assignment (refar nole (i) below) an? 307
- for purchase of interest [0 Trans/umina Therapaudics LLP {refer note (i) below) £.84 6.84
16.33 16.33
HNotes:

(i) On 23 April 2019, the Company had |ssusd 843,889 banus equity shares of face value Rs. 10 each to the shareholders whose names appearad in the regisier of membersibenehicial owners posliion as
on the record dale, | e., 22 April 2019 n the praporion of 0.64 equity share For every 1 equity shara of the Company hald,

(iiy The Company had entered into & Share riplion and Loan Assig t A t (LAAY on 13 Diecember 2018 with Transhamina Therapaulics LLP (TTLLPY, M. Guimil Singh Chugh and Ms
Punlia Sharrne (Asslgnars’). Pursuanl Lo the sald ag L and a furlher 1o the ag dalad 17 Aprll 2015, Ihe Company has issued 307,112 equily shares of face value Rs. 10 each al a
premium of Rs. 5558 per equily thare amounling 1o R, 17,100 00 lakhs on 17 Apdl 2019 Io th Assignors against assignmenl of all Ihe rights, nlerssl and ion of lhe Asgi in Hon with

The Inan amount advanced by lhe Assignors to the TTLLP. The assigned lodn wis in TTLLF as mutually agreed between the parties, pursuant to terms of the LAA {refer nole 3).

(in) The Company had eniarsd Inle 3 Share Subscription and Part P Inderesl f A [ (PIPA) on |3 Dacamber 2018 with Translumina Therapeutics LLP {TTLRY, Mr. Gumit Singh Chugh
and Ms. Punila Shama {erstwhike Partnars of TTLLP). Pursuand (o the sa-d agraemani and a further addendum Lo Ihe @greement daled 17 Aprl 2019, the Company has issued 664,158 equity shares of
face valug Rs. 10 each al a premium of Rs. 5,558 per equily share amounling to Rs. 35,053.52 lakhs on 18 Aprll 2099 1o the erstwhile partners of TTLLP againisl purchase of 99% interaslin TTLLP (rfer

nole 5)

{iv} Pursuant 1o & Share Purchase Agreemenl (SPA] batween the Company, Promalers of Ihe Gompany (Mr, Gurmeel Singh Chugh and Ms. Punlla Shama) and Evercure Holding Ple. Limited (lnvastor),
the Promolers have sold 50% Ihair aqully shareholding to the lnveslor on 10 May 2019,

{v) During th& current year, shareholders have pledged 27% of lls 1912l eqully shares (pledgs proporionatsly by exlsting 9 HDFC Bamk as a guranles apalnst letter of credil amounling 1o Rs.,
1,150.00 Lakhs 1o its whally owned subsidiary Campany T GmBH.

Gther equity

As at As at

Ganiculors 31 Mer 2024 1 March 2023
Resarva and surplus

Securities premivm

Openlng balance 56.527.92 56,527.02
Closing balange 58,527.92 56,527.92
Retained aamings

Openlng balange 6,750.85 474079
Add; Profit for the year 3,039.34 2,00210
Closing balance 9,790.23 6,750.89
Other comprehensive income

Opening balance G20 063
Add: Other comprehensive income for Ihe year (el of tax impact) a.01 565
Closing balance 6,29 6.28
Compulsory G ible Prafi Shares {Equity Component]

Opening balance - -
Add: Issued during the year (Rafer note 19) ©,246.52 -
Closing balance 6,346.52 -
Tolal (A +P + C+D) 72,670.96 63,285.09
Nature and purpasa of other reserve

Securlties pramium

rilies premium rep Is p dvad on lssue of shares. The amound is uifised in with the provisions of the Companies Acl 2013,

Retalnad esmings

Feelzinad eamings are used to record Ine proflli(loss) 2amed by the Company. The reserve |s utllised In accordance with the provlsions of the Act,

Oiher compréhapslve incoma

This rapresanls (he ts of lhe defined benefil plan nek of tax} in other com

Comp ¥y Co ibde Pref Shares {Equity Componant) .

Coampulsery C riibte F Shares {Equity Componant) rspresanls the faif Vi of net p d: ived from the lssue of Camp y G ible F

Shares.
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E i armaunts in s J ; efhenyize stated)

T8 Lease liah ‘J’E&‘non.nurrant
—=— "1,

Asat As ag
Pa
Atticand” a1 March 2024 31 March 2023
Lease als 115 mfer fgte 44) 40,57 1859
40,67 48,689
19 Other finang S labiljties
—— A Asal Az at
Particular? 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
7% Compul = Converiible Preference Shares {CCPS) of Rs 8,600 gach - fully paid-up® 13.993.94 =
Transaction “%s (128,00} -
Mt procee 49200 lssue of CCPS 13,873.80 =
Liability Cor?"Mnem of dale of issue (nel of transaclion cosis) F52F A2
Amount cia S¥ed ag equity 8,348.52 =
Liakiiry CorvMnent gl dats of issue {nel of lransaction cosls} 7527 42
Iiderest cha 9% lusing affective interes) rale) B25.92 -
Carrytng ar#?nk of llability component 23534 5
*On 03 Mgy 2123 Company has issued 1,652,730 7.00% Fully and Compulserly C ible C Iva Fref Sharefs) {"CCPS™ al an issue price of Rs. 8,600 per share amounting to Rs. 13,992,594 far

cash at par. % a fighls basis to Lhe eligible #quily sharsholders of Ihe Company. COPS are convartible inlo equity shares afler a parod of 10 years al 3 fair marksl value al Ihe time of conversion
Altematively- 3 1ha cpiton of Ihe Company COPS can be converted prior 1o #xpicy of 10 yoars al Ihe fair marked vaiue of aquily shares prevalling as on the date of conversion, The shares were |ssued on a
fights basis 19the Elgible Equity Sharehclder(s) on Iha basis of their proponion of ihe #quily shareholding. The nal p ived from (he tssue of the CCPS have been splil between Ine financial
Nabilily ele» % and gn equily component, reprasenting Ihe fair value of the financlal liablily,

The equily ¢ OMponent of Rs. 6, 348 52 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. Nil) has been credited to the other aquity.

The interest 1% talculated by ap g an Ive interast rale of of 12.17% Lo the liability componeanl for the 10 years period since the preference shares ware [ssusd. The llability component [s measured a)
amarised ¢ = The dIl'felence belween the cammying amount of Ihe Kablity componsnl on Ihe dale of issue and the amaunt repaned as at 31 March 2024, represents Ihe effective interest rale 18ss [nlares)
pald Ie Ihal <32 amounting Lo Rs, 825,52 lakhs

Partioulars Asat 31 March 2024 Asal 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
I Autharised
7% Compuls O Canyertibla F Shares of R3.8,600 each 162,780 13.8995.94 - k-
162,750 14,000 - =
[l Issued, sub &¢ibed end fully paid up
7% Compuls oy T F Shares of R4.8,600 exch 162,780 13:999.94 - -
162,780 13,999.94 - =
il Reconclliation ol number of p shares g ar the beginning and at the end of the year
T% Comp ¥ Convertible P Shares
Balance at e beginning of the year - - = =
Add: Prelerancs shares [ssued during Ihe year 162,73 12,999.94 - -
Balance at theend of the year 162,790 13,999.94 - -
iv  Righis, preferences and ich hed to p ¥ tarvertible preference shares
C i i fi sharas were issued at par in May 2023 and aach share is convertibls inlo equity shares atter a pedod of 10 years and can be converled &l any tims prior to
exp-ry of m yaurs al the aplion of Ihe Company, convertitle al the Falr Markel Yalue of equily shares prevaiing as on the dale of conversion. Tha holdars of Iness shares are entllled to flxed cumLﬂanva
dividend at the e of 7% on the capital far the thime being paid-up therzon and shall be payable, as and when declared by Lhe Board. |n the event of winding up, p have ap

right over equily sharsholders 1o ba repald 12 Ihe extenl of caplial pald-up and dividend in arrears on such shares

Except wilh the prior willlen consend of {he Investor, e Founders shall not Iransfer any of the securilies of Ihe Company held by tham 1o any parsen, Including compaular Howevar, the shares held by Lhe

Investor shall, subject 1o Ihe g @ Deed of & . be freely without any of any nature whalsoever,
¥ Details of shareholder holding more than 5% p share capital. Detalls of preference shares held by the promoter as defined In the Companies Act, 2013
Mame of the equity shareholders Asat 31 March 2024 A= at 31 March 2023
Number % of Holding % Change Number % of Holding % Change
Mr, Gurmiz Singh Chugh 32,553 20.00% 100955
Ms. Punila Shama 32,558 20.00% 0% - - =
Evercure Holding Ple. Limited {Holding Company} 97674 60.00% 100% - - -
*As per recordd of Ihe Company, induding s regisier of sh bers and alher i i Tram halders regarding ial interast, the above shareholding represenls bolh
lagal and beneficial oxmsrshipd of shares
Nate:
1.°F dars' for the purpose of this disel Means px as deflned under seclion 2(69) of Companles Act, 2013
20 Provisions - non gurrent
As at Agat
B¢ A March 2024 1 March 2023
Gratuily (refar nola 40) 039 022
0.39 0.23
21 Lease liabllities - currant
_ As at Ag at
Particulars 3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Lease liabliliies (rafor nole 44) 14.76 a0
14.T6 590

{This space has boan infenfionaliy ieR bank)
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(AT amounis in Ry, fa S5 4ss atheriie statad)

a)
t)

a)
b}

a)
b)

a)
b)

22

2

=

Hotes:-
8}

b}

©

2

A

)

Trade paya: ble:
" As at An ot
Particulars# o1 March 2024 31 Mareh 2023
Due o Micre” = 1 =/Plises and smak 03 0.30
Due 16 relat#® Fifes fafer note 43} 1,760.17 4,401 685
Due 1o othee ™ 2664 19.48
1.787.04 442147
M&@mﬂndu!a as at 31 March 2024
2] for ing periods from dun dato of |
SN Parficulars Unbilled Notge ETSHENE o hed yest 12 yeats 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
—_— -— manths
Ondisgutegh 24t payables:
Micra snter? 3 ¥530d small entemprises . . 023 . - 0.23
alhars 2612 3= 265300 1.490.24 02 - 1,786.81
Disputed tr20% payabies:
Micro snterz? 15 2nd small enterprises - - E
others - - . * - - =
Total 2613 662 263.23 1,490.84 022 - 1. 7T87.04
Trade paya £/2%84eing schedule as at 31 March 2023
C far g periods from due date of |
Less than 6
8NP Particulare Unbilled Mot dus P & months-1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years  Mora than 3 years Total
Undisputed 'rafe payables;
iicro enleqy 5 €5 and small enlerprises - 028 004 - - 0.30
Oliars 14 87 1,082 24 334318 0.50 - AA2117
Disputed 1292 Payables:
Wicro entanz N85 nd smallenlerprises - - - - . S
athers = = = = = = 2
Total 14.87 1.,062.50 3,343.20 0.80 - - 4421.47
Details of d £1es o micro enterprises and small enterprises as defined under the MSMED Act, 2006
The principal amownl and the Intaresi due therson remaining unpaid lo any supplier as al the end
af each acoounting vear
Principal am ounl due 1o micro and small enterprisas Rl 0.30
Inleras) dus O Sbove ] -
The amount ©F inlsrest pard by the buyer in terms of seclion 6 of Ihe MSMED Acl, 2006 along
with the amounts of the payment made lo Ihe supplier beyond the appointed day during sach - -
accounting y &ar
The amount of inM8resl dus and payable for Ihe perod of delay in making payment (which have
been pald bt bévond the appointed day during Ihe year) bul wilhoul adding the nterest specified 016 -
under Iha MSMED Act 2006,
The amount o inlerest acerued and rsmalning unpald st the end of 2ach accounting year -
The amouni of futher Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, unlil
such dale winen Ihe Inlerssl dues as above are actually paid Lo the small entarprise for e : 3
purpose of disalb s a i pendilure under section 23 of the MSMED Act 2006
The above discl has been d to Ihe exient such paries have been idenlified on he basis of wiih lhe Comp
Other financial llabilities
_ As at Az at
HaTmulars 31 March 2024 31 Marsh 2023
Employes related payahias 568 533
Other payablas™ 301 84 4420
Inlerest acerued bul nat due on bormowings 118 1.50
J08.50 .63
* with respect of reimbursements of axpanses, payable 1o rafaled party. {Refar nole 43)
Borrowings - current
. As at As at
L 1 March 2024 31 March 2023
{unseeured)
Loan fram ralaled parly {refer nala 433" . 1.450.00
Cash credd 1imlt from bank 21872 6259
21872 161259

* During Ihe current year, Compamy has repaid the msecured lean from related party, previous year outstanding as on 31 March 2023 Rs. 1,450 lakhs

The Company had availabke working capilal Facility from CIT| Bank of Rs. Nil (31 March 2023 Bs. 200 1akhs ) at the rale of intares! of 9.50% p.a. Duning Ihe cument year, Company has closed the cash credl

lirmit of Rs. 200 takhs from CIT| Bank

The oulstanding balanca of Cash Cradll 2s on 21 March 2024 s Rs. Ml (31 fMarch 2023 NIl
Primary Security : Fixed Deposits, i y and leade L

The Cempany had available working capilal facility from HDFC Bank of Rs. 200 lakhs {31 March 2023: Ml al Ihe rale of inlerest of 10.20% p.a. and Term lean sanclion of Rs. 1,130 lakhs {31 March 2023:

I} at the rale of inleres! of 6.50% p @

The oulstanding balance of Cash Credit as on 31 March 2024 is Rs. 53.96 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil) and lerm leans 85 an 21 March 2024 15 Rs, Mil {31 March 2023: Nil)

Primary Security : Cash collateral 15% of limil, invenlory and irade receivables.

Guarantees:
1y Comp oF T
21 Eqully Shares of promoters are lien marked.

‘Therapeulics LLP, Transheallh Privale Limited and Transvalve Health Prvate L|miled

The Company had avalable working capital facility from Kotak Mahindra Bank Rs. 200 Lakhs {Previous Year 31 March 2023 Rs. 200 lakhs) 3 the rale of inleresl of 2.50% p.a
The oulstanding balance of Cash Cradll as on 31 March 2024 |s Rs, 184 76 lakhs (37 March 2023 62 59 lakhs)

FPrimary Security : 100% Fixed Daposits

Other current I
i Asat Asat
bl 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Statulory dues payable 4.07 30,80
Advance from cuslomers 190.23 13228
194.30 163.18
Pravisions - current
As at As at
Rapiculars 31 Mar 2024 31 March 2023
Employees banafits
Graluity refer nole 40) L .
Companseled absences 5[] 0.05
040 0.05
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2?7 Reve= N from operations®

28

28

a0

3

32

33

PartF lars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Sale lhroducts 5,830.99 6.260.93
5,830,99 6,269.93
Disa D¥egation of revenue
Dotz #1150 sale of products
Wire S43lheters 5,683,14 £,033.68
Olhes? Mwessories 147.85 336.25
5,830,909 5,260,983
*RefezT s 45 for revenue related disclosure
Other® Ncome
Parti GYars For the year ended For the year ended
3 March 2024 31 March 2023
Share O profit from Investment in LLP 3,255.00 1,867.00
Exchi &2 rate fluctuation {net) - 129.30
Intere2Slincome {at amortised cost) -
-froo banks 3223 202
-incOHMe tax 1.77 7.06
-on I'élted party loan 744.61 346,45
Reversd of allowancs for expected credit loss 265.20 -
Miscelineous income 1.34 11.51
4,580.15 2,363.34
Purc Dases of traded goods
Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Wires/calhelers 52431 5,353,238
Cther &icessories 102.98 354.94
5,346,149 §,708,32
Chariges in Inventories of traded goods
For the year ended For the year ended
R s il ziarch 2024 by l:;arch 2023
Inveritories at the end of the year:
Traded goods 68.63 190.80
Inveritories at the beginning of the year:
Traded goods 190.90 258.15
122.27 67.25
Employee beneflts expense
For the year ended For the year ended
Pari GRS 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Salaries and wages 2166 43.84
21.66 43.84
Finance cost
For the year ended For the year ended
Partleulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Interest expense on
— lease liabilties (refer note 44) 297 5.23
-- delayed payment of statutory dues 1.73 1.67
-~ cash credit facility 4651 8.28
— lgan from related party {refer note 43) 1.09 1.67
— M3ME (Micra and small enterprises) 0.16 -
— computsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) 825.92 -
878,37 16.76
Depreciation and amortisation expense
For the year ended For the year ended
Rericylars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Depreciation on propary, plant and aquipment {refer nole 4} D43 043
Depraciation on right of use assets {refer note 44) 9.89 8.75
10.31 10.18
Other expenses
For the year ended For the year ended
R 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Power and fusl 240 1.58
Forwarding expense 1.88 T3
Rates and 1axes 2032 0.09
Travélling and conveyance 0.46 0,15
Expected cradit loss on trade receivables 2 130.64
Legal and professional expenses {refer note 34.1 below) £9.13 B4.27
Exchande rale fluctustion {fnef) 3532 =
Bad debts - 5444
Bank charges 56.53 6.39
Donation 4255 =
Insurance 1.86 250
Managemant support charges (refer note 43) 88.19 67.33
Miscellaneous expenses 7.03 9.43
335.72 360,55
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341 Remy Hliration to auditors comprises of:

Partf Slhars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
AugrE Tees 27.00 14.00
Certi TH4ion services 3.90 2,00
Reirr*Psement of expenses 1,23 1.50
3213 17.50
34.2 Detz I150f CSR expenditure:
Parts Slars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
{a) & ' amount required to be spent by the Gampany during the year 4487 28.00
{b} A.rTnt spent during ihe year 12.54 -
(i G Miuction/ acquisition of any asset - -
(iiy O X1 Pmposes other than (i) above - -
() ¢ 19%ng balance to be spent 31.33 29.00
(d} E2<Cess amount spent on CSR as per Secfion 135(5) of Companies Act, 2013 - -
(e} TOof previous year shortfall = .
{f) RezE0n for shorifall MN.A NLA
Soclal Welfare for Contrifution to the
(g} NI alre of CSR activities promaoting health care Prime Minister's

Nota: Closing balance of unspent amount of R 31.33 lakhs has been deposited subsequent 1o year end in separate account for CSR expenditure.

National Relief Fund.

35 Incosm®tax
{a) Armounts recognised in the stat 1t of profit and loss
Parti cUlars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Cumreznittax 279.49 156.29
Deferred lax charge/(credit) 7389 {34.24)
Earlier Years tax adjustments {net) 1.53 37.99
Incornefax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss 354.91 159.94
The rmajr components of income tax expsense and the reconcilislion of expected 1ax expense based on the domesiic effective tax rate of the Company at 27.82%
(31 March 2023; 27.82%} and the reported tax expense in profit or [oss are as follows:
(b} Recanclliation of effective tax rate

i For the year ended For the year ended
il 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Accounting profit before income tax 3,354.25 2,182.04
At India’s statutory Income tax rate of 27.82% (31 March 2023: 27,82%) 94428 601.48
Tax effect of amounts which are not deductible {taxable} in calculating taxable income:
Carry forward of losses on which DTA was not created on last year, however same has been
consumed in current year (36.52)
Share of profit from investiment in parinership {905 54) (519 40)
Deferred tax not created on exceptional item* Ba.12 7354
Deferred tax on remeasurement of defined bensfit plan taken to other comprehensive income (0.00) {218)
Others 0.75 5.13
Interast on liability component of CCPS 22977 =
Tax relsted to earlisst years 1.53 37.8%
Income tax expanse 354.91 159.94

“The Company has not recognised deferred tax assets on impairmesnl of investmant in absence of probability and availability of sufficlent futurs taxable income against

which such losses shall be utilised.

35 A Earnings per share
Net profit attributable to equity shareholders

Particulars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Calculation of Basic EPS
Net profit for the year 3,039.35 2,007.75
Interast on compulsory convertible preference shares (CCPS) 82582 -
Adjusted net profits for the year (A) 3,865.27 200775
Morrinal value of equity share (Rs.} 10.00 10,00
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,670,078 1,670,078
Add: Weighted average number of potenfial equily share 1o be issued on account 148.112 _
of conversian of Compulsory Convertible Preference Shares at the end of year* ¥
Total weighted average number of equity shares {B) 1,818,190 1,670,078
Basic earnings per share (AB) 212.59 120,22
Calculation of Diluted EPS
Adjusted net profits for the year {C) 3,865,27 2,007.75
Weighted average number of equity shares 1,670,078 1,670,078
Add; Weighled average number of potential equity share to be issued on account 148.112 _
of conversion of Compulsory Convertible Preferance Shares at the end of year® '
Total waighted average number of equity shares {D) 1,818,190 1,670,078
Dllutzd earnings per share {C/D) 212.59 120.22
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Mmaterial accounting policies and other explanatory information for the year ended 31 March 2024

36 Fi# Y™iatinstruments

i} Fi#ial assets and llabilities
Eﬂz“fj‘v_ing amounts of financial instrurnents by calegory are as follows:

rinyj
p* ars Note

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Amortised cost Amortized cost
Fi# "V ¥ial 3ssets”
Tr &% tecaivables 10 1,085.27 2,067.17
e SMand cash equivalents 11 4.80 674.04
oeF¥bank balances 12 273327 207.25
20 8 9,224.95 8,433.81
or 1€ linancial assets 7and 123 2,755.99 269,98
Tz télinancial assets 15,784.29 11,852.26
Fig ¥ @ial fiabilities*
B FIwings 23 21872 1,51259
TeA% payables 21 1,786 81 442117
Ler 2% liabilities 18 and 20 5634 55.59
ot € lnancial liabilities 22 308 50 51.63
Tor t2inancial liabilities 2,269.37 6,040,98
*“TH&kare no financial assels and liabilities which are measured at fair value through profit or loss or fair value through alher comprehensive income,
I S 9Ment in subsidiaries are measured at cosl az per Ind AS 27, ‘Separate financial skatements’ and henca, not prasenled here.
iy  Fafr vlues hierarchy
The %mying value and fair values of financial instruments by categories are as follows:
FaiT Ylue of instruments measured at amortised cost
Fail ‘aue of inslrumants d at amortised cost for which falr valug is disclosed is as follows, these fair values are caleulated using Leve| 3 inputs:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
rtiularg Note
g Amortised cost Amortised cost
Firt anial assets
Loars 6 9,224 .96 6,433.81
Tradeisceivables 10 1.085.27 2,067.17
cashand cash equivalents 1 460 874,04
Otherbenk balances 12 273327 207 25
olherinancial assets Tand13 2,755.99 289.98
Totalfinancial assets 15,764.25 11,852.25
Financial liabilities
Bos rawings 23 21872 151259
Trads payables 21 1,786.81 442117
Le @S¢ liabiilies 18 and 20 5534 55.59
OLher financial liabilities 22 305.50 51.63
Totalh ial liabilities 2,369.37 6,040.98
Fair Vélue of cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances, lrade receivables, trade payables, lease liability and borrowings approximate their carmying amounts largely due to the shon-
term maturitias of these instruments. The fair value of the finarclal assels and lisbilities is the amount al which the instrument could be exchanged in a current lransaction betwesn willing
parties, other than in a forced or liquidation sale. There are ne financial assels and liabilities which are measured at fair valug through profil or loss or fair value hrough olher
comprehensive [ncome
37 Financial risk management
The Company is exposed to various risks in relalion to financial instruments. The main types of financial nisks are market risk, cradil risk and [lquidity risk
The managemant of the Company monitors and managas the financial risks relating to tha oparallons of the Gompany on a continuous basis. The Company does not engage in the
(rading of financial assels for speculalive purposes. The most significant linancial risks Lo which the Company is exposed are describead below
Riak Exposure arising from Meas. t Manag
Trade receivables, cash and cash
.. equivalents, other bank balances, . . . . . -
Creditrisk I ey Ageing analysis Diversificalion of bank depesits and regular monitoring
measured al amortised cosl
I . Bomrowings, lease liabilites and R IP—
Liquidity risk olher financial ligbilities Cash flow forecasts Availability of funds and credit facilities
Recognised financial assets and .
Warket risk - foreign exchange liabilities nol denominated in Indian ::alles tion in foreign exchange Monitoring of exposure lavals at regular intarmal
rupes (Rs.)
A} Cradit risk
Credil risk, Is he risk of financial loss Lo lhe Company if a cuslomer or counterparly to a financial asset fails o mest its coniraciual obligalions. The Company's exposure to credit risk is
influenced mainly by the indwmdual charactenistics of each financial assel. The carying amaunts of financial assels represent the maximum credil risk exposure. The Company monibors ita
exposurg lo credit risk on an ongoing basis
B}  Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will ancounter difficulty in mesting the obligations assoclated with its financial liabiliies that are setlled by delivering cash or ancther financkal
asset. The Company's approach to managing liquidily is 1o ensure as far a5 possible, that it will have sufficient liguidity to meet its liabilities when they are due.

Maturities of financial liabilities

As al M1 March 2024, the Company's financial liabilities have undiscounted contraclual maturities as summarised below:

As at 31 March 2024

Lasgs than 1

Particutars i 1-2years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Financial liabilities
Botrowings - - - - .
Trade payatlas 1,787.04 - - - 1,787.04
Lease liabilities 1865 14.55 13.08 20.06 66,36
Other financial liabilities 308 50 - - - 304.50
Total 2,114.1% 14.55 13.09 20.06 2,161.88
Financial assets
Loans 4,451.95 - 183.00 459001 9,224.96
Trade receivables 1,085.27 - - - 1,065.27
Cashand cash equivalents 4 80 - - - 4.80
Cther bank balances 273327 - = = 2,733.27
Olher financial assels 2,017.10 - 73888 = 2,755,889
Total 10,272.39 - 821.89 4,590.01 15,784.29
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(All amounts: L5 iakns, uniess otherwise stated)

<)

ii)

37 FFANtal sk management (cont'd)

A= 1 March 2023

Particulars Less th::; 1 -2ysars 2-3years Mora than 3 years Total
Fi#antial [iabilities
Be?Mvings 151256 - - - 1,542.59
Tr#e payables 4,421.47 - = - 4,424.47
Ler Sseliabilities 11.70 815 832 46.70 76.87
o Perlinancial lisbilit 51.83 - = - 51.63
Teztal 5,997.33 9.15 .32 46.70 6,062.58
Fleancial agsets
LepEns - 4,449.81 398400 - 8,433.81
Tr30 receivables 2,087.17 - = = 2,06717
Cersh and cash equivalenls 874.04 - - ¥ 874.04
oth%r bank balances 207.25 - - - 207.25
ot FEr financial assets 183 288,15 - - 269.98
Total 3,150.29 4,717.96 3,084.00 - 11,852.25
mMearket risk

Mzarkelrigk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuale because of changes in markst prices, The Company is exposed to markst rigk through its
ug & ofimancial Insiruments and specifically 1o foreign currency risk and inleresl rate risk which resull from its operaling, investing and financing activities

Interest rate risk
Int2esl rats risk Is the risk thal the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluchuats because of changes in market interesl rates. The Company is exposed to changes
i rmarket interest rates as soma borrowings are at vartable interest rates

The following table illusirates Ihe sensilivity of profit and equity 10 2 reasenably possible change in interest rales of +/ 1%. Thesa changes are considered o be reasonably possible
based on managemenl's assessment. The calculalions are based on a change in the average market interast rate for each period, and the financial instrements held at each reporting
datethat ars sensilive to changes In interest rates. All olher varisbles are held conslant

The exposure of Company's borrowlng and Intarest rate al reporting peried as following:

Borrowings

Particulars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Mon nt Currant Mon Current

(Secured - af amortised cost)

Cash aredit limit from bank - 218.72 ~ 62.59

- 218.72 - 6259
1% Increasa In basis points impact In Profit - 218 - 063
1% decrease in basis points impact in Profit - (219) - (0.63)

Foreign exchange risk

Fareign currency risk is he rigk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluchuate because of changes in foreign exchangs rates. The functional currency of the Company
Is Eurg, Most of the Company's transaclions are camied out in Euro. Expostres to currency exchange rates mainly arise from the Company's overseas purchases, which is primarlly
denominaled in US Dollars {USD).

The Company has limited exposure ko foreign currency risk and outstanding forelgn currency exposures are not being hedgad against adverse currency flucluation

Foreign currency risk exposure:

Amount in foreign cumency

Particulars Currency {In Eurns) Lo s
31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Recs#ivables
Lovan to relsted parly EUR 5,386 555 4,979,033 464.453.143 445,130,652

The following table illusirales the foreign cumency sensitivity of profit and equily with regards to the Company’s financial assets and financial liabililies considering "all other things being
equal’ and ignoring the Impact of taxation. It 8ssumes a +/- 1% change of the EuroflSD exchange rate for the year ended at 31 March 2024. These are the sensltivity rates used when
reporting forelgn qurrency exposures internally 1o the key management personnel and represents manag 's it of the reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange
rates. The sensilivily analysis includes only outslanding foreign currency denominated manetary jtems at end of each period reported upon. A posilive number indicales an increass in
profil or squily and vice-versa.

Sensitivity
If the Euro had strenglhanad/ weakend against the USD by 1%, the following would have been the impact:
Exchange rate Increase Decrease Increase Decresase
Pariculars Currency h 31 Merch 2024 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2023
Receivables
Loan 1o relsted parly EUR 1.00% 4,844,668 {4,844,668] 4.450.758 (4,450,758}

Capital management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital managemenl, capital includes issued equily capilal, securities premium and all olher equity reserves altributable to the equily shareholders. The
Company includes within net debl, borrowings less cash and cash equivalants, other bank balances and currenl investments. The primary objective of the Company’s capital management
I to maximise the shareholder valuz. The Company is not subject to any extemnally imposed capital requiraments

Particulars As at Az at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Short term barrowings 218.72 1.512.59
Lease liabilities 55.34 55.59
Inlerest accrued and due on borrawings 1.19 1.50
Less : Cash and cash equivatents {4.80) (674.04)
Less : Bank balancas olher than cash and cash equivalents (273320 {207.25)
Less : Interesl accrued on above asset {118.23) {1.83)
Net dabt (2,579.08) 486.56
Total capital 72,837.97 53,452.10
Capifal and nat debt 70,256.81 53,936,066
Gearing ratio & 0.76%
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38 addiic? ™Vinformatian

Follow E=24ire the analytical ratios for the year ended 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
[Parfic, 2220 N Danominat 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Variance R for varlance =]
Current  ratic reduced dus 9

L Ty . CCP3 shares issued during the
Cumren Current asssts Current llabllies 234 054 329% yaar shown under olher cument
- financials lFabiity
Eﬂqﬁ,—c-l-er""-‘hzd to be disclosed as per Schedula
Partic &2 a:‘ D 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 % Variance R for varl
DebtacdMialio  |Tolal Debl Sharsholders' equity B - Rafer note balow
Eamings available for debit servics| E:EL:;WGC;,«?E?: c?;;ahr:;
Dsbt gez V1 = {Profil bafore excaptional Debt Service=Finance costs : L
coveracd & item and lax + finance costs + [for the year 2022 2483 S ﬁ lﬁ‘ar‘sa':::;:'sﬁnt::';";m?:ﬁ
depracialion and amorligation) during ihe year

Return  on  equily ratio has
Incressed as compared lo last
yoar gince Nat Profit Increased
due lo increass in Share of profit

Nel Profits afier taxes — Praferenc Average Shareholder's Equity 004 003 39% from investment in LLP which is

Return <M ity ratio

Dividend {if any) Rs. 3.255 lakhs I current year
st March, 2024 ard Rs 1,867)
lakhs in the last year 3131 March,
2023,
| Inventory turmover vatio increased|
Invente rY linover to 185 fimes as compared to last
) Cost of goods sold A Invento 7 :
bt ost of gaods sal verage Invenlory 4214 2572 Gd% year, due to decrasse i average
inventory
Cenab) = )
MELOg =k 8 et Credit Sales Average Accounts Recsivable 372 413 -10% Refer nats below
tumover "uu
Trede payzties Net Credit Purchases Avsrags Trads Payaples 172 1,57 10% Refer note below

lurnover FEn

Sales for Ihe current financials
year deeressed by 7% from
previous  financial  year further|
Mel Sales Working Capital 1.73 {2.24) -177% issue of COPS shares during the
year shown under other current
financials  llabiity has made
negalive Impact in working capital

el capital limovsr
ratio

et profit Increased due Lo
increase in Share of profil from
investment in LLP which is Rs.
3.255 lakhs i current year 31st
March, 2024 and Rs. 1,867 Lakhs
in the last year 31st March, 2023

Met profit rafio Met Profit Tatal Revenue 052 gz 63%

Return  on capital  employsd
Inzreased by 63% as compared (0
lasl year dus lo increase in the
Share of prefit from invastmant in
LLP whih is Re 3,253 lakhs n
curent year 31 March 2024 and
Rs. 1,887 lakhs In the previous
year 31 March 2023

Relum on Capital

Eaming before interast and taxes | Capital Emplaved ] 5} A%
load g pil Py nos oo G2%

Retum on investiment increased
during the current year a3 there is
increase In fized deposits by Rs.
42 61 Crores.

Relumn on imesiment| Intarast meoms on fied deposits | Fixed Deposils Balance 007 201 614%

Note: Sinca the change in ratio is less than 25%, reagon is nol waranted,

Eaming for Debt Service = Met Profit after laxes + Non-cash operating sxpens2s like deprecialion and other amorlizations + Interest + olher adjustments ke loss on sale of Fixed assets elo
Debl servics = [nizrest & Leass Paymesnits + Principal Repayments

*Net Profit afler lax” means reported amourit of "Profit £ (loss) for the period” and it does nol indude Items of other comprehensive income.
Awerage Inventory is {Opening + Closing balance | 2}

Net ¢redit sales consist of gross credit sales minus sales return. Trads racsivables includes sundry debtors and bills receivables

Ayerage trade debiors = (Opening + Closing balance f 2)

Net credit purchases conslst of gross cradit purchases minus purchase retum

Ned sales shall be calouialed as Lolal 3al8s minus sales rtums.

Working capilal shall be calculated as current assets minus clvrsnt liabilties

Nat profit shall be after lax

Mt sales sNéll be cakulated as total sakes minus sales returns.

Capital Employed = Tangibly Mat Worth + Total Debt + Dsferred Tax Liablily

384, Commitments
There are PO commitmanls 35 on 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023.

39B. Contingant Liabilities

Particluars As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Contingent llabilitles, not acknowledged as debt, includ
Corporale gurantees given on behall of subsidaries companies{ Refer Nole 43) 27,769.00 6,726,00

There are 70 conngent labiibes (Lmder libgation) nol acknowledged as debt as a1 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023
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40. Empjor Y2 benefits
Define” Ybenerit plans
Gratuf")

The C&MPany has a defined benefit gralulty plan. Every employee s entitied Lo gratuily a2 per the pravisions of the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972, The llabllity of Gratuily is recognized on the basis of

actyard Avaluaiion,

Salary itregses Actial salary increases will increase Ihe plan's liability, Increase in salary increase rale assumption in future valualions will also increase the iabity,

Discow Mrate

Raduction In discount rale in subsequent valualions can increase the plan's liabiiity.

Mortali Y& disability  Actual deaths and disability cases proving lower or higher than assumead in Ihe valualion can impact the ligbililies.

Wilhdr-##als Actiual withdrawals praving bigher or lewsr than assumed withdrawals and change of withdrawal rates at subsequent valustions can impact plan's liabllity.
Amow T8 recognised in the bal shaet: Compensated Absences Gratuity
Partice? 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Currar t iy 0.10 0.05 - =
Mon:ceATEnt lishility - = 39 023
Galn f?‘ﬂgnlsed in other comprehensive income; Compensated Absences Gratuity
Actuarit (gain)iloss on defined benefit obligations 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Actuari @ gain an defined benefit obligalions 007 - {0.08) {783
Gain rez@arisad In other comprahensive inceme 0.07 - {0.08) {7.93
Exper13:% gnised in stat of peofit and loss Comp ted At Gratulty
FarticciMrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Curren £ 581vine cost 0.07 0.04 022 [XE]
Intares £ fost 0.00 0.01 202 a.52
Cost refognisad during He year 0.07 (.08 0.28 .65
MoverTEnt in the llability recognised in the bal sheet Is as under: Compensated Absences Gratuity
Particualirs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Pressrit value of dafined benefit obligation at the beginning of tha year 005 - 023 74N
Current $ervica cost 007 G4 023 013
Interest <ost 000 G 0.02 052
Actuari 2 gain 0.07] - (0.08} {7.83)
Benefits paid {0.10 - - =
|Preseritvalue of deflned benefit obligatlon at the end of the year 0.09 405 0.4D 0.23
(a) For det tion of the liability of the Company the following actuarial assumptions were used:
Comp i Absences ¥
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discountiate 7.25% T.50% 7.25% 7.50%
Salary e4calalion rate 8.00% 5.00% 8.00% 5.00%
Refirmmént aga (years) 60 Yaars 60 Years 60 Years 60 Years
Withdrerwal rate 10% PA 5% PA 10% P& 5% Pa
Welght=d average duration of FBO 28 23 30 23.00
Mortality rabes inchusive of provision far disability -100% of IALM (2012 - 14}
(b) Maturity profiie of defined benefit obligation: Compensaled Absences Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
1 year 010 005 = -
2 year - -
3 year *
4 year = - - =S
5 yoar - . -
B ySar G 039 023
Expected contrlb during the next annual reporting period Compensated Absences Gratuity
Particulars 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
The Company's best estimale of Conlribulion daring the next year 5 = 0.35] 0.23
Sansitivity analysis for gratuity liability: Compensated Absences {Gratuity
Particul 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
a) Impact of the ch In 4l t rate
Present value of obligation at lhe end of he year
Impacl due to increase of 1.00 % {G.01) {0.00) (0.0 {0.02)
Impact due to dacreass of 1.00 % o 0.0 0,04 0.03
b} Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at the end of Ihe year
Impacl due to increase of 1.00 % Ledny | 001 0.04 003
Impact due to decreass of 1.00 % {G.01) {0.01) (0.03) {0.02)
€] Impact of the change in salary increase
Present value of obligation at ihe end of the year
Impacl dus to increase of 1.00 % {0.00) .00 (0.02) (0.00)
Impact due ko decrease of 1.00 % 0.00 {0.00) 0.02 0.00
Ssnsithilies as fo rafe of infdalion, rale of increase of pensions in pay i, rate of before refi { and iffe axp y &re ol applicable being a fump sum benefit on relirement

41 Segment Information

The Company operalas in @ single reportable segment |.e. “Trading of products”, for the purpose of Ind AS 108 *Operaling Segment”, |s considered to be the only reportable business segment. The
Campany derives its major révenues from the activilles related to irading and ils customers are widespread

42 Per transfer pricing legislation under section $2-92F of Ihe Incoma Tax Acl 1961, the Company is required to use certain speciic methods |n computing amy's length price of inlemational transaclions
with associated enterprises and maintaing adequate documentation In this respecl The leglslations require that such information and documentalion to be contemporansous i nature. The Company has
sppoinied indspendent consultants for conducting the Transfer Pricing Study to determine whether the lransactions with associated enterprises underiake during the financial year ara on an “am's
lerglh basis*, The Company is in the process of conducting a transfar pricing study for the cument financial year and expects such rscards to be In existence latest by the due dale as requirad by law.
Hewever, in the oplnion of the management the update would not have 3 material impact on these financlal stalements. Accordingly, these financial statemenis do not include any adjustments for tha

transfer pricing implcations, if any.

{This space has been intantionally iaft blank}
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43 pZChted party disclosures

Inacea M ince with the requirements of ind AS 24, ‘Related Party Disclosures', the names of the ralated party where conlrol existsfable ko exercise significant influence along

with ther Mnsactions and year-end balances with them &s idenlied and cantified by the management are given bealow,

Names related parties and related party relationship
_Relatac? parties where control exists

NI 2Ne of the related party

I W Mmate Holding Company
ECP Il Pre. Ltd.

il.  trFMediate Holding Company
E.A%cure Holding Pte Limited

i, S wubsidiaries
Trasluming Therapeutics LLP
Tr#shealth Private Limited
Trasluming GmbH, G
Trésvaye Hesalth Private Limitad

N ams of the velated party

i. K-e¥Management Personnel ('KMP?)
WIrs. Punita Sharma, Ofector
1. Gurmit Singh Chugh, Direclor
M. Vizhal Sharma, Drrector
M. Avnish Mehra, Director
M Ajun Crberel, Direclor
M. Vishal Goenka, Direchor
M. Indranil Mukheriee, Director

The foll OWing tr ions were carried out with related partias in the ordinary course of b
. Yeoar ended Yaar ended
Panticy 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
E KeyManagement Personnsl
Punita Sharma
Lease Liability interast (aclual kease rent paid Rs. 4.68 (PY Rs, Nil) 0.95 1.81
Loan taken - 1,900.00
Loan repald 1.450.00 450,00
Isgwe of compulsory convertible preference shares 2,799.99 =
interest paid on loan 1.08 167
Ernployes benefit expenses - 12.00
Gumit Singh Chugh
Employee benefit expenses - 12.00
Issue of compulsory convertible preference shares 2.7599.099
Lease Liability interest {actual lease rent pad Rs. 7.49 {PY Rs. Nil} 1.52 290
il.  Holding Company
Evercure Holding Pte. Limited
Iszue of compulsary cornerdible preference shares 8,399.96 =
iii. Subsidlaries
Translumina Therapeutics LLP
Share of profit from investmeni in partnership received 3,255.00 1.867.00
Purchases of goods 534621 §,708.32
Legsl and professional charges 78.00 70.00
Electricily expenses 240 158
Corporate guarantee given 11,000.00 2,076.00
Corporate guarantee received 11,500.00 -
Salary expenses 73.19 42.33
tManagement support charges 25.00 25.00
Translumina GmbH
Investmeant made 10,693.74 =
Loan given 2.270.00 2,101.61
Loan repayment received 2,270.00 -
Corporats quaraniee given 11,500.00 -
Interest eamed 365.96 100.41
Cross Charge of Loan Processing Charges 150.04 -
Transvalve Heallh Private Limited
Loan given 158.00 25.00
Interest eamad .93 0.39
Gomorale guarantee given 1.850.00 1,850.00
Cofporate guarantes recaived 11,500.00 -
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43 pEated party disclosures (cont'd)

L’mwammiom were carvied out with related parties in the ordinary of &

Year ended Year ended
P Sffculars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
T Finshgalth Private Limited
> %porate guaranlee given 3,419.00 2,800.00
C-tporate guarantes received 11,500.00 -
L&70 given 3,605.00 165600
L€ repayment received 3,088.99 -
Irvierest eamed 370.72 245.56

% During the cument year, 27% of the total equity shares {pledge proporfionalely) of Mrs. Punita Sharma, Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh and Evercure Holding Pte.
Lifkted have been pledyed to HDFG Bank as a gurantee against cash credit availed by the Company and letter of credil and working capital facltiy availed by wholly

ovvied subsidiary Translumina GrbH amounting te Rs. 11,500.00 Lakhs

The fojlowing bal were outstanding as at with related partles In the ordinary course of b

H Az at As at
P 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
K€Y Management Parsonnel
Gumit Singh Chugh
1&5te of compulsory converlible preference shares 2,799,909 -
Lease Nabililes 25.10 3222
Punita Sharma
I3 808 of compulsory converible preference shares 278999 -
E rmloyes related payable - 2.23
Leran payable - 1,450.00
Lexass liabillies 16.31 20,14
Interest accrued but not due on borrowing - 1.50
Holding Company
Ewercurs Holding Ple. Limited
Is:5u of compulsory convertible preferance shares £,399.96 -
Subsidiaries
Tranglumina Therapeutics LLP
Inwesiment 35,193.91 55,162.91
Corporate guarantee given 11,000.00 9,501.00
Comorale guarantee recejyed 11,500.00 -
Trade payables 1,756.92 440164
Other payables 301.64 434
Artic GmbH
Investment (refer note 5 and 47 for impairment} 779.06 Tra.06
Transhealth Private Limited
Investmanl 300.00 300.00
Loan receivables 4,590.01 3,964.00
Interest acorued 33365 221.1
Corporate guaranlee given 3,419.00 580000
Corporate guaraniee received 11,500.00 -
Trarslumina GmbH
Corporate guarantee glven 11,500.00 -
investment 12,126,590 143285
Loan receivables 4.452.03 4,424.81
Interast receivables 392.63 26.50
Qther Receivables 150.04 -
Transvalve Health Private Limited
Loan receivable 183.00 25.00
Interest accnied 7.05 035
Corporate guarantee given 1,850.00 1,850.00
Carporate guarantee received 11,500.00 -
Investment 200,00 200.00

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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44 Leags ©"Wated disclosures
The Cfmpany has leases for office premises. With the exceplion of short-term lease underlying assets, each lease is reflected on the balance sheet as a right-of-use
asset @ & |ease (iability as a borrowings. Variable lease payments which do not depend on an Index or a rate are excluded from the initial measurement of the lease

G m

liabil# T and right of use assets. The Company classifies its right-of-use assets in a consistent manner to its property, plant and equipment.

Eaci? ltasg generally imposes a restriction that, unless there is a contractual rght for the Company to sublease the asset to another party, the right-of-use asset can
only Peusag by the Company. Some leases contain an option to extend the lsase for a furthar term. The Conipany is prohibited from selling or pledging the underlying
leasezd sssets as security. For leases over premises, the Company must keep those properties in a good state of repair and return the properties in their original

cond ti0 2t the end of the lease. Further, the Company is required to pay maintenance fees in accordance with the lease cantracts.

St c2Ulbelow are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Parti Clrs 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Opes?1M) Balance 55.59 54,92
Additions 13.95 )
Accreztim of interest 297 5.23
PayrﬂGMS {17.18) {4.56)
Clos iNYbalance 55.33 55.59
- Current 14.76 6.90
-Non Current 40.57 48.69
Total S&%h oufflow for leases for the year ended 31 March 2024 was Rs. 16 97 lakhs (31 March 2023: Rs. 4.56 Jakhs }
The € Cmpany has total commitment for short-term leases of Nil as at 31 March 2024 (31 March 2023; Rs, NIL lakhs)
MatuTity of lease liabilities
The 128% liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were a5 follows.
Minlmum lease payments due

31 Marth 2024 =N

Within 1 year 1-2 years 2.3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease& payments 18.65 14.55 13.09 20.06 66.35
Interest expanse 3.89 3,26 215 1.72 11.02
Net present values 14.76 11.29 10.94 18.34 55.33
The lease liabilities are secured by the related underlying assets. Future minimum lease payments were as follows:

Minimum lease payments due

SHMBE2023 Within 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total
Lease payments 11.70 9.15 9.32 46.70 76.87
Interest expense 4,80 4,40 3.93 B.16 21.28
Net present values 6.90 4.75 5.39 38.55 55.59

The incfemental borrowing rate used for lease liability is 9.50 % p.a {31 March 2023 ' 9.50%)

{This space has been intentionally left blank)
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46 Revenu# ¢from contracts with customers

The Co#Thany supplies wires/catheters and other related accessories. The revenus 1s raspact of the these recognised on point In tims basls when the control of gaods is transferrad 1o the
custome?t

a) Assets TEated to contracts with customer

Parficudas 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Tratls e NabE 1,085.27 206717
b} R iliation of ravenue recognised in stat t of profit and loss with contract price:
Particu #4rs 31 March 2024 21 March 2023
Contracet price 6,658.08 7.308.70
Less: di Stounts, rebales, credils ete, (626.09} {1.038.77)
Total 6,030,99 6,269.93

¢} The CorTany has nol incumed any cost for obtaining contracts except administrative cost and the same is charged to slalement of profil and lass

d) The fol I9¥ing table provides information about contract liabilities from contract with customsrs:

Particull ars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Contrac! Liabilities

Advarce? rom customers 190.23 13228

Total 190.23 132,26

&) Revenu# fecognised In the reperting period Included in contract liability in the beginning of the year

Particell ats 31 March 2024 3 March 2023

Opeaning balance 132,28 10,12

Additiors during the year 190.23 13228

Revenue recognised during the year (122.28) (10.12)
180.23 132.28

46 During the currenl year, the subsidiary of the Company ie. Translumina GmbH has acquired 100% slake of Lamed Vertriebsgesellschaft mbH, Germany and Blue Medical Devices
B V. Netherlands having effective date of 5 June 2023 and 16 June 2022 and have paid a purchase consideration of Rs, 13,855 45 |akhs (Euro 155 lakhs) and Rs. 4,246.03 lakhs (Euro
47,50 lakhs) respectively.

47 Excoptional item
Particul ars For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Impairment of investment* 30297 26433
302.37 264.33

“Impairment Indicators were identified in relalion to invesiment made in equity shares of a foreign subsidiary of the Company, Artic GmbH. The recoverable amount of investmenl is
determined at net assel value which was determined o be lower than the carmying amount of Invastmsnl due to closure of operations, accordingly management has recorded an Impairment
of Rs. 302,37 |akhs in the standalone stalement of profil and loss. Further, during the previous year ended 31 March 2023 management has recorded an impairment loss Rs. 264 33 lakhs
in the standalore statement of profit and loss calculated using valua in use, which is caleulated using discounted projected cash flows based on management approved finandial budgels
and forercasls

48 Dther statutory information :
{i] The Company do not have any Benami properly, where any proceeding bas been iniliated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property

(i) The Company has not raded or invested in Cryplo curency or Virlual Currency during the financial yaar.

The Company has nol been declared a wilful defauller by any bark of financial institulion er olher lender (as defined under the Comparies Acl, 2013) or consortium thereof, in accordancs
with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by lhe Reserve Bank of India.

{iii}

(iv} The Company do not have any lransactions with slreck off companies under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2012 or Seclion 580 of Companies Act, 1936.
fv) The Company do not have any charges or salisfaclion which is yel 1o be regislered with Registrar of Companies {ROC) bayond the siatulory pericd

. Excepl below, the Company has not advencsd of loaned or invested funds 1o any other person or anlity, including foreigr antitizs {Intermediaries} wilk lhe understanding that the
) ntermedi :
ary shall:
&) directly o indirectly lend or invest in olher persons or entlties identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company {Ullimate Beneficiaries); or
by provide any guarantee, securily or the like to or on behalf of the Uitimats Beneficiarles.,

Amount of funds .
Intermediary invested funds given DPte of investment of funds/ funds Ultimate Beneficiaries Armount of funds ?at;s of investment of
Le toan given as loan Invested un
Translurn!na GmbH {Funds ! i} 517221 |1 June 2023 Blue Madical Devices B.Y. 05 June 2023 and 20
Transhmina GmbH (Funds given as 900.50 |18 4 2023 and 607271 Jume 2023
loan} - S Lamed Vertriehsgeselischalt mbH

Mote: Company has complied with the relevant provigions of the Foreign Exchange Management Acl, 1999 {Paragraph 42 of 1999) and Companies Act for transactions disclosed and the
ransactions are not violative of the Prevention of Money-Laundering act, 2002 (Paragraph 15 of 2003}

{vii) Except below, lhe Company has nol received any fund from any persan or entity, including foreign entitiss (Funding Party) with the underslanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwiss)
Lhat the Company shall .
a) direclly or indirectly lend or invesl in other persons or enlities idenlified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Parly {Ultimale Beneficiaries); or
b) provids eny guarantse, securilty or tha like to or on behalf of the Ullimate Beneficiarles.

. Amount of fund f iR Amount of fund Date of investment of
Funding party recaived Data of raceipt of funds Ultimate Beneficiaries* Invested funds
Nr_Gurmit Singh Chugh 2.799.98 |23 May 2023 ]
Ms. Punila Sharma 2 799.98 |23 May 2023 Bive Medical Devices B V. 05 June 2023 and 20
E Holding Ple. Limited and 807271 June 2023
L RIS 939097 |22 May 2023 Lamed Vertriebsgesellschaft
{Helding Company)

* Company has received amount of Rs, 13,999.94 lakhs and invested amount of Rs. 6,072.71 lakhs In Translumina GmBH {Intermediary), further Intermediary has invested the same in Blue
Medical D=vices BV. and LamedVertrisbsgesellschaft {Ultimale beneficiaries}.

Note: Company has complied with the relevant provisions of the Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 (Paragraph 42 of 1989} and Companles Act for transaclions disdlosed and the
transaclions are not viclative of the Prevention of Monsy-Laundering act, 2002 (Paregeaph 15 of 2003).

{wiii)
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49 The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new raquirement for campanles under the proviso to Rule 3{1) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, og4q
ingerted by the Companies {Accounts) Amendment Rules 2021 requiring companies, which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of accounts, shayy 0111;
use such accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail of sach and every transaction, creating an edit log of gach change made [ the books of aceqyunt
alond with the date when sueh changes were made and ensuring that the audit trail cannot be disabled. The new requirement is applicable with effect from the firg ez

year beginning on 1 April 2023,

The Company usés an accounting software for mainlanance of books of accounts. During the currant year, the sudit irail (edit log) feature for any direct changes rpna4.
at the database level was not enabled for such accounting software. However, the audit trall (adil log) at the application lavel for the accounling software were OPErating

fur a¥ relevant transactions recerded in the software.

Pravious year figures have baen re-grouped! rearanged wheraver nacessary to conform to the cument year's classification.

This i @ summary of materal accounting policies and other explanatory information refermed to in our reper of even date.

For Wallker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartarad Accountants
Firm Registration No: 001076N/NG00013

Kartik Gogls
Partner
Membership Na: 512371

Place: New Dedhi
Date: 30 September 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Intogris Hoalth Private Limited

M%wﬂ{,

Director f: Direct
DIN Number: 06602598 DIN: 00821

Kewal
Chief Fi 9nns'a1 Officar

Place: Naw Dalhi
Date: 30 September 2024
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SHORTER NOTICE OF SIXTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Shorter Notice is hereby given that the Sixteenth Annual General Meeting of the members of M/s
Integris Health Private Limited (“Company”) will be held on Monday, 30" September 2024 at 03:00
PM (1.5.T.) a t registered office of the Company situated at 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land,
New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi-110060, to transact the following business:

A. ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1)

2)

TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDING THE
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31ST, 2024, AND REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS
THEREON.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT the audited financial statement (including audited consolidated Financial
statements) of the Company for the financial year ended March 31, 2024, and the reports of
the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon, as circulated to the members, be and are hereby
considered and adopted.”

TO CONSIDER RE-APPOINTMENT OF SATUTORY AUDITOR OF COMPANY FOR THEIR
SECOND TERM.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions as Ordinary Resolutions:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 139, 141, 142 and other applicable
provisions, if any of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors)
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time
being in force) and pursuant to the recommendation of the Board, M/S Walker Chandiok &
Co LLP, Chartered Accountants, having FRN: 001076N/N500013 be and is hereby re-appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company, to hold office far a period of 5 (five} consecutive
years commencing from the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting till the conclusion of
the 21* Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held in the financial year 2028-2029,
at such remuneration as may be determined by the Board of Directors of Company in
consultation with the auditors in addition to reimbursement of all out of-pocket expenses to
be incurred by them in connection with the audit.”

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT any of Directors of the Company or Mr. Kewal Krishan, Chief
Financial officer (CFO) be and are hereby authorized severally to sign any documents, to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to this resolution including filing
of necessary eforms, with the Registrar of Companies of NCT Delhi and Haryana.

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230 E-mail: ¢s-

legal@ integris health.in
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B. SPECIAL BUSINESS:

Director

DIN: 00821812
Add: House No -1b/25 N E A,
Pusa Road New Delhi- 110060

3) TO DISCUSS AND APPROVE GRANTING OF INTER CORPORATE LOAN TO HALEMED MEDICAL

PRIVATE LIMITED.

To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following Resoclution
as a Special Resolution:

“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 179, 186 and 187 of the Companies Act, 2013,
and Rules made there under and other applicable provisions , if any, [including any statutory
modification(s} or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force} and articles of Associations of
company, the consent shareholders be and hereby accorded to the Board of Directors of the Company
for granting loan not exceeding INR 10,00,00,000 (Indian Rupee Ten Crores only ) to Halemed Medical
Private Limited {“Borrower”} in one or more tranches, at interest rate and on such other terms and
conditions as may be prescribed in Draft loan agreement to be between Company and Borrower;

RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Any of Directors of the Company or/Mr. Kewal Krishan, Chief Financial
Officer (CFO) be and are hereby authorized severally sign any agreements/ documents, if any, to do all
such acts, deeds and things as may be required to give effect to this resolution including filing of
necessary eforms, if any, with the Registrar of Companies.

For Integris H&s'lth Private Limited

mta Sharma

Date: 30/09/2024
Place: New Delhi

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230 E-mail: cs-

legal@ integris health.in
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Place :
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A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXY
{IES) TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON POLL AT THE MEETING INSTEAD OF HIMESELF/HERSELF AND
THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

The instrument of appointing proxies shall however be deposited at the registered office of
the company not less than 48 (forty-eight) hours before the commencement of the meeting.
Proxy Form MGT -11 is annexed.

Body Corporate members are requested to send a certified copy of the board resoiution
authorizing their representative/s to attend and vote at the meeting pursuant to provisions of
section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013.

The Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of
Special Business is annexed hereto and forms part of the Notice,

Members/Proxies/Authorised Representatives are requested to bring the attendance slips
duly filled in for attending the Meeting.

During the period beginning 24 hours before the time fixed for the commencement of the
Meeting and ending with the conclusion of the Meeting, a member would be entitled to
inspect the proxies lodged at any time during the business hours of the company. All
documents referred to in the Notice and accompanying explanatory statement are open for
inspection at the Registered Office of the company on all working days of the company
between 11:00 a.m. and 1:00 p.m. up to the date of the Extra-ordinary General Meeting and
at the venue of the Meeting for the duration of the Meeting.

For and on behalf of the Board of

Directors

Integris Health P\i
q

Punita Sharma

[

New Delhi

&
[

.f bt
.l nr
AR

New Delhi DIN: 00821812

Add: House No -1bf/25 N E A,
Pusa Road New Delhi- 110060

integris Health Private Limited
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EXPLANATORY STATEMENT
PURSUANT TO SECTION 102(1) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013

in conformity with the provisions of Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013, the following explanatory
statement sets out all material facts relating to special business mentioned in the accompanying notice
and should be taken as forming part of the notice.

Item No. 2

As per Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, a Company can invest/provide loans/ give guarantees
upto 60% of its paid-up share capital, free reserves and securities premium account or 100% of its free
reserves and securities premium account, whichever is higher by-passing special resolution at General
Meeting. Consequently, company is proposed to granting inter corporate loan to Halemed Medical
Private Limited {“Borrower”). For the purposes Company and Borrower will enter into Loan
Agreement, the drat of which is tabled before the Members. Following are the particulars of the loan
agreement

Amount of loan INR 10,00,00,000 {Indian Rupee Ten Crores only)
Purpose of loan General Corporate Purpose/ Working capital
Interest Rate 9.50% per annum

Security, if Any Secured by a pledge over the Call Option Shares {ill

the Repayment Date
Name of Interested Directors Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh

Type of Interest Relative of interested Director is shareholder and
Director in Borrower company

The approval of the members is being sought by way of a Special Resolution pursuant to Section 186
of the Act read with the Rules made thereunder, to enable the Company to grant inter corporate loan,
exceeding sixty percent of its paid-up capital, free reserves and securities premium account or one
hundred percent of its free reserves and securities premium account, whichever is higher.

None of the Directors, Managers and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company or their respective
relatives except above mentioned, is concerned or interested in the Resolution. Your directors
recommend the approval of proposed resolution by way of a Special Resolution.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Integris Health Private Limited
//." -~

\l\ el

Punita Sharma %
Date : 30/09/2024 Director :
Place : New Dethi DIN: 00821812 = T

Add: House No -1b/25 NE A,
Pusa Road New Delhi- 110060

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off. ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230 E-mail: cs-
legal@ integris health.in
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ATTENDANCE SLIP

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of INTEGRIS HEALTH PRIVATE LIMITED
{“the Company”) held Monday 30® September 2024, at 03:00 PM (IST) at the registered office of the
Company at 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi.

Full Name of the Member {in BLOCK LETTERS)

Regd. Folio No.

DPID

Client ID

No. of Shares held

Full Name of the Proxy (in BLOCK LETTERS)

Member’s/ Proxy’s Signature

Note: Please fill up this attendance slip and hand over at the entrance of the meeting hall.

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off: 'Metro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC 177230 E-mail: ¢cs-
legal@ integris health.in
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Form No. MGT-11
Proxy form
[Pursuant to section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule 19(3) of the Companies
{Management and Administration) Rules, 2014/
CIN: U85110DL2008PTC177230
Name of the Company : INTEGRIS HEALTH PRIVATE LIMITED
Registered office: 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi

Name of the member(s): .......ccccoooerviimnicne.
Registered Address........cue.

EMAIHI: e e st st e sar e
FOlio NO/CHENt Mz e sir e sirars scoerssonsans

I/We, being the member (s) of ............. shares of the above-named company, hereby appoint

1. Name: ...eerecreeeenns

Address:

E-mail Id:

Signature:..............., or failing him

2. Name: ....ccviiiicnininnne

Address:
E-mail Id: Affix
Signature:............... , or failing him Revenue
Stamp

3. Name: ....cvervvrevrrrorens:

Address:
E-mail Id:

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Annual General
meeting of the company, to be held on Monday 30' 2024, at 03:00PM (IST) at the registered office of
the Company 1st Floor, Metro Tower LSC, M.O.R Land, New Rajinder Nagar, New Delhi and at any
adjournment thereof in respect of such resolutions as are indicated below:

Resolution No 1: TO CONSIDER AND ADOPT THE AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (INCLUDING THE
AUDITED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS) OF THE COMPANY FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR
ENDED MARCH 315T, 2024, AND REPORT OF BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS THEREON.

Resolution No 2: TO CONSIDER RE-APPOINTMENT OF SATUTORY AUDITOR OF COMPANY FOR
THEIR SECOND TERM.

Resolution No.3: TO DISCUSS AND APPROVE GRANTING OF INTER CORPORATE LOAN TO HALEMED
MEDICAL PRIVATE LIMITED,

Signed this...... day of ........2024
Signature of shareholder .......cccviniininneisennns

Signature of Proxy holder(s) .........coiniiiena

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Deilhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC 177230 E-mail: cs-
legal@ integris healt h.in
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Route Map to Meeting’s Venue: (1ST Floor Translumina Building )
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BOARD’S REPORT

Dear Members,

The Board of Directors presents the Company’s Sixteenth Annual Report of the Company together
with the Audited Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the Financial year starting
from April 1st, 2023, and ended March 31% 2024 (“Review Period”).

1. Financial Results:

Your Company’s financial performances (standalone and Consolidated) for the financial year
ended 31 March 2024 along with previous year's figures are given hereunder:

[ Particulars Standalone Consolidated
For Financial | For  Financial | For Financial | For Financial
Year 2023-24 | Year 2022-23 Year 2023-24 | Year 2022-23
{Amounts in | (Amounts in INR | (Amounts in (Amounts in
INR Lakhs) Lakhs) INR Lakhs) INR Lakhs)
Incorne from | 5,830.99 6,269.93 56,223.06 46,955.12
operations
Other Income 4,580.15 2,363.34 1,513.41 1,244.46
Total Income 10,411.14 8,633.27 57,736.47 48,199.58
Total Expenses 6,714.52 6,206.90 55,459.04 44,744.91
Profit before Tax 3,394.25 2,162.04 742.11 3,190.34
Tax expenses 354.91 15994 1,397.26 1,219.13
Profit for the year | 3,039.34 2,002.10 | {655.15) 1,971.21

2. PERFORMANCE HIGHLIGHTS OF THE COMPANY

®  The Company's total income increased by 20.59% from INR 8633.27 lakhs in the previous
financial year to INR 10,411.13 lakhs in the Current financial year,

®  Profit for the year increased by 46.46% from INR 2002.10 to INR 3,039.34 during the
period under review.

*  Yourdirectors are hopeful that the performance of the Company will continue to improve
further in the coming years.

3. TRANSFER TO RESERVES

The Board has decided to retain the entire amount of profit for the Financial Year 2023-24 and
not to transfer any amount to general reserve.

4. DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors have not recommended any dividend for the financial year ending
March 31, 2024, and have decided to conserve the resources for future endeavars.

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off: 'Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873. CIN ; U85110D1.2008PTC177230
E-mail: cs-legal@integrishealth.in
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5. SHARE CAPITAL

* The Paid-up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31st, 2024 was INR
1,67,00,780 comprising of 16,70,078 equity shares of INR 10/- each.

® During the review period, the Company issued 1,62,790 fully and compulsorily
convertible preference shares with a face value of INR 8,600/- each, fully paid-up,
carrying a dividend rate of 7% . These shares were issued on a rights issue basis.

6. DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES, AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES

During the year review period, no Company became or ceased to be a subsidiary, joint venture
or associate of the Company.

The list of subsidiaries, associates, and joint ventures of the Company as of 31st March 2024
is as follows:

Wholly Owned Subsidiaries:

5r. No. | Name of wholly owned Subsidiaries

1 Transhealth Private Limited

2. | Transvalve Health Private Limited
3. | Translumina Therapeutics LLP
4

5

Translumina GmbH
| Artic GmbH

Step Down Subsidiaries:

Name of step-down Subsidiaries
1. | Blue Medical Devices B. V

2. | LAMED Vertriebsgesellschaft

3. | Translumina France

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 125{3} & 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule
8 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 the highlights of the performance of its subsidiaries
and a statement containing its salient features of the financial statements mentioned in Form
AOC-1is attached as Annexure-A.

7. DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL APPOINTED/REGISNED DURING
THE REVIEW PERIOD.

As of 31st March 2024, the Board of your Company comprised the following members:

Sr. No | Name of Director DIN Designation

1. Mr. Arjun Oberoi 08277173 Nominee Director
2, Mr. Avnish Mehra 02221045 Nominee Director
3, Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh 00821824 Director

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873. CIN : UB5110DL2008PTC 177230
E-mail: cs-legal@integrishealth.in
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4. Mr. indranil Mukherjee 06692898 | Director
5. Ms. Punita Sharma 00821812 | Director
6. Mr. Vishal Omprakash | 10084887 ‘ Nominee Director
| | Goenka , |
| 7. | Mr. Vishal Sharma 01599024 | Nominee Director |

¢ Mr. Kewal Krishan was designated as the CFO of the Company by the Board of Directors
of Integris Health Private Limited on October 28", 2020, and continued to hold this
potion during the financial year 2023-24.

¢ Mr. Indranil Mukherjee and Mr. Vishal Omprakash Goenka, were appointed as
additional directors by Board on August 1%, 2023 and were regularized at the Annual
General Meeting held in 2023,

* Mr. Kapil Mendiratta was appointed as the Company secretary by the board of
directors of the company effective November 1%, 2023. He subsequently resigned from
the position on March 29th, 2024.

8. NUMBER QF BOARD MEETINGS

The Board meetings are held at regular intervals to discuss and decide on Company / Business
Policy and Strategy apart from other business

During the financial year ending 31st March 2024, a total of 8 Board meetings were
held. The dates of these meetings are as follows:

Sr. No | Date of Board Meeting
!_1 May 32023

| 2 June 5% 2023

August 1°* 2023
September 22™ 2023
October 19" 2023
December 18™ 2023
January 30" 2024

March 18" 2024 |

OO [~ [ | (Lo

The attendance of individual Directors at these Board meetings during the year is as follows:

No. of Board Meetings attended by individual Directars during the year
No. of Meetings | No. of Meetings attended
Name of the Director entitled to attend | during the year
during the year
Mr. Arjun Oberoi 08 02
Mr. Avnish Mehra 08 01
Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh 08 07
Mr. Indranil Mukherjee 05 05
Ms. Punita Sharma | 08 06

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off; ‘Metro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC 177230
E-mail: ¢cs-legal@integrishealth.in
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Mr. Vishal Omprakash | 05 | 02
Goenka _
Mr. Vishal Sharma | 08 | 06 |

9. REPORTING OF FRAUD BY THE AUDITORS

During the year under review, the Statutory Auditors have not reported any instances of fraud
committed in the Company by its officers or employees to the Board under Section 143(12) of
the Companies Act, 2013.

10. DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 the
Board hereby submits its responsibility Statement as under:

a)

b)

c)

d)

e)

In the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards
had been followed.

The Directors had selected such accounting policies and applied them
consistently and made judgments and estimates that are reasonable and
prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the com pany
at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the company for that period.

The Directors had taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of this Act for
safeguarding the assets of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud
and other irregularities.

The Directors had prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis, and;
The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the

provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems were adequate and
operating effectively.

11. APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

12,

The provisions of Section 149(6) & (7) pertaining to the appointment of independent

Directors does not apply to your Company.

COMPANY'S POLICY ON APPOINTMENT, PAYMENT OF REMUNERATION AND DISCHARGE OF
DUTIES

The Provisions of section 178(1) related to constitution of Nomination and

Remuneration Committee is not applicable to the Company however the Company has
constituted Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Company to strengthen
Corporate Governance in the Board Meeting held on May 27%™, 2022.

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off; ‘Matro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Deihi-1 10080,

Tel.

: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230

E-mail: cs-iegal@integrishealth.in



13,

14,

15.

16.

oo

Health

The composition of Nomination and Remuneration Committee as follows:

Sr. No | Name Designation
1. ' Mr. Gurmit Singh Chugh | Chairperson
2. Mr. Arjun Oberoi | Member
3. Mr. Vishal Sharma | Member

STATUTORY AUDITORS AND AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Auditors, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered accountants were appointed
as the Statutory Auditors of the Company for 5 years, in the AGM held on September
24, 2019.

M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP, Chartered accountants’ term as the Statutory Auditors
of the Company extends till the conclusion of this Annual General Meeting of the
Company.

The Board of Directors recommended to re-appoint, M/s Walker Chandiok & Co. LLP as
Statutory Auditors of the Company for their Second Term.

There were no qualifications, reservations or adverse remarks in the Auditor’s Report
and the other contents of the Auditors Report are self-explanatory do not need any
further explanation from the management.

PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013.

The Details regarding loans, guarantees, and investments made in accordance with the
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, are available under Note no 5,
6, and 44 of notes to accounts attached to the Standalone Financials Statements.

The full particulars are available in the Register maintained under Section 186 of the
Companies Act 2013, which is available for inspection during business hours on all
working days.

PERFORMANCE EVALUATION

The provisions of Clause (p) of section 134 {3) of Companies Act, 2013 and sub rule {4)
of Rule 8 of Companies (Account) Rules, 2014 relating to performance evaluation of
the Board, its Committees and Directors individually are not applicable to the
Company.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The provisions of the Section 177 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 6 of the
Companies {Meetings of the Board and its Power) Rules, 2013 are not applicable to the
Company. However, the Company has constituted Finance Committee of the Company to
strengthen Corporate Governance in the Board Meeting held on May 27th, 2022.

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-1100860.

Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230
E-mail: cs-legal@integrishealth.in
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The composition of the Finance committee as follows:

Sr. No ] Name } Designation
1. | Ms. Punita Sharma ' Chairperson
2. Mr. Avnish Mehra Member
3. Mr. Vishal Goenka Member

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to in subsection (1)
of section 188 entered by the Company during the financial year ended March 31, 2024, is
annexed hereto as Annexure B in prescribed Form AOC-2 and forms part of this report.

MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENT IF ANY AFFECTING THE FINANCIAL
POSITION OF THE COMPANY OCCURRED BETWEEN THE END OF THE FINNACIAL YEAR
TO WHICH THIS FINANCIAL STATEMENT RELATES AND THE DATE OF THE REPORT.

There have been no material changes and commitments which affect the financial
position of the company which have occurred between the end of the financial year to
which the financial statements relate and the date of this Report.

CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS
AND OUTGO

a. Conservation of Energy: Considering the nature of activity of company, the provisions
of Section 134(3} m of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to conservation of energy do
not apply to the Company.

b. Technology Absorption: Considering the nature of activity of Company, the provisions
of section 134(3)m of the Companies Act, 2013, relating to technology absorption do
not apply to the Company.

c. Foreign Exchange Earning and Qutgo: Detail of Foreign Exchange earned in terms of
actual inflows and the Foreign Exchange outgo during the year in terms of actual
outflows are as under .

Particulars Amount in INR
Foreign Exchange Outgo 70,12,5598
Foreign Exchange Earnings Nil

20. DEVELOPMENT AND IMPLEMENTATION OF RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Risk Management is the process of identification, assessment and prioritization of risks
followed by coordinated efforts to minimize, monitor and mitigate/control the
probability and/or impact of unfortunate events or to maximize the realization of
opportunities. The majbr risks have been identified by the Company and its mitigation

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110080.

Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC177230
E-mail: cs-legal@integrishealth.in
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process/measures have been formulated in the areas such as business, project
execution, event, financial, human, environment, and statutory compliance. The
Company has also formulated Risk Management Policy during the Financial Year 2022-
23.

DETAILS OF COMPANY’S CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

The provisions of Section 135 of Companies Act, 2013 and Rules made thereunder relating to
Corporate Social Responsibility are applicable to the Company.

Constitution of CSR Committee is not required in case of companies where amount to be spent
under CSR does not exceed Rs 50 lakhs. However, the Company has formed a Corporate Social
Responsibility committee in its Board Meeting held on 27" May 2022 as a Good Governance
Practice

The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) Policy of the Company and the
initiatives undertaken by the Company on CSR activities during the year in the format
prescribed in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 are set out in
Annexure - C of this Report.

DISCLOSURE UNDER SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT WORKPLACE
(PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013

The Company has zero tolerance for sexual harassment at workplace and has adopted a Policy
on Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal of Sexual Harassment at workplace in line with the
provisions of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace {Prevention, Prohibition and
Redressal) Act, 2013 and Rules framed thereunder. Internal Complaints Committee (‘ICC’} is
in place for all offices of the Company to redress complaints received regarding sexual
harassment,

Your directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases
filed pursuant to the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention,
Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.

INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS
The Company has maintained adequate financial control system, commensurate with
the size, scale and complexity of its operations and ensures compliance with various

policies, practices, and statutes in keeping with the organization’s pace of growth and
increasing compiexity of operations.

EXTRACTS OF ANNUAL RETURN

The Company doesn’t have any website. Therefore, there is no need for publication of
the Annual Return.

DEPOSITS

The Company has neither accepted nor renewed any deposits under Chapter V of the
Companies Act, 2013 during the financial year ended 315 March 2024.

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: "Metro Tower’, 1st Fioor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060.
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26. PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES
None of the employees of your Company were in receipt of remuneration over and
above the below limits prescribed under Rule 5 of the Companies (Appointment and

Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014.

i. if employed throughout the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for
that year which, in the aggregate, was not less than one crore and two lakh
rupees.

ii. if employed for a part of the financial year, was in receipt of remuneration for

any part of that year, at a rate which, in the aggregate, was not less than eight
lakh and fifty thousand rupees per month.

27. SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR TRIBUNALS OR
TRIBUNALS IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND COMPANY’S
OPERATIONS IN FUTURE

No significant and material order has been passed by the regulators, courts, tribunals
impacting the going concern status and Company’s operations in future.

28. CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS (IF ANY)
There has been no change in the business of the company during the period under review.
29. VIGIL MECHANISM

The Company does not fall within the purview of Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013
Therefore, vigil mechanism is not applicable to your Company.

30, COST RECORDS

Company maintains cost records as specified by central government under sub-section(1} of
section 148 of the Companies Act 2013,

31. COMPLIANCES OF SECRETARIAL STANDARDS
Your Company has duly complied with all applicable provisions of Secretarial Standards issued

by Institute of Company Secretaries of India {(ICSI) and approved by the Central Government.

32. THE DETAILS OF APPLICATION MADE OR ANY PROCEEDING PENDING UNDER THE
INSOLVENCY AND BANKRUPTCY CODE, 2016 DURING THE YEAR ALONG WITH THEIR STATUS
AS AT THE END OF THE FINANCIAL YEAR.

Your Company has made no such application or neither any proceeding pending under the
Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code. 2016 during the financial year ending on 31/03/2024.

Integris Health Private Limited
Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower’, 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Celhi-110060.
Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873. CIN : U85110DL2008PTC 177230
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THE DETAILS OF DIFFERENCE BETWEEN THE AMOUNT OF THE VALUATION DONE AT THE
TIME OF ONE TIME SETTLEMENT AND THE VALUATION DONE WHILE TAKING LOAN FROM
THE BANKS OR FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS ALONG WITH THE REASONS THEREOF.

NOT APPLICABLE

GENERAL

Your directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items
as there were no transactions on these items during the year under review:

1) Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
2} Issue of Shares (including sweat equity shares ) to employees of the company under any
scheme,

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

Your directors would like to express their sincere appreciation for the assistance and co—
operation received from the financial institutions, banks, Government authorities, customers,
vendors, and members during the year under review.

Your directors also wish to place on record their appreciation for the committed services by
the Company's consultants, staff, and workers.

By order of Board
For Integris Health Private Limited
For Integris Hpalth Private Limited

v

r

Punita Sharma Indranil Mukherjee

Director Director

DIN:00821812 DIN:06692898

Address: House No -1B/25 N E A, Address: A-204, Sahayog CHSS,
Pusa Road Behind Karol Bagh Ghodbunder Road Chitalsar
Metro Station Manpada, Thane West, Near
New Delhi, Delhi Tikujiniwadi Thane Maharashtra
India -110060 India 400610

Date: 30/09/2024
Place: New Delhi

Integris Health Private Limited

Regd Off: ‘Metro Tower', 1st Floor, LSC, MOR Land, New Rajender Nagar, New Delhi-110060

Tel.: 011-45062860, Fax : 011-28742873, CIN : U85110DL2008PTC 177230
E-mail: cs-legal@integrishealth.in



AMnexure - A of Board Report

Form AOC-1
{Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014}
Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of subsidiaries/associate
companies/joint ventures.

Part “Al1”: Indian Subsidiaries

(Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Rs. Lakhs)

sl Particulars Details Details Details
No.
1. | Name of the subsidiary Transhealth Transvalve Health Translumina
Private Limited Private Limited Therapeutics LLP
2. | Reporting pericd for the
subsidiary concerned, if Same as Holding Company’s Reporting Period
different from the holding
company'’s reporting period
3. | Reporting currency and NA
Exchange rate as on the last
date of the relevant Financial
year in the case of foreign
subsidiaries
4. | Share capital/ Partners Capital 300.00 200.00 1.01003
account
5. | Reserves & surplus 1,054.79 (24.01) 3,423.66
6. | Total assets 12,048.02 697.56 44,317.76
7. | Total Liabilities (including 12,048.02 697.56 44,317.76
equity)
8. | Investments - - =
9. | Turnover (Total Revenue) Revenue from Revenue from Revenue from
Operations: Operations: Operations:
3,763.97 Nil 39,014.26
Other Income: Other Income: Other Income:
127.55 0.07 800.39
10.| Profit/Loss before taxation 746.54 (8.82) 5,265.49
11.| Provision for taxation/Tax 174.72 Nil 1,956.41
Expense
12.| Profit after taxation 571.82 (8.82) 3,309.08
13.| Proposed Dividend = - ==
14.| % of shareholding 100 100 100




Part “A2”: Foreign Subsidiaries

{Information in respect of each subsidiary to be presented with amounts in Euro Lakhs)

i, No. Particulars Details Details

1. Name of the subsidiary Artic Holding GMBH Translumina GmbH

2. Reporting period for the Jan- Dec Jan- Dec
subsidiary concerned, if (The figures are as on 31.03.2024 {The figures are as on
different from the holding and in Euros Lakhs) 31.03.2024 and in Euro Lakhs})
company’s reporting

| e period

3. Reporting currency and Euro Euro
Exchange rate as on the Exchange rate 89.94 as on Exchange rate 89.94 as on
last date of the relevant 31.03.2024 31.03.2024

financial year in the case
of foreign subsidiaries

4, Share capital 0.25 8.05
5. Reserves & surplus (Other
Equity) 2.36 71.85
6. Total assets 2.64 301.58
7. Total Liabilities (including
Shareholder’s funds) 2.64 301.58
8. Investments - -
9. | Turnover (Total Revenue) Nil 93.22
10. | Profit/(Loss) before {35.12)
taxation (0.32}
11. | Provision for taxation/Tax (5.95)
Expense (0.03)
12. | Profit/ (loss) after (29.17)
taxation {0.30)
13. | Proposed Dividend - -
14. | % of shareholding 100 100

Notes: The following information shall be furnished at the end of the statement:

1. Names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations- Transvalve Health Private Limited
2. Names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year. -None



Part “B”: Associates and Joint Ventures

Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies Act, 2013 related to Associate Companies and
joint Ventures

Name of associates/Joint Ventures NA NA NA
1. Latest audited Balance Sheet Date NA NA NA
2. Shares of Associate/Joint Ventures held by the NA NA NA
company on the year end
No. NA NA NA
Amount of Investment in Associates/Joint Venture NA NA NA
Extend of Holding% NA NA NA
3. Description of how there is significant influence NA NA NA
4. Reason why the associate/joint venture is not NA NA NA
consolidated
5. Net worth attributable te shareholding as per NA NA NA
latest audited Balance Sheet
6. Profit/Loss for the year NA NA NA
i. Considered in Consolidation NA NA NA
ii. Not Considered in Consolidation

1. Names of associates or joint ventures which are vet to commence operations.
2. Names of associates or joint ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year.

Note: This Form is to be certified in the same manner in which the Balance Sheet is to be certified.

By order of Board

For Integris Health Private Limite

for Infekris Health Private Ligxted For Integris Health Private Lirgited

4L"L‘%’w3(
Director frector
Punita Sharma Indranil Mukherjee
Director Director
DIN: 00821812 DIN: 06692898

Kewal Krishan
{Chief Financial Officer)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30/09/2024



Annexure-B of the Board Report

FORM NO. AOC -2

{Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies
(Accounts) Rules, 2014,

Form for Disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with
related parties referred to in sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including

certain arm’s length transaction under third proviso thereto.

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions at Arm’s length basis.

5L. No.

Particulars

Details

a)

Name (s} of the related party & nature of relationship

Punita Sharma, Director

b)

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Rent Agreement

c)

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Continuing

d)

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value if any

Transaction Value as
mentioned in Note 44 to
Financial Statements

Date of approval by the Board

13.04.2013

Amount paid as advances if any

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Gurmit  Singh  Chugh,

Director

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Rent Agreement

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Continuing

| Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or

transaction including the value, if any

Transaction Value as
mentioned in Note 44 to
Financial Statements

Date of approval by the Board

23.04.2019

Amount paid as advances if any

Particulars

Details

Name (s) of the related party & nature of relationship

Translumina Therapeutics
Private Limited

Nature of contracts/arrangements/transaction

Purchase agreement

Duration of the contracts/arrangements/transaction

Continuing

Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or
transaction including the value if any

Transaction Value as
mentioned in Note 44 to
Financial Statements

Date of approval by the Board

26.11.2011

| Amount paid as advances if any

{Follows Signing Page})
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By order of Board

For Integris Health Private L:mlted
For Integris Health Priv

Punita g?]arma
Director
DIN: 00821812

Ko

Kew4] Krishan
(Chief Financial Officer)

Place: New Delhi
Date: 30/09/2024

ted

For Integrig Health Private Lj

Joal?

Indranil Mukherjee
Director
DIN: 06692898

ited
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Annexure C of the Board Report

Format For the Annual Report on CSR Activities to be Included in the Board's Report for Financial

Year Commencing on or After 1st Day of April, 2020

(This forms part of the Directors’ report for the Financial Year 2023-24}

1.

2.

3’

Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:

In accordance with the requirements under the Companies Act, 2013, Integris Health Private
{“Company”} CSR activities, amongst other points also focuses on:

HUNGER, POVERTY, MALNUTRITION AND HEALTH: Eradicating extreme hunger,
poverty and malnutrition, promoting preventive healthcare and sanitation and
making available safe drinking water.

EDUCATION: Promoting education, including special education and employment
enhancing vocational skills especially among children, women, elderly and the
differently abled, and livelihood enhancement projects; monetary contributions to
academic institutions for establishing endowment funds, chairs, laboratories, etc.,
with the objective of assisting students in their studies.

RURAL DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS: Strengthening rural areas by improving
accessibility, housing, drinking water, sanitation, power and livelihoods, thereby
creating sustainable villages.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY: Ensuring environmental sustainability, ecological
balance, protection of flora and fauna, animal welfare, agro-forestry, conservation of
natural resources and maintaining the quality of soil, air and water

Composition of CSR Committee:

Pursuant to sub section (9) of section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 (“Act”), the amount
spent by company under sub section (5) of section 135 of the Act does not exceed fifty lakhs
rupees the requirement of CSR committee shall not be applicable. However, the Company has

formed

a Corporate Social Responsibility committee in its Board Meeting held on 27" May

2022 as a Good Governance Practice

The composition of CSR Committee as follow:

Sr.No | Name Designation
1. | Ms, Punita Sharma Chairperson
2. | Mr. Vishal Sharma Member
3. | Mr. Kewal Krishan Special Invitee
4. | Mr. Paritosh Arora Special Invitee

Provide the weh-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects

approved by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:

Company does not have a website.
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4. Provide the executive summary along with web-link(s) of Impact Assessment of CSR Projects
carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 8, if applicable. NOT APPLICABLE

5.
a)| Average net profit of the company as per sub-section (5) | 22,43,65,409
of section 135: -
b)| Two percent of average net profit of the company as per | 44,87,308
sub-section (5) of section 135
¢)| Surplus arising out of the CSR Projects or programmes or | Nil
activities of the previous financial years.
d}| Amount required to be set-off for the financial year, if any | Nil
e)| Total CSR obligation for the financial year [{b)+{c)-{d): 44,87,308
6.
a) | Amount spent on CSR Projects (both Ongoing Project and other | 42,54,530
than Ongoing Project).
b) | Amount spent in Administrative Overheads. Nil
¢} | Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable Nil
d) | Total amount spent for the Financial Year [{a)+({b}+{c}]. 42,54,530
e) | CSR amount spent or unspent for the Financial Year: 31,36,373

Amount Unspent {in Rs.)

Total Amount | Total Amount transferred to| Amount transferred to any fund specified under
Spent for the | Unspent CSR Account as per | Schedule VIl as per second proviso to section 135(5).

Financial Year. section 135(6).
{In Rs.)

Amount.| Date of transfer. [Name of the Fund| Amount. Date of transfer.
31,36,373 30/04/2024 - E _

42,54,530
(f) Excess amount for set off, if any
Sl. Particular Amount {in Rs.)
No.
(i Two percent of average net profit of the company 44,837,308
as per section 135(5})
{ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 42,54,530
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [{ii)-(i)] -
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(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or Nil
programmes or activities of the previous financial
years, if any

(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial Nil
years [[iii)-(iv}]

7. Details of Unspent Corporate Social Responsibility amount for the preceding three financial

years:
—_SI. Preceding Amount Balance | Amount transferred to any | Amount | Deficie
No. |Financial | transferred to | Amount in fund specified under remaining | ncy, if
Year. | UnspentCSR | ynspent |Schedule Vil as per section [to be spent| 55y
Account under CSR 135(6), if any. in
section135(6} | , unt | Name [Amount| Date of succeeding
{inRs.) under | of the | (inRs). | transfer. | financial
ears. (In
subsection Fund 4 Rs )(
(6} of
section 135
{In Rs.)
1. FY1 Nil Nil PM 7,66,66807/04/2022Nil =
Cares
Fund
2. Y2 29,00,046 29,00,046 - - - 29,00,046 -
3. FY3 31,36,373 31,36,373 |- - - 31,36,373 |-
| | [ | I
8. Whether any capital assets have been created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
s¥es 5 No
If yes, enter the number of Capital assets created, acquired Nit
Furnish the details relating to such asset(s) so created or acquired through Corporate Social
Responsibility amount spent in the Financial Year:
sl | Short Pincode of | Date of | Amount | Details of entity/ Authority/
No. particulars the creation | of CSR beneficiary of the registered
of property amount | owner
the property | or asset(s) spent
or
asset(s)
[including
complete
address and
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location of
the
property]

I 2 (3) @) (5) (6)

CSR Name | Registered |
Registration Address
Number, if

applicable

L

(All the fields should be captured as appearing in the revenue record, flat no, house no, Municipal
Office/Municipal Corporation/ Gram panchayat are to be specified and also the area of the immovable
property as well as boundaries)

9. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net
profit as per subsection {5} of section 135.

The company has undertaken a Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR} initiative titled Mobile
Health Unit (MHU), implemented through implementing Agency, HelpAge India. The project
operates under a Memorandum of Understanding (MoU), with a fixed budget allocated for
quarterly disbursement.

In accordance with the MoU, the company disburses funds as per the allocated budget for
each quarter. Any unutilized portion of the CSR expenditure is transferred to the Unspent CSR
Account, in compliance with the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013,

/
{Chief Executive Officer or / [Person specified under
Managing Director or (Chairman CSR Committee). | clause (d) of sub-section (1)
Director). of section 380 of the Act)

(Wherever applicable).
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